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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Honorable Supervisor and Town Board
Town of Brookhaven
Brookhaven, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Brookhaven, New York (the "Town"), as of and for the year ended December 31,
2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.
M a n ag
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Sfafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Aud itors' Responsibil

ity

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Town's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
25 Suffolk Court, Hauppauge, NY 11788

I

Tel: 631.434.9500

I

Fax: 631.434.9518

I

www.pkfod.com

PKF O'Connor Davlss, LLP ls a mombor flrm of the PKF lnlemallon€l Llmllod nslwork of lsgally lndepgndonl tlrms and doss nol accepl any rosponslblllly or
llEblllty fortho acllons or lnaclions on the pad of any olhar lndlvldual m€mbor llrm or tlrms.
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Honorable Supervisor and Town Board
Town of Brookhaven
Brookhaven, New York

Opinions
ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, discretely presented component unit,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Brookhaven, New York, as of
December 31,2020, and the respective changes in financial position, for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Emphasis of Matter
New Accounting

G uid

ance

As described in Note A and Note E in the notes to the basic financial statements, the Town of Brookhaven,
New York adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Statement No. 84 "Fiduciary
Activities". Accordingly, the unrestricted net position and governmental funds fund balance as of January 1,
2020 have been restated. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Coronaviru s Conti nge ncy

As discussed in Note D in the notes to financial statements, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization
declared a global pandemic as a result of the spread of COVID-19 ("Coronavirus"). Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supple me ntary I nformation
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - budget and
actual, schedule of changes in total other postemployment benefits liability and related ratio, schedule of

proportionate share of the net pension liability - employee retirement system, schedule of pension
- employees' retirement system and schedule of pension liabilities - LOSAP plans be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
contributions

Other lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Brookhaven, New York's basic financial statements. The combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the financial statements.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules (as listed in the table of
contents) are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. ln our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor financial statements and
schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Honorable Supervisor and Town Board
Town of Brookhaven
Brookhaven, New York

Other Reporting Required hy Government Auditing Standards
ln accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards, we have also issued our report dated June 25,2021 on
our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Town's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

PKr

/'hrnn

bortuu, LLP

Hauppauge, NewYork
June 25,2021
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Management's Discussion and Analysis

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31,2020

As management of the Town of Brookhaven (the "Town"), we offer readers of the financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2020. We
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Town's basic financial
statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
a

During fiscal year 2020, Net Position related to its governmental activities was $300.6 million, which
decreased by $5.1 million and the Net Position pertaining to business{ype activities totaled $615
thousand.

a

During the year, the Town had total governmental activities revenues of $347.3 million which consisted

of program revenues of $131.5 million and general revenues of $215.8 million, while the Town's
related expenses totaled $355.3 million.
a

ln October 2020, Moody's lnvestor's Services reaffirmed the Town's credit rating of Aaa. ln October
2020, Standard and Poor's reaffirmed the Town's credit rating of A/M.

a

At December 31,2020, the Town's governmental activities assets and deferred outflows of resources
exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $300.6 million. Of this $716.5 million
represents the net investment in capital assets, $46.5 million is restricted for various purposes, and
$462.4 million is net unrestricted deficit position, which does not necessarily indicate distress and is
primarily due to the recognition of other postemployment benefits liability and expense.

o

During fiscal year 2020, Tolal Fund Balance for governmental funds increased by $aO.O million
including the effects of cumulative change in accounting principle of $2.9 million. This increase is
primarily due to the Capital Projects Fund Balance increase of $63.0 million (due to timing of bond
issuances and capital expenditures) and an increase in the operating funds Fund Balance of $23.0
million.

a

At December 31,2020, the Unassigned Fund Balance of the General Fund improved $1.3 million, to
$55.8 million, or an 2.360/o increase, and represents 70.99% of the total year end fund balance of
$78.6 million. The 2020 Unassigned Fund Balance represents 45.04% of the General Fund
expenditures including operating transfers out, against a Fund Balance Policy compliance of 25o/o.The
increase in Unassigned Fund Balance is attributable to the 2020 revenues in excess of expenditures,
conservative spending, and a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. There is no planned
use of unrestricted components of fund balance to fund the 2020 operating budget.

a

During 2020,hhe General Fund transferred $3.7 million tothe Capital Projects Fund tofinance certain
capital projects, with less than a S-year period of probable usefulness, whereby reducing the amount
to be financed with general obligation bonds.

a

The Fund Balance for the combined Highway Funds increased by $S.a million to $32.6 million, a
20.01Y0 increase, at December 31,2020, primarily due to lower than expected expenditures in all
areas and $516 thousand increase pertaining to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 84.

a

a

During 2020, the Town issued $77.780 million of current refunding general obligation bonds, and
together with the premiums received of $11.631 million, currently refunded $B8.320 million of general
obligation bonds, yielding $8.04 million in cash flow savings. The Town also issued $111.450 million in
general obligation bonds to finance the cost of various public improvements/capital projects.
Notable portions of restricted total fund balances are as follows: $22.1 million for future debt service
and $17.3 million in post-closure landfill reserve.

a

The Town implemented proactive measures in fiscal year 2020 to mitigate the negative impacts of the
COVID-19 Pandemic, ensuring no erosion of Fund Balance in the General and Highway Funds.

-4-

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31,2020
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's basic financial statements.
The Town's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,

2) fund financial

statements and

3) notes to basic financial

statements. This report also contains

supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.
COMPONENTS OF
THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Management's
Discussion and
Analysis

Basic
Financial
Statements

Required
Supplementary
lnformation

Govemment-wide
Financial
Statements

Fund
Financial Statements

Notes to the
Financial Statements
Detail

Summary

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Town's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The intent of the governmentwide financial
statements is to give the reader a long{erm view of the Town's financial condition.

The Statement of Net Position presents financial information on all of the Town's assets, liabilities and
deferred inflows/outflows of resources with the difference between those categories reported as net position.
Over time, increases or decreases in the Town's net position is one indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in
the Town's property tax base and the condition of the Town's buildings, roads, drainage and other assets to
assess the overall health of the Town.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town's net position changed during the
most recent year. Revenues and expenses are reported by activity to give the reader an understanding of how
each of the Town's activities is being supported. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future periods. This method is known as the accrual basis of accounting and is different from the modified
accrual basis of accounting used in the Town's fund financial statements.
The Town's government-wide financial statements include both the governmental activities of the Town itself
(known as the primary government) and of its legally separate nonmajor component units for which the Town
is financially accountable. Financial information of these nonmajor component units is reported separately
(discretely presented) from the financial information presented for the primary government.
Governmental Activities

The Town's basic services are reported herein, include general government support; public safety; health;
transportation; economic assistance and opportunity; culture and recreation and home and community
services. Property taxes, mortgage taxes, franchise fees, user fees for services, fines, and state and federal
grants finance these activities. The Town also charges fees to customers to help it cover the cost of certain
services it provides.
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TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2020
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Busi ness-Type Activities

The Town's businesstype activities reports the operations of the Town of Brookhaven Local Development
Corporation, whose purpose is to promote the expansion of business and creation of jobs with The Town.
Discretely Presented Component Unit
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Town is either financially accountable, or the
nature and significance of the relations with the Town is such that exclusion would cause the Town's financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. These entities are either reported in a separate column in the
government-wide statements as a discretely presented component unit or as a blended component unit (see
business{ype activities. The Town includes one separate legal entity in its report as a nonmajor discretely
presented component unit. Note A.1 describes the component units.

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements focus on current available resources and are organized and operated on the
basis of funds, each of which is defined as an accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts
established for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with
special regulations, restrictions or limitations. The Town, like other governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town can
be divided into three categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds.
Governmental Funds

The Town's activities are reported in governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for
essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government's near-term

fi

nancial requ irements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the longterm effect of the Town's near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental funds
balance sheet and governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmentalfunds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains various individual governmental funds. lnformation is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in funds balances for the six (6) major funds. The General Fund, Town Outside Village Fund,
Highway Fund, Refuse and Garbage Fund, Debt Service Fund, and Capital Projects Fund are reported as
major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.
lndividual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements in the other supplementary information section in this report.
The Town adopts annually an appropriated Operating and Capital budget for its General and Special Revenue
Funds, except for the following funds: one of the Debt Service Funds, Special Grants Fund, Special
Miscellaneous Housing Trust Fund, and the Permanent Fund and certain inactive Special Districts Funds. A
budgetary comparison schedule for each major fund (which adopted a budget) can be found in the section
labeled "Required Supplementary lnformation Other Than Management's Discussion and Analysis".

6

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31,2020
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)
Proprietary Funds

The Town maintains one proprietary fund which is classified as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The Town uses the enterprise fund to account for its blended component unit, the Town of
Brookhaven Local Development Corporation.
Fiduciarv Funds
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government and as
the resources are not available to support the Town's programs, these funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements. The Town has one fiduciary fund, a custodial fund, which primarily
accounts for real property taxes billed and collected on behalf of other local municipalities.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found following
the basic financial statements.
Other lnformation

ln addition to the basic financial statements this report contains supplementary information immediately
following the notes to the financial statements.
GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. ln
the case of the Town of Brookhaven, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources by $300.6 million (governmental activities) and $615 thousand (business-type
activities) at the close of the most recent year.
Our analysis below focuses on the net position and changes in net position of the Town as a whole.
Condensed Statement of Net Position
As of December 31,
Governmental Activities
2020
Assets
Cunent and other assets

$

460,299,800

Capital assets
Total Assets

$

11,369,732

Non-current receivables and other assets
1

,313,995,762

183,949,093

$

146,406,659

Current and other liabilities

1

19,703,851

1,267,163,294
1

Deferred lnflows of Resources

,386,867,145

2019

618,235 $289,675

10,081 ,844

1,296,003,503

618,235

289,675

87,884,059

Liabilities

Total Liabilities

2020

1,785,665,294 I ,490,034,440

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Long-term liabilities

Business-Type Activities

2019

113,374,179

3,640

3,325

3,640

3.325

1,083,563,270
1 , 196,937,449

244,589,814

75,299,1 39

716,527,550

722,552,100

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets

46,487,122

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

33,703,754

614,595
$ 300,614,994 $ 305,681,911 $ 614,595 $
(462,399,678)

-7

-
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TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2020
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (continued)
G

overnme ntal Activitie s

The Town's governmental activities net position includes $716.5 million in net investment in capital assets,
$46.5 million in net position restricted for specific purposes (primarily for capital projects, landfill postclosure
costs, and debt service) and $462.4 million in net unrestricted net deficit position.
By far, the largest portion of the Town of Brookhaven's governmental activities net position ($716.5 million)
reflects its investment in capital assets (e.9. land, buildings, machinery, equipment and infrastructure) less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Town of Brookhaven uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, the related net position is not available for future
spending.
Although the Town's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
will not be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town's governmental activities net position, 15.5% or $46.5 million, represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance is an
unrestricted net deficit of $462.4 million, the majority of which stems from recognizing longterm liabilities such
as post-retirement health benefits, accrued compensated absences, judgment and claims liabilities, and the
Town's share of the New York State Pension Plan net pension liability.
The unrestricted net position balance decreased by $11.8 million as expenses exceeded revenues during the year
in the amount of $7.9, and that decrease was offset by a $2.9 million increase related to a cumulative effective of
change in accounting principle (GASB 84). The deficit balance of unrestricted net position does not necessarily
indicate stress. The deficit balance of unrestricted net position arose primarily due to long-term liabilities which
include other postemployment benefits, pension liabilities (employees' retirement and length of service award
program), compensated absences, deferred compensation, claims and judgments payable, landfill closure and

postclosure care costs, and pollution remediation obligations that will be funded through future budgetary
appropriations as they become payable in future periods. At the end of the current year, the Town reports positive
balances in the categories of net investment in capital assets and restricted. The same held true for the prior year.
Bu sine ss-Type Activitie s

The unrestricted net position pertaining to business-type activities totaled $615 thousand, an increase of $328
thousand during the year. The entire balance is unrestricted and is available for future operations.

(space intentionally left blank)
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TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2020

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (continued)
Condensed Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position
For the year ended December 31,
Business-Type Activities
2019

Governmental Activities

2o2o
Program Revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

$ 80,760,506

zorg-

$

28,602,525
22, 128.710

Total Program Revenues
General Revenues
Real property taxes
Other real property tax items
Non-property tax items
lnterest and investment earnings
Sale of property and compensation for loss
State and loca aid - unrestricted
Gain on disposition of capital assets
Other

131,491,741

143,903,813

179,598,396
2,394,168
8,663,945
1,682,770
896,839
22,251,949
79,365
279,427

175,337,639
2,545,193
4,069,490
2,432,300

Change in Net Position
Net Position at Beginning of Year
Cumulative effect of chance in accounting principle, GASB No. 84
Net Position at Beginning of Year, As Restated
Net Position at End of Year

$

355,267,590

(7,928,990)
305,681,91

1

2,862,073
308,543,984

14,000

346.768

14,000

1,480

3,340

1,480

3,340

348.248

17,340

20,003

22,426

132,564

347,338,600

Total Expenses

$

102,171

Total Revenues

59,456,149
26,000,436
14,831,135
77,978,724
1,930,908
36,363,957
122,195,756
16,510,485

346,768

16,848,1 28

215,846,859

$

$

10,095,'137

Total General Revenues

Program Expenses
General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic assistance and opportunity
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Debt interest and other costs

93,340,527
23,842,922
26,720,364

2020

211 ,562,622

54,680,954
24,508,596
12,856,419
71,716,024
1,855,436
33,299,678
95,277,694
17,727 . 186

311,521,987
43,544,448

262j37,463
262,137,463

$ 300,614,994 $ 305,681,911 $

20,003
328,245
286,350
286,350
614,595

22,426
(5,086)
251,436
291,436

_$____?99,359_

* The Town's 2020 condensed

statement presented above reflect the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principles stemming from the implementation of GASB Statement No. 84 "Fiduciary Activities",
information was not available to restate the 2019 balances.
Overall, general revenues of $215.8 million increased $4.2 million with that of the 2019 revenues of $211.6
million. The overall $4.2 million increase in general revenues consists of increases of: $4.3 million in real
property taxes, $5.4 million in state and local aid unrestricted (mortgage taxes), which was offset by decreases
of $1.4 million non-property tax items (franchise fees), $2.4 million in interest income (lower interest rates), and
$1.5 million in sale of property and compensation of loss (settlements).
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TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2020
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (continued)

Overall, program revenues of $131.5 million decreased $12.4 million from $143.9 million in 2019. Notable
changes from 2019 are as follows:

.

Charqes for Services of $80.8 million decreased $12.5 million from the 2019 revenues of $93.3 million.
Charges for service related to decreases of: $3.3 million in public safety function (fines, public safety
fees generated from the fire marshals, code enforcement and building division); $2.0 million in culture

and recreation function due to the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic had on various parks and
recreation programs and; $6.3 in home and community function as a result of the 2020 landfill and
recycling fees (including intergovernmental charges) falling below the 2019 levels by $3.7 million, and
$1.3 million less in zoning, planning, environmental protections and accessory apartment departments.

o

Ooeratinq Grants and Contributions of $28.6 million increased by $+.4 million the 2019 amounts of
$23.8 million. Operating grants and contributions related to general government support increased by
$1.1 million due to a $'1 million donation for the construction of a community center; and $4.6 million
increase in home and community grants resulting from $2.3 million in Jumpstart Suffolk award, and
$1.76 million in various HUD grants (Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher, Community Development
Block Grant, etc.) and $584 thousand in additional awards for the aging programs. Of the $'1.76 million
increase in various U.S Department of Housing and Urban Renewal ("HUD') grants, $1.3 million stems
from additional federal award pursuant to federal COVID-19 economic relief under the CARES Act.

r

Capital Grants and Contributions o'f $22.1 million decreased by $+.0 million from 2019 amounts of
$26.7 million and is primarily due to the following: a $3.7 million decrease in home and community
related to a $2.4 million state grants received for jetty restoration projects in 2019, $2.2 million less in
public disaster aid revenue, $1.0 million more from the state municipal consolidation and efficiency
award; $2.0 million decrease in transportation relating to $1.3 million less in dedicated roadways; $'1.6
million less in culture and recreation due to specific state aid received in 2019 for improvements to
various parks and playgrounds. These decreases were offset by a $1.9 million increase in public
safety grants related NYS municipal consolidation and efficiency award of $2.9 million and $1.5 million
less in NYS multi-modalawards.

Overall, total expense from governmental activities was $355.3 million, which increased by $43.4 million from
the 2019 expense of $311.9 million, much of which pertains to general government support, transportation,
culture and recreation and home and community expenses. lncreases in functional expense are as follows:
general government support $4.8 million, public safety $1.5 million, health $2.0 million, transportation $6.3
million, economic and assistance $75 thousand, culture and recreation $3.1 million, transportation $26.9
million. Debt interest and related costs decreased by $1.2 million. Notable changes in functional expenses
from the prior year are discussed below.

Home and community expenses increase of $26.9 million is primarily due to $18.4 million increase in
depreciation as the estimated depreciable of landfill related assets was decreased to correspond with the
estimated remaining capacity of the landfill, $3.8 million increase in employee benefits (primarily related to
pension and OPEB costs), $1.7 million in expenses incurred to administer the various HUD programs and
activities, and $2.2 million increase in the cost of providing garbage collection services (more residential
garbage removal due to COVID 19). Transportation expenses increase of $6.3 million primarily due to $7.6
million increase in employee benefits (pension and OPEB), $770 thousand in depreciation, which was offset
by decreases in cost of maintenance of streets ($3.1 million), street lighting expenses ($774 thousand), snow
removal ($SS0; thousand and other highway transportation costs ($830 thousand). General government
support expenses increase of $4.8 million primarily due to a $6.3 million increase in employee benefits
(pension and OPEB) and $3.8 million expenses incurred responding to the COVID 19 pandemic and to
Hurricane lsaias (presidentially declared disaster), these increases were offset by decreases in a 2019 one

time return of previously paid property taxes to the former Village of Mastic Beach ($1.5 million) and
judgement and claims ($1.6 million), and salaries and wages ($650 thousand) and supplies, materials and
small tools (1.0 million).
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Culture and recreation expenses increased by $g.t million primarily due to $4.5 million increase in employee
benefits (pension and OPEB) and a $1.3 million increase in depreciation, these increases were offset by
decreases in salaries and wages ($1.7 million), and cost of supplies and material ($gOO thousand). Health
expenses increased by $Z.O million due to increased cost of the various ambulance districts providing
emergency medical assistance including depreciation ($1.6 million). Public safety expenses increased by $1.5
million primarily due to $3.0 million increase in employee benefits (pension and OPEB), which was offset by
decreases in salaries and wages ($1 .1 million), demolition and unsafe buildings ($444 thousand) and supplies
and materials ($tgZ thousand). lnterest expense decreased $1.2 million from savings realized from refunding
general obligation bonds and issuing debt at lower interest rates over the past few years.
Regarding the discussion of the impact of changes related to pension and OPEB, it is important to understand
the pension and OPEB expenses are actuarially determined and as such are sensitive to changes in actuarial
assumptions. The significant increase in the expenses is primarily related to the decrease in the discount rate
and updated demographic assumptions (mortality, retirement, disability, and termination rates), and was
impacted by the loss on investments during the year.
Governmental Activities
Net Cost of Services
Governmental Activities
For the Years Ended December 31 ,

Total Cost

Program

of Services

Revenues
2019

2020

support
safety
Health
Transportation
General government

$

Public

Economicassistanceandopportunity

recreation
Home and community services
lnterest on debt

Culture and

59,456,149

$

54,680,954

2020

$

9,344,033

Net Cost
of Services
2019

$

2020

7,799,631

26,000,436

24,508,596

14,274,470

15,674,132

14,831,135

12,856,419

1,970,342

1,969,080

77,978,724

7't,716,024

12,769,311

15,574,966

1,930,908

1,855,436

244,408

450,945

36,363,957

33,299,678

4,806,207

8,571,927

122,195,796

95,277,694

88,004,697

93,377,505

'16,510,485

17,727 ,186

78.273

$355,267,590 $311,921,987 $13',t,491,741

485.627

$ (50,112,116) $

2019
(46,881,323)

(11,725,966) (8,834,464)
(12,860,793) (10,887,33e)
(65,209,413) (56,141,058)
(1,686,500) (1,404,491)
(31,557,750) (24,727,751)
(34,191,099) (1,900,18e)
(16,432,212) (17,241,559)

$143,903,813 $(223,775,849) $(168,018,174)

The cost of all governmental activities this year was approximately $355.3 million. The net cost of these
services after being subsidized by program revenues of $131 .5 million was $223.8 million.
Re\enue by Source
Go\emmental Activities
for the year ended December 31, 2020

grants

Capital grants
Charges for
services

Other general
re\enues
4o/o

cont

ri

but

ions

60h

State and local aid
- unreslricled

Real property

704

tdes
520k
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Governmental Activities (continued)
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS

Governmental Funds
GeneralFund

As the Town completed the 2020 fiscal year, the General Fund's Unassigned Fund Balance was $55.8
million, an increase of $1.3 million, or 2.4% over 2019. The Post-Closure Landfill Reserve increased to
$17.3 million, a $4.1 million increase over 2019, of which $1.2 million resulted from the $1.50 per ton
surcharge imposed by the Town Board to build the reserve and an additional $2.0 million of surplus the
Town Board allocated to this reserve, $864 thousand allocated pursuant to Local Law 18b-4 pertaining to
the 2020 and 2019 excess revenues and $86 thousand of allocated interest income.
Revenues of $129.6 million, excluding other financing resources were $3.8 million less than originally
planned, while expenditures were $13.3 million less than originally budgeted and other financing uses
were $3.9 million more than originally planned. The $3.8 million negative variance in revenues (original
budget) is primarily attributable to $9.7 million less in departmental income and intergovernmental charges
from substantially all departments, with the fees from landfill and parks and recreations impacted

significantlybytheeffectsofCOV|Dlg, $l.2millionlessinuseofmoneyandproperty(interestearnings
and rental of property) and offset by a $6.8 million more in state aid attributable increases in mortgage
taxes; $959 more from miscellaneous localsources. Total expenditures of $88.9 million were $13.2 million
less than originally planned. The Town, taking immediate cost saving measures when COVID 19 was
declared a global pandemic realized savings in all but a few functions, however these cost savings were

offset by $1.1 million of costs incurred due to COVID 19 and the response to Hurricane lsaias (a
presidentially declared disaster). Other financing uses (transfers to other funds) exceeded the original
budgeted amount by $3.9 million.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS (continued)

Governmental Funds (continued)
Ge

neral Fund (continued)

During 2020, Ihe Town transferred $3.7 million to the Capital Projects Fund of which $2.0 million is to
support the acquisition of certain capital projects resulting in less future debt issuances, and $1.7 million
transferred in accordance with Local Law'18b-4 (Joseph Macchia Environmental Fund).

The General Fund revenues (excluding other financing sources) decreased $2.9 million from $132.5
million in 2019 to $129.6 million in 2020. The Town's revenues, particularly departmental income, was
significantly impacted by COVID 19 and the measures taken to reduce the spread of the virus, particularly
departmental and intergovernmental charges which decreased by $7.1 million from the prior year.

Compared

to

2019, the change

in revenues is due to

decreases

in: landfill fees

including

intergovernmental charges of $4.5 million, fees from Parks department (parks and recreation, recreation
concessions, special recreation facilities and other culture and recreation) of $'1.8 million, and $491
thousand in zoning, environmental conservation and other home and community revenues, interest
earnings of $769 thousand, sale of property and compensation of loss of $1.9 million (settlements), which
was offset by increases in state aid of $6.1 million stemming from mortgage taxes due to an increase in
mortgage refinancing) and miscellaneous sources of $1.0 million (gifts and donations).

Total General Fund expenditures, excluding other financing uses, of $88.9 million was $8.7 million less
than the 2019 expenditures of $97.6 million. Overall, this is primarily due to the response the Town took to
address anticipated economic effects of the COVID 19 pandemic. The most notable change from the prior
year was a $5.3 million decrease personnel costs (salaries and benefits) among substantially all
departments/functions, a $2.1 million decrease in unallocated insurance and judgment and claims, and a
$1.5 million decrease for a one-time 2019 returned of previously paid property taxes to former Village of
Mastic Beach residents (other general government support). However, the Town incurred $1.1 million of
expenditures in response to the COVID 19 pandemic and costs incurred due to Hurricane lsaias.
Total General Fund other financing uses (all of which is operating transfers out) of $35.1 million in 2020
and $33.5 million in 2019, increased by$1.6 million. The2020 transfers of $35.1 million consists of $31.2
million to the Debt Service Fund for its share of the 2020 debt service requirements, $3.7 million to the
Capital Projects Fund to finance various capital projects (including $1.7 million transferred in accordance
with Local Law 18b) and $200 thousand to the Airport Fund. The 2019 transfers of $33.5 million consists
of $29.5 million to the Debt Service Fund for its share of the 2019 debt service requirements, $3.6 million
to the Capital Projects Fund to finance various capital projects and $400 thousand to the Airport Fund. The
General Fund other financing sources consisted of $379,326 transfers from the Capital Projects Fund
(unspent bond monies) and $852,706 of premiums on bond issuance.
Town Outside Village Fund
The Town has elected to present the Town Outside Village Fund as a major fund due to the significance of
the public safety, building, and planning and development departments which are included in this fund. At
December 31,2020, fund balance increased from $20.2 million at2019 to $23.1 million in202O. Actual

revenues were $5.0 million less than the prior year primarily due to the impact from COVID 19 on
departmental revenues and fines and forfeitures revenue. Notable decreases in revenue are: $3.0 million
in departmental income (safety inspection fees, zoning fees, etc.), $270 thousand in use of money and

property (interest earnings), $1.'1 in fines and forfeiture revenues and $431 thousand less from
miscellaneous local sources. Expenditures of $20.3 million are $2.5 million less than the 2019 total of
$22.8. Overall, payroll and related costs decreased by $1.9 million across most departments/functions.
Additionally, the Town spent $445 less in demolition of unsafe buildings than the prior year. Other
financing uses (transfers out) of $1.1 million decreased by $2.0 million from 2019 level as the Town
Outside Village Fund in 2019 transferred $2 million in 2019 to the Part-Town Highway Fund for additional
road paving with no such transfer in 2020, transferred $370 thousand less to Capital projects fund (finance
future capital projects and eliminate need to issue debt), and the $878 thousand transfer to the Debt
Service Fund for 2020 debt service requirements was $225 thousand less than that of 2019.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS (continued)

Governmental Funds (continued)
Highway Fund

The Highway Fund's totalfund balance increased $5.4 million (including $516 thousand cumulative affect
of change in accounting principle) or 19.9%, from a balance of $27.2 million at the end of 2019, to $32.6
million at the end of 2020. Actual Highway revenues of $72.0 consistent with the 2019 revenues of $72.0
million. Real property taxes and other real property taxes increased by $t.S million, however highway
intergovernmental charges decreased by $+Ot thousand, interest earnings decreased by $SgO thousand,
state aid decreased by $208 thousand and federal aid decreased by $306 thousand. Other financing
sources of $278 thousand decreased by $t.Z million as the Town Outside Village Fund made a one-time
transfer of $2 million to the Highway Fund during 2019 for additional road paving, and that decrease was
offset the 2020 premium on bond issuance o'f $276 thousand.

Total expenditures of $40.3 million decreased $2.4 million from the 2019 expenditures of $42.7 million.
Overall, personnel costs (salary and benefits) decreased by $1.6 million across all functions, street
maintenance materials/contractual costs decreased by $2.4 (primarily road construction costs) million,
snow removal materials decreased by $gzS thousand, and highway shared services decreased by $376
thousand. However, the Highway Fund incurred $2.5 million in unexpected costs associated with COVID
19 and Hurricane lsaias. Other financing uses (transfers out) of $27.0 million increased bV $Z.Z million, of
which $1.2 million pertains to higher debt service requirements and $975 thousand pertains to more
transferred to the Capital Projects Fund to finance various capital projects and reduce future debt
borrowings.
Refuse and Garbage Recycling Fund

The Refuse and Garbage Recycling Fund revenues of $43.9 million in 2020 were consistent with the 2019
revenues of $43.4 million, with an increase in departmental income of $798 thousand pertaining to
recycling revenue. Total expenditures of $45.8 million were $2.3 million more than the 2019 levels of $43.5
million, primarily due to $2.1 million more in garbage collection costs, $538 thousand less in in personnel
and related costs thousand.
Debt Service Fund
The Debt Service Fund receives transfers from the Town's other funds from which it pays the Town's debt
service requirements. lts fund balance at December 31,2020 was $20.9 million, which is restricted for
various operating funds future debt service requirements. During the 2020 year, the Debt Service Fund
received $10.3 million in real property taxes and other real property tax items, $63.8 million of transfers
from other funds, $22.3 million of premiums in connection with the proceeds from 2020 general obligation
bonds ($10.2 million restricted for debt service) and refunding bonds ($1t.0 million to refund debt) of $77.8
million. During 2020, the Town expended $78.6 million for principal and interest and debt costs ($S0.9
million and $22.2 million, respectively). During 2019, the Debt Service Fund received $60.1 million in
transfers from operating funds and expended $73.0 million for principal and interest and debt costs ($51.5
million and $21.5 million, respectively).

During 2020, the Town issued $77.78 million of general obligation refunding bonds (2020 Series C). The
proceeds from bond sale of $89.41 million, including a premium of $1 1.6 million were used to currently
refund $88.32 million o'f 2013 Series A and B public improvement general obligation bonds. The current
refunding will decrease future debt service payments by $g.g million.
Capital Projects Fund

ln addition to the operating fund expenditures, the Town has a S-year capital improvement plan that
replaces and improves infrastructure, buildings and equipment. This S-year plan strives to match current
year's borrowings with debt payments in order to stabilize long-term debt. The capital plan is integrated
with the Town's Multi-Year Plan (MYP) to project the impact of debt service.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS (continued)

Governmental Funds (continued)
Capital Projects Fund (continued)

During 2020, the Town expended $79.8 million for capital projects including equipment, land acquisitions,
roadway improvements, etc., which is a decrease of $9.8 million from 2019. ln response to the unknown
economic effects of COVID 19, the Town deferred to future years 31 capital projects with a budget o'f $17.4
million. During 2O20,the Capital Projects Fund received $19.7 million of revenue of which $13.9 was from
state and federal grants for specific projects and $5.5 million was from miscellaneous sources consisting of
grants from Suffolk County and others, environmental fees, and contributions. Other financing sources
consists of Series 2020 A and B general obligation bonds totaling $111.450 million, $5.8 million of premiums
on bond issuance to be used to finance capital projects and $5.6 million of transfers from operating funds to
reduce future debt borrowings.
The following schedule presents in summary all of the governmental funds' revenues and expenditures for the
years ended December 31,2020 and 2019, and the amount of change and percentage of total in relation to
the prior year.

2020

2019

lncrease

o/

(Decrease)

Change

/o

REVENUES
Real property

taxes

$

Other real property tax items

179,622,962

$

Non-property tax items
Departmental income

175,504,299

4,1

$

2,545,193

2,390,997

(1

8,663

2.35o/o

54, I 96)

-6.06%
-4.740/o

1

8,663,945

9,095,1 37

(431,192)

70,347,521

77,056,375

(6,708,854)

-8.71o/o

34,539

9,057,387

(3,922,848)

-43.31%

88,877

(2,264,724)

lntergovernmental charges

5,1

Use of money and property

5,924,153

8,1

lnvestment income (loss) from length of service award prograt

1,354,752

1,553,732

Licenses and permits

1,000,214

954,071

46,143

4.840k

Fines and forfeitures

1,367,665

2,461,351

(1,093,686)

-44.430k

Sale of property and compensation for loss

2,'165,088

4,033 653

(1,868,565)

-46.32o/o

Miscellaneous local sources

9,029,809

3,757,039

5,272,770

140.34o/o

(1

98,980)

-27.660h
1

00.00%

3,466,657

3,422,617

44,040

1.29Yo

State aid

34,053,480

30,808,022

3,245,458

10.530/o

Federal aid

23,174,800

25,012,007

(1,837 ,207)

-7.35o/o

(5,753,178)

-1.63%

lnterfund revenues

Total Governmental Fund Revenues

$ 347,696,582 $ 353,449,760 $
2019

2020

lncrease

%

(Decrease)

Change

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government support

$

43,902,888

$

45,724,984

$

17,972,126

I 5,396,064

Public safety

(1,822,096)

-3.98%

(2,576,062)

-14.330k

Health

12,477,225

11,457,100

1,020j25

Transporlation

39,219,264

44,466,299

(5,247,035)

1,821,453

'1,832,558

(1 1,1 05)

-0.610k

Culture and recreation

19,224,568

21,575,880

(2,351,312)

-1 0.90%

Home and community services

87,010,767

84,337,836

2,672,931

Employee benefits

16,872,371

17,718,983

(846,612)

-4.71Yo

79,769,177

89,578,456

(9,809,279)

-1 0.95%

Economic assistance and opportunity

Capital Outlay

8.90%
-11.800/o

3.170k

Debt Service:

10.41%

Principal

56,8'18,700

51,462,400

5,356,300

lnterest

21,787 ,474

21,284,976

502,498

2.360k

35,302

46.69%

(12,976,345)

-3.18%

425.117

Bond issuance costs
Total Governmental Fund Expenditures

$

394,725,068
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS (continued)

Governmental Funds (continued)
Final results for any given year may differ from that year's Adopted Budget. The following discusses significant
variances between lhe 2020 adopted budget and final budget and final budget and actual revenues and
expenditures for the General Fund:

Revenues - For 2020, total actual revenue, excluding other financing sources, of $129.6 million, was $3.8
million less than the adopted budget. The primary drivers of the variance were the result of the impact COVID
19 global pandemic had on the Towns departmental income, intergovernmental charges and the impact of
lower interest rates on interest earnings. This was partially offset by an increase in mortgage tax revenue as
refinancing was attractive given the lower interest rates. As Management closely monitored 2020 economic
environment the Town reduced total budgeted revenues by $11.3 million lo $122.1 million, with the most
significant adjustments to departmental and intergovernmental charges of $11.6 million of which landfill and
recycling charges (departmental income and intergovernmental charges) accounted for $9.6 million of it and
use of money and property of $1.4 million. Overall budgeted revenue for state aid was increased by $2.3
million as mortgage tax revenue budgetwas increased by $2 million. Actual revenues of $129.6 million were
$7.5 million more than the final budget of $122.1 million. This is primarily due state aid (primarily mortgage tax
revenue) exceeding expectation of $4.5 million, departmental revenue (primarily landfill revenue) of $1.9
million due to conservative budgeting and revenue from miscellaneous local sources (primarily gifts and
donations) of $1.1 million.
Expenditures -For2020, total actual expenditures, excluding otherfinancing uses, of $88.9 million, was $13.3
million less the original budget. ln May 2020 and throughout the balance of the year, due to the uncertainty of
the economic impact COVID 19 would have on the Town, Management reduced the budget and implemented
cost savings measures. The expenditure budget was reduced by $8.5 million from $102.2 million to $93.7
million. The most significant budget adjustments were for payroll and related benefits of $7.3 million and
materials, supplies and contractual costs of $2.8 million of which $1.4 pertains to landfill operational costs.

general government support, culture and recreation and home and community functions. However,
Management increased the budget for costs associated COVID 19 and Hurricane lsaias, declared
emergencies/disaster in the amount of $1.1 million. Actual costs of $88.9 million were $4.8 million less than
the final budget, with the greatest savings in general government support (primarily payroll and benefits),
culture and recreation (primarily payroll and benefits) and home and community functions (primarily payroll
and benefits and other landfill operational costs. With respect to current normal operating expenditures, the
Town implemented cost saving measures which resulted in positive budget variances in substantially all
categories.
Other financing uses consisting of transfers out of $35.1 million were $3.9 million more than originally planned,

as during the year, Town Board authorized a $3.6 million transfer to the Capital Projects Funds to finance
certain projects thereby relieving the need to borrow monies and which includes $'1.7 million transferred in
accordance with Local Law 'l8b-4 (see Note A4for additional information). Other financing sources were $1.2
million more than originally planned due to transfers from the Capital Projects Fund for unspent bond
procedures ($379 thousand) and premiums on bond issuance ($BSS1.
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMIINISTRATION

CapitalAssets
The capital projects program is a long-range program for the Town's capital spending. This program is only a
guide and each year's plan must be authorized by Town Board resolution before the money is available to be
spent. ln 2020, the Town's total adopted capital budget for new projects fund with bond and Town reserves
funds was $43.8 million, with a carry-forward budget for prior year projects of $'15.8 million for a total of $59.6
million. The Town's 2020 capital budget also includes $66.1 million of budgeted grant fund projects, with
$59.7 million of available budget. The total adopted capital budget of $59.6 million was a decrease from 2019

of about $27.9 million, primarily related to the following

decreases: $22.0 million for Landfill Cell 6

Construction, $2.8 million for a Town Hall Roof Replacement project, Town Hall Parking Lot Repaving, Town
Hall Elevator Upgrade and Town Hall Cooling Tower Refurbishment; $.7 million for Town Wide Fuel System
Replacements and a significant decrease of $'13.2 million in carryover projects. These decreases in capital
projects were offset by various increases including Highway Road Resurfacing, 5 Corner lntersection Road,
Drainage & Traffic Safety lmprovements, Street Light Energy Efficiency lmprovements, and Dock & Marina
lmprovements of 10.8 million.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (continued)
Capital Assets (continued)
The chart below summarizes the Town's governmental activities investment in capital assets

lnvestment in Capital Assets
tn

progrc3s

Buildings and
imp.ovamcnta
,l4yo

Land and

dcvclopmcnt rights
62Vo

Machinery and

cquipment
2.

I

n

frastructu rc
300h

Websfte and soltrflare
Less than 17o

ln2O2O, the Town of Brookhaven's major governmentalactivities capital asset additions, excluding amounts
received from contributions, were as follows:

General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Home and community services

11,703,000
3,876,000

$

738,400
35,959,000
8,807,000
21 307 ooo
82,390,400

$

The following presents the Town's investment in capital assets as of December 31 ,2020 and 2019
2019

2020

Governmental Activities

$

Land and development rights

Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure
Website and software

684,044,094

$

14,788,808

378,333,948
1,074,364,132

346,600,558
120,439,810
1,027,762,507

5,449,466

5,080,528

2,281,376,403

2,199,767,811

'124,395,955

Total CapitalAssets

903,764,308

967,380,641

Less accum ulated depreciation
Governmental Activities - Total Net Capital Assets

$

670,186,378
29,698,030

1,313,995,762

$

1,296,003,503

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMIINISTRATION (continued)
Debt Administration

Long-Term Debt
As of December 31 , 2020, and 2019, the Town had following total long{erm bonded debt outstanding which is
backed by the full faith and credit of the Town:

2020
$

General obligation bonds, exclusive of premiums

585,345,000 $

2019
541 ,253,700

During 2020,lhe Town issued 2020 Series A and B of general obligation bonds totaling $111.450 million to
finance various public improvements and issued $77.780 million of 2020 Series C refunding bonds. The
proceeds from refunding bond sale of $77.780 million, including a premium of $11.6 million were used to
currently refund $88.320 million of 2013 Series A and B public improvement general obligation bonds. The
current refunding will decrease future debt service payments by $8.3 million.
ln October 2020, Standard & Poor's reaffirmed the Town's general bond ratings sf "[.,{,{", the highest possible
designation, which allows the Town to borrow in the future at the lowest possible interest rates. Standard &

Poor's stated in their report dated October 16, 2O2O Ihat the town

of

Brookhaven has very strong

management, very strong economy, strong budgetary performance and strong budgetary flexibility. The Town

has continued its positive performance, changed its revenue and expenditure make-up and identifies
significant opportunities for cost savings to maintain balanced operations and provide necessary residential
services.

On October 15, 2020, Moody's reaffirmed the Town's Aaa "stable outlook" in recognition of "The financial
position will remain sound for the near-term driven by conservative budgeting and strong fiscal management".
Debt Limit - The Town has the power to contract indebtedness for any Town purpose so long as the principal
amount thereof, subject to certain limited exceptions, shall not exceed seven percent of the average full
valuation of taxable real estate of the Town, and subject to certain enumerated exclusions and deductions
such as water and certain sewer facilities and cash or appropriations for current debt service.

The constitutional method for determining full valuation is calculated by taking the assessed valuation of
taxable real estate as shown upon the latest completed assessment roll and dividing the same by the
equalization rate as determined by the State Board of Real Property Services
The State Legislature is required to prescribe the manner by which such ratio shall be determined. Average full
valuation is determined by taking the sum of the full valuation of the last completed assessment roll and the
four preceding assessment rolls and dividing such sum by five. Percentage of debt contracting power
exhausted at December 31,2020 was 15.27o/o.

Additional information on the Town's debt activity can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES
The Town's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 2021 budget,
tax rates, and fees that will be charged. One of those factors is the economy. The local economy in the Town
of Brookhaven, unlike some of its peers, has experienced robust economic development and is well positioned
for continued growth. The Town's commercial and residential real estate values have seen an uptick over the
last year and it is expected that the overall assessed valuation will continue to grow as significant construction
projects get added to the tax rolls. The full valuation of the Town increased by $1.6 billion in 2020 over 2019.
Wealth levels in the Town continue to exceed national averages according to US Census estimates.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES (continued)

As such, the 2021 Adopted Budget included increases in non-Property Tax Revenues in the areas of Parks
Fees, Building Permits, and Zoning revenues. The recovery throughout the United States was reflected in the
New York State Property Tax Cap rate o'f 1.560/o for fiscal year 2021.
The Town has many large employers that provide professional positions for many residents. ln particular, the
State University at Stony Brook (and its hospital), Brookhaven National Laboratory, and John T. Mather
Hospital, Brookhaven Memorial Hospital, and the Three Village and William Floyd School Districts, are just a
few examples of high-end employers providing high paying jobs in both the public and private sector.
The Town has a master plan for development which is annually updated to reflect changes in population and
growth over the past few years. This plan affords a coordinated approach to meeting the Town's development
goals while at the same time protecting the Town's underground water supply and other natural resources and
preserving the generally high quality of life of the Town's residents. The plan calls for suburban residential
development and economic development of clean, light industry and service industries such as electronics,
pharmaceuticals and technology, as well as funding for open space acquisitions.

ln 2020, the IDA/LDC closed on eight economic development projects, which included manufacturing, solar
projects, retirement communities, community hospital and assisted living facilities. These IDA/LDC supported
projects will create and retain more than 3,000 permanent and construction jobs and bring into the Town
private investments totaling more than $352 million. These projects include Bloom Energy, the first Fuel Cell
project in the Town; Expansion of Jefferson Ferry Continuing Care Retirement Community; Long lsland
Community Hospital, refinance of existing bonds; Agilitas roof{op solar at Town Hall; D&F 100% affordable
rental housing in North Bellport; On the Commons Senior Housing; Brightview Assisting Living Facility; and
lnterstate Mechanical, a manufacturer and fabricator of large mechanical systems.
ln 2010, New York State Legislature and the Governor enacted legislation that established a "Property Tax
Cap" on the amount a local government's or school district's property tax levy can increase each year. Under
this law, the growth in the property tax levy is capped at 2 percent, or the rate of inflation, whichever is less.
The Town's 2021 Adopted Budget, like the 2020,2019,2018,2017, and 2016 budgets, was in full compliance
with the tax cap.
ln 2018, the Town absorbed the former Village of Mastic Beach, which dissolved effective December 31, 2017 .
The Town was awarded the New York State Citizen Empowerment Tax Credit of $1 million to help offset these
costs annually. The Town has focused on improving road conditions and safety within the boundaries of the

former Village, moved to protect environmentally sensitive areas, and aggressively addressed quality of life
issues. ln 2019, as the wind down of the former Village ended, the Town returned nearly $300 in Village
Property Taxes to the typical property owner.
For 2021, the Supervisor put forth a conservative budget to take into account the potential impact of the
COVID-19 Pandemic. The 2021 Adopted Budget used no surplus to balance the budget for the six major
funds. The Town utilized very little surplus in all other special funds and continues its focus on the increase to
non-property tax revenues, and the identification of operational efficiencies through technology advancements.
The 2021 Adopted Budget, is the sixth consecutive year there was no use of Fund Balance in the General
Fund, fully funds the snow removal budget for the fifth year in a row and maintains full-time staffing and all
constituent services.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES (continued)
Other highlights of the 2021 General Fund's Adopted Budget include

The General Fund's levied taxes in 2021 totaled $27.1 million and were almost 10% higher than the
tax levy from 2020.
a

The 2021 expenditure budget for the General Fund was more than 2020 primarily due to employee
compensation increases related to minimum wage and union step increases, higher retirement
contributions over 2020 for current employees, offset by increases in departmental revenues such as
permit fees.

a

The 2021 General Fund revenue budget, excluding property taxes, decreased from the 2020 adopted
budget by $5.4 million, primarily related to the COVID-19 pandemic in fiscal year 2020.

The Town of Brookhaven continues to monitor the economic impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic very closely
and continues to take precautionary measures to reduce expenditure budgets for both the Operating and
Capital funds for fiscal year 2021. Non-Property Tax Revenues were negatively impacted in the 2021 Adopted
Budget due the lingering impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic.
Several Town initiatives have been implemented over the year in the Operating Funds that reduced the 2021
Operating Budget for both Employee Costs and Contractual spending, resulting in: , including the following:
the Town defunded 25 fulltime vacant positions in fiscal year 2021, representing an estimated savings
of $1.6 million in the current year.

an ExiVRetirement lncentive program was offered to all fulltime employees on May 15,2020 if they
exited the Town's employment by September 30, 2020, and 26 employees participated. These
positions were not replaced in fiscal year 2021, saving an estimated $700 thousand in2020, and $2.1
million on an annual basis.

.

the layoff and abolishment of 70 Part Time positions on May 5, 2020, as well defunding an additional
58 Part Time positions led to an additional revision to the 2021 Operating budget of $1.2 million in
savings.

The Town will continue to monitor closely the 2021 economic environment and the global COVID-19 Pandemic
situation, and take the proactive measures as required to ensure the strong financial condition of the Town of
Brookhaven.
CONTACTING THE TOWN'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's accountability for the money it receives. lf
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Town's
Commissioner of Finance, Tamara Branson, at One lndependence Hill, Farmingville, NY 11738.
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TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
GOVERNMENT-WI DE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31,2020

Governmental
Activities

Primary Governmental
Business-Type
Activities

Non-major
Component
Unit

Total

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cagh and cash equivalents

$

305,512,803

$

61

0,336

$

1,574,082
9,577,023

Cash - restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Property taxes receivable
lnsurance escrow deposits
State and federal aid receivables
Due from other governments
Prepaids and other assets
lnventory of material and supplies

306,123,139

$

1,574,062

3,172,505

267,013

9,577,023
122,107,208

122,107,208
477,672
8,919,489
7,325,422

477,672

2,979,754

7,899

8,919,489
7,325,422
2,987,653

34,465

460,918,035

3,473,983

1,826,367

Total Current Assets

618,235

460,299,800

Non-Current Assets:
Receivables - rehabilitation loans and other

1,035,000
10,334,732
698,832,902
61 162.860

1,035,000
10,334,732
698,832,902
615,162,860

Length of service award program plan assets
Non-depreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net

Total Non-Current Assets

1.325.365.494

Total Assets

1, 785.665.294

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension - employees' retirement system
Pension - length of service award program
Deferred charges on debt refundings
Other post employment benefits (OPEB) - healthcare benefits

-0618,235

1.786.283.529

3,473,983

296,295

93,1 50,638

46,070,936
1,736,647
5,448,438
93,1 50,638

146,406,659

146,406,659

296,295

46,070,936
1,736,647

5,448,438

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

-0-

1,32s,36s,494

LIABILITIES
Current Liabllities:
Accounts payable, including retainage payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Due to other governments
Claims and judgments payable
Unearned revenues
Guaranty, bid and escrow deposits
Noncurrent liabilities due within one year

3,640

30,661,800

3,947,574
462,141
7,065,000

831,672
12,520,484
64,2'15,180

Total Current Liabilities

1

3,040

19,703,851

30,665,440
3,947,574
462,141
7,065,000
831,672
12,520,484
64.215.180
119,707,491

1

03,352

261,627
9,000

373,979

Noncurrent Liabilitles:
Noncurrent liabilities due in more than one year

Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Service concession arrangements
Real property taxes
Pension - employees' retirement system
Pension - length of service award program
Other post employment benefits (OPEB) - healthcare benefits
Deferred charges on debt refundings

1,267,163,294

-0-

1.267j63294

403,804

1,386,867,1 45

3,640

1,386, 870.785

777 783

1,035,000
190,268,748
1,796,034
2,084,356

1,035,000
190,268,748
1,756,034
2,084,356

47,722,479

47,722,479
1,683,197

1,683,197

Total Defened lnflows of Resources

-0-

244,589,814

NET POSITION
Net investment in capltal assets
Restricted:
Home and community services
West Meadow Beach - Nonexpendable
Capital projects
Landfill post-closure costs
Debt service
Other
Unrestricted

Position

$

716,527,550

2,020,593

2,020,593

300,614,994

See notes to the financial statements.
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244,589,814

716,527,550

18,091

1,4A6J72

1,466,172
3,377,980
17,294,630
22,068,811
258,936
(462.399.678)

Total Net

18,091

614,595

$

3,377,980
17,294,830
22,068,811
258,936
(461,785,083)

614,595 $ 301,229,589 $

2,974,404
2,974,404

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
GOVERNMENT-WI DE FI NANCIAL STATEMENT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31,2020

Net (Expense) Revenues and

Function/Proqram

Charges for
Services

Expenses

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Govemmental Activities:
General govemment support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic assistance and opportunity
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Debt interest and other related costs

$

$

59,456,149
26,000,436
14,831,135
77.974,724

$

3,168,414
10,474,244
432,537

Total Govemmental Activities

355.267.590

80_760_506

20 003

346 768

20.003

346.768

$

3,711,785
1

244,408
235,117
24,1@,O97
78.273

1,406,50

Component

(50,1 12,1 16)

$

1,725,966)
(12,860,793)
(65,209,413)
(1,686,500)
(31,557,750)
(34,1 91,099)
(16.432.212\

1

193,7&

Q23.775849\

22124.710

tlnils

Total

AcJivities

(s0,1 12,1 16)

1,725,966)
(12,860,793)
(65,209,413)
(1,686,500)
(31,5s7,750)
(34,191,09e)

(1

2,955,314

28.602.525

Business-type

Govemmental
Aclivities

3,861.364

$

8,129

1,354,681

4,377,344
60,949,286

2,314,255

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

44,441
1,537,805

'1,930,908

36,363,957
122,195,796
16.5't0.485

ch

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and
Contributions

(1

(6.432.212\
$

-G.

(223.775.8/.9\

326.765

326.765

BUSINES9ryPE ACTIVITIES
Economic assistance and opportunity
Total Business-Type Activities
Total Primary Govemment

$

Total Component Units

s
$

NON-MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
Economic assistance and opportunity

3s5.287_593

$ A1107.274 S 28.602.525 $

922.7& S
922.746

-G

-G.

$

-G

326.765

(223,775,e49\

22.128.7'tO

326.765

(223,M9,@4\

326,765

$

777.824

777.824

-G.

S

$

n44.922]'

644.922\

-0-

General Revenues
'179,598,396

Real property taxes
Other real property tax items
Non-property tax items
lnterest and investment eamings
Sale of property and compensaiion for I'
State and local aid - unrestricted
Gain on disposition of capital assets
Other

2,394,168
8,663,945
1,682,770
896,839
22,251,949
79,365
279 427

Total General Revenues and Transfers

21

Net Position at Beginning of Year

5.846.859

305,681,91

?.862.O73

Net Position at Beginning ot Year, As Restated

308 543 984

See notes to the financial statements
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1.480

$

300.614,994

26,194

215.848.339

328.245

26.194
(114 7)A\

ff.600.745)

286,350

1

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, GASB Statement No. 84

Net Position at End of Year

1,480

(7.928.990)

Change in Net Position

179,598,396
2,394,168
8,663,945
1,684.250
896,839
22,251,949
79,365
275 427

3,093,132

305,968,261
2.862.O73
308.830.334

286_350

$

614_595

$

301.229.589

3.093.132

$

2.974.4U

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31,2020

Geneml
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash - restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Property taxes receivable
Due fiom other tunds
lnsurance escrow deposits
State and federal aid receivables
Due from other govemments
Prepaids
Inventory of material and supplies
Length of service award program plan investments

$

85,174,567

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Refuse and
Hiohwav
Garbaoe

To^rn Outside
Mllaoe

$

9,019,138
19,510,470
2,615,262

35,163,454

$

111,742
6,079,519
327

63,717,531

$

92,843
43,719,688
6,975

Debt
Service

19,923,466

$

228,057
30,550,601

Nonmajor
Govemmental
Funds

Capital
Proiects

24,502,367

$

51,620,873

$

't71,233

25,410,545

$

1,574,062
65,103
1 5,762,530

47,640

12,500
6,.t84,400

Totals

2,093,750

1

13,537

305,512,803
1,574,062
9,577,O23
122:tO7,208
5,001,084

477,672

477,672
77,780
6,939.762
1,582,197
'147,252

49,285
56,095
388,205

99,681

719,584
1,163,789

TotalAssets$125.5,14.100$41.848.627$109.520.091

7,481,091

81,927
54
70,818
257,716

$

51,112,639

223,U6

3,607

37,200
$

31

',t74107

S

900

$

9,099,887

$

61 503

8,919,€9

1,229,406
2,877
64,4s8
220,410
10 334 732
54

7,325,422
2.425,262
1,426,367
10.334 732

777.660 $

475 4a1.'124

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to othertunds
Due to other govemments
Uneamed revenue
Guaranty, bid and escrow deposits
Claims and judgments payable

$

3,007,692

$

Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Real property taxes
Other- grants
Total Defened lnflows of Resources
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricled
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Liabilities, Defened lnflows
of Resources and Fund Balances

s

$

1.548.163

$

2,572,539

211,973

2,823,694
't63,037

1,523,796

$

568,589
1,026,892
107,890
120,350

3,263,933
't,673,537
267,507
462,755

115,'t 90

16.322.063

9,693.319

7 903 239

30,618,819
50.000

I,O72,702

30 668 8tS

s 072702

68.983.528

46.741.424

1,729,449

388,205
460,278

328,5U

1.228.890

900.000

68,983,528

3 101

021

S

46,781,828

14 767 .619

-0-

10,231,473

3 352.280

55.140.M1

24,867,599

190,555,949
316.970

,j'

1qn R72

266.970

571,260
55 81 7 679

22,2U,123

1,883,373
1,093,952
29,655,999

7Ra ?rlR

23.082_606

32.633.324

18,399,504
't0,860,556
5,001,084
462,14'l
431,672
12,520,444
7.065.000

4,763

8,534,102
90.000

2,670,ffi4

6_O75_000

125.544.'tOO

$

7,794

20,4U,830

Total Fund Balances

396,272
628,064
37,087

3,664,394
1,936,405
78,950
24a,567
't,31'1,055

qrq

10.231.473

,AA q7N

20,942,6U

46,297,565
134,546

1,751,040
12,423,988
12,3€2,753

101,653,247
65,879,037

20.942.6U

46.469.31

26.557.781

229.467.7U

37,200

900,356

RA7

sqq

6,1

1

7,801

55_817.679

S

41.A4A.627

$

109.520.0S1 $

51.112.639

See notes to financialstatements
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$

31.174.107

$

1

61.503.900

$

54.777.660

S

475.4a1j24

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of December 31 ,2020

$

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

229,467,764

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental fund activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:

$

Capital assets - non-depreciable
Capital assets - depreciable
Accumulated depreciation

698,832,902
1,582,543,501
(967,380,641)
1,3'13,995,762

The asset is not an available resource and, therefore, is not reported in the funds:
Prepaid expenses

154,492

Deferred outflows of resources not reported in the governmental funds

146,406,659

Long-term liabilities applicable to the Town's governmental activities
are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are
not reported in the government funds:

General obligation bonds payable, inclusive of premiums
Employees' retirement net pension liability

(653,166,018)
(64,752,767)
(10,667,054)
(1,473,215)
(18,179,442)
(13,265,639)

Length of service award pension liabilities
Deferred compensation
Compensated absences
Claims and judgments payable
Estimated liability for landfill closure
and postclosure care costs
Pollution remediation obligation
Total other postemployment benefits liability
Accrued interest payable
Retainage payable

(33,543,250)
(761,280)
(535,569,80e)
(3,e47,574)
(1,401,740)

(1,336,727,788)
Deferred inflows of resources not recorded in the governmental funds.
Receivables, service concession arrangements are not available to pay for
current period expenditures and therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred lnflows, service concession arrangements not reported in the funds.

(53,286,066)

1,035,000
(1

-0Some revenues are not available in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

604,171

$

Net Position of Governmental Activities

See notes to financial statements.
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300,614,994

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2020

$

lntergovemmental charges
Use of money and property
Investment loss from length of servie aMrd progEm
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Sale of property and @mpenstion for loss
Mis@llaneous lo€l sour@s
lnterfund revenues

Hidhwev

Villaqe

General
REVENUES
Real property taxes
Other real property tax items
Non-property ta items
Departmental in@me

24,409,514 $

8,038,927

Nonmaior

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Refuse and

Tom Outside

$

Gerbade

69,439,553 $

1,122,023
8,663,945

3,372

958,250

55,82{6,154

12,447,57A

5,075,929
4,235,127

112,923
46,610

177,767

397,O20

304,693

82,O48

613,473

152,il2

1,211,923

1,848,039
1,243,327

1,894
1,886,877

Debt

42,4.36j00

t

$

117

Capital
P.oiects

Setuie

Govemmental
Totals

Funds

$

10,128,388
'145,104

24,770,480 $

2,390,997

755,376

70,u7,521

601,544

5,134,539
5,924,153
1,354,752

8,663,945
1,185,490

$
't38,982

16A,702

12,OOO

205,011

1,354,752

1,OOO,2'14

1,367,66s

207,M

3,200
6,774

95,192

5,723

17,241

2,OO2

5,il8,884

191,438

3,466,657

2..450.808

State aid
Federal aid

'129

Total Revenues

179,622, 2

160,131

4,129

32416/

49,441
a17

RA NAN

5*922

23900644

71 985 735

43 A55 592

3,21,'135

2,$4,745

139,958

11,463,175

81,927
10.442.1

2.412.82

20.u7.907

19.737.144

44.147.351

2,'16s,088
9,O29,809
3,466,657
34,053,480

23.174.800
347.696.582

EXPENDITURES

Curent:
General government support
Public safety
Health

38,M8,235
3,901,437

10,920,070
593,705

32,670,305

Transportation

43,902,888

4,322,707

39,215,264
1,a21,453
19,224,568

1,421,453

E@nomic assistance and opportunity
Culture and rseation
Home and rcmmunity seryices
Employee benefits

'19,'t94,569

29,999
45,698,736

3,988,930

13,563,550
10,100,714

23,759,551

5,2c6,279

1,565,378

79,769,177

Capital Outlay
Debt Servi€:
Principal
Bond issuan@ @sts

Total Expenditures

88.856.2'10

20.289.214

40.341.369

40.730.712

3.611.426

3'1.644.366

379,326
(35,075,082)

(1,083,930)

45.838.694

oTHER F|NANC|NG SOURCES (USES)
TEnsfers in
Transfers out
Debt pro@eds
Premiums on obligations

2%,455

n.942102\

4251't7

79 031 291

79769'177

(68.589.097)

(60.032.033)

7 5?A)42

5,643,181

406,546
(5,891,653)

63,792,477
(11,5€.2)

1,699
(26,996,89O)

u,a44

(1,460,567)

22,243,417

276,478

dnently refunded
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See notes to the financialstatements.
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TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended December 31,2020

$

Net Change in Fund Balances

83,112,043

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The amount
by which capital outlay exceeds depreciation in the current period is:

$

Capital asset additions
Depreciation expense
Disposition of capital assets

82,842,680
(64,830,821)
(19,600)
17,992,259

Net change in deferred outflows of resources not reported in the funds:
Deferred charges on debt refundings
Pension related amounts
Other postemployment benefits

(728,239)
31,099,801
28,151,038
58,522,600

Differences in revenues recognized in the statement of activities and
the fund level due to the measurement focus/basis of accounting differences
between the government-wide statements and fund level statements.

(873,872)

The issuance of longterm debt and increase in obligations under capital
leases provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of long term debt and capital leases consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds, neither
transaction has any effect on net position:
Bonds issued
Repayment of bond principal
Net pension liability- employees' retirement system
Pension liabilities - length of service award program
Compensated absences
Deferred compensation
Claims and judgments
Estimated liability for landfill closure and post closure care costs
Pollution remediation obligation
Total other postemployment benefits liability

(189,230,000)
145,1 38,700
(47 ,261,076)
(1,344,586)
286,587
222,450
(1,7ee,403)
(1,069,710)
230,591

(70,578,671)
(165,405,118)

Premiums on bond issuances recognized in governmental funds statements
when issued and capitalized and amortized in the Statement of Activities.

(22,641,638)

Net change in deferred inflows of resources not reported in the funds:

4,458,449

Pension related amounts
Other postemployment benefits
Deferred charges on debt refundings

16,670,277
(265,653)
20,863,073

Other long-term amounts (accrued interest and retainage payable) are not due and payable
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

501,663

$

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

See notes to the financial statements
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(7,928,990)

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

December 31,2020

Town of Brookhaven
Local Development
Corporation

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Prepaid expenses

$

Total Current Assets

610,336
7,899
618,235

LIABILITlES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

3,640

Total Current Liabilities

3,640

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

614,595

Total Net

See notes to the financial statements.
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Position

$

614,595

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
Year Ended December 31, 2020

Town of Brookhaven
Local Development
Corporation
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

$
Total Operating Revenues

346,768
346,768

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
lnsurance
Professional fees

2,247

11,226
6,530
Total Operating Expenses

20,003

lncome from Operations

326,765

NON.OPEMTING REVENUES
1,480

lnterest income

Total Non-Operating Revenues

1,480

Change in Net Position

328,245
286,350

Net Position at Beginning of Year
Net Position at End of

See notes to the financial statements.
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Year

$

614,59s

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

Year Ended December 31,2020

Town of Brookhaven
Local Development
Corporation

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from projects

$

Cash payments for contractual expenses
Net Cash From Operating Activities

346,768
(20,0e2)
326,676

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest income

1,480
Net Cash From lnvesting Activities

1,480

Net Change in Cash

328,1 56

282,180

Cash at Beginning of Year
Cash at End of

Year

$

610,336

$

326,765

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME FROM OPERATIONS TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
lncome from operations
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to net cash
from operating activities:
(lncrease) in assets:
Prepaid expenses
lncrease in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

(404)
315
Net Cash From Operating Activities

See notes to the financial statements
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$

326,676

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
December 31,2020

Custodial
Fund
ASSETS
Gash
Real property taxes receivable for other governments
Length of service award program plan assets

$
Total Assets

485,556,295
1,074,955,358
022 058
1,561,533,71'l

LIABILITIES
1,560,511,653

Due to other governments

TotalLiabilities
NET POSITION
Restricted

1,560,511,653

1,022,058

Total Net

See notes to the financial statements.
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Position

$

1,022,058

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
Year Ended December 31,2020

Custodial
Fund
ADDITIONS
Real property taxes collected for other governments
Other taxes collected for other governments
Over remittance of taxes
Length of service award program plan - contributions
Length of service award program plan - investment earnings

$

Total

Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Payments of real property taxes to other governments
Refund of over remittance of taxes
Length ofservice award program plan - payments and expenses

1,695,530,971
4,043,556
3,866,651
23,927
133,747
1,703,598,852

1,699,574,529
3,866,649
33,828

Total Deductions

1,703,475,006

Net lncrease in Fiduciary Net Position

123,846
898,212

Net Position at Beginning of Year
Net Position at End of

See notes to the financial statements.
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Year

$

1.022.058

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31,2020

A.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Town of Brookhaven (the "Town"), which was established in 1655, is governed by Town Law and other

general laws of the State of New York and various local laws. The Town Board is the legislative body
responsible for overall operations. Town Board members, elected by their respective districts, and the
Supervisor were elected for a term of two years. The Supervisor serves as the Chief Fiscal Officer. The
Receiver of Taxes and the Town Clerk are elected for a term of four years and the Superintendent of
Highways is elected for a term of two years. Pursuant to local law, effective November 6,2018, upon the next
election, the Town Board, Supervisor, Receiver of Taxes, Town Clerk and Superintendent of Highways, will be
elected for a four-year term, and may serve up to three terms regardless of whether said terms are served

or

nonconsecutively. The Town Board appoints
Attorney, the Assessor, and the Planning Board.

consecutively

the Commissioner of Finance, the Town

The Town provides a full range of municipal services either directly or through Town-operated special districts,
including public safety, planning, zoning, code enforcement, highway construction and maintenance, street
lighting, programs for the aging, youth services, parks and recreation, garbage pick-up and disposal, and
administration of certain State and Federal grant programs.

The basic financial statements of the Town of Brookhaven have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America ('GAAP') as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The more significant of the Town's policies are described below.

1.

REPORTING ENTITY
lncluded in the Reoortinq Entity
The financial reporting entity consists of: (a) the primary government, which is the Town of Brookhaven;
(b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable; and (c) other organizations
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that
exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The decision to include a potential component unit in the Town's reporting entity is based on several
criteria, including legal standings, dependency and financial accountability. Component units are classifled
as either blended component units or discretely presented component units. The current guidance also
distinguishes the component units as either major or non-major component units.
Blended Component Units - though legally separate entities, these component units are, in substance,
part of the primary government's operations. The blended component unit serves or benefits the primary
government almost exclusively. Financial information from these units is combined with that of the primary
government. The Town reports one blended component unit in these financial statements as follows:

The Town of Brookhaven Local Development Corporation ("LDC") was created pursuant to Section
1411 o'f the New York Not-for-Profit Law. The LDC was established to facilitate financing for not-forprofit organizations such as colleges, hospitals, libraries and those organizations serving people with
disabilities. The LDC provides assistance in the form of federally tax-exempt bond financing and
mortgage recording exemptions. The Town Board appoints the LDC's board members. The LDC is
included in the Town's financial statements as a blended component unit in the proprietary fund
statements. Complete financial statements of the LDC can be obtained from its administrative office
located at One lndependence Hill, Farmingville, NY 11738.
Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the Town. They are flnancially accountable to
the primary government or have a relationship such that exclusion would cause the Town's financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete.
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TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31,2020

A.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.

REPORTING ENTITY (continued)
The Town reports the Town of Brookhaven lndustrial Development Agency ("lDA" or "Agency") as a nonmajor discretely presented component unit. The Agency was created as a New York State public benefit
corporation and was established pursuant to Article 1BA of the New York General Municipal Law, as
amended, and Chapter 358 of the Laws of 1970, as amended. The IDA was created to promote and
assist with the groMh of business with the Town, resulting in increased employment opportunities and
commercial tax base. The IDA provides benefits to these businesses in the form of real property tax
abatements, sales and mortgage exemptions. The Town's governing board appoints the IDA's Board of
Directors, which results in an interdependency with the Town. The IDA has been considered a discretely

presented component unit. Complete financial statements of the Agency can be obtained from its
administrative office located at One lndependence Hill, Farmingville, NY 1 1738.

The Town's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Town as a whole),
a discretely presented component unit and fund financial statements (with an emphasis on the Town's
major funds).

2.

GOVERNMENT.WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Town as a whole, with separate
columns for the primary government's governmental activities and businesstype activities, as well as
the non-major discretely presented component unit. All fiduciary activities are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements.

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. ln
the government-wide financial statements, the governmental activities incorporate data from the
governmental funds while businesstype activities incorporate data from a government's enterprise
funds. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental fund and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
The government-wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of
a given function are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function, 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operation or capital requirements of a
particular function, and 3) interest earned on grants or capital projects that is required to be used to
support a particular program or project. Taxes and other items not properly included among program
revenues are reported as general revenues. The Town does not allocate indirect expenses to specific
functions in the Statement of Activities. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements, except for interfund services provided and
used.

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide information about the Town's funds, including its fiduciary funds.
Separate statements for each fund category

-

governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary are presented. The

emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balances, revenues, and expenditures, which are
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance
with special regulations, restrictions or limitations.
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TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31,2020
A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)
The various funds are presented by type in the fund financial statements. Certain funds of the Town are
utilized to account for resources derived from and/or expenditures applicable to an area less than the
entire Town. Accordingly, the Town maintains the following fund types:

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions are
financed. The acquisition use and balances of expendable financial resources and the related liabilities
are accounted for through governmental funds. The measurement focus of the governmental funds is
upon determination of financial position and changes in financial position. Government funds are further
classified as major and non-major funds.
The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

-

General Fund is the principal operating fund of the Town. This fund is used to account for all
financial resources not accounted for in and reported in another fund.

-

is used to account for revenues and expenditures for certain services
provided to the area of the Town located outside of incorporated Villages.

Town Outside Village
Highway Fund

-

is used to account for revenues and expenditures for highway purposes

and

consists of both the highway town-wide fund and the highway part-town fund. The major areas of
expenditures are repairs and improvements, machinery, snow and miscellaneous. The major source
of revenue is property taxes.

Refuse and Garbage Fund

-

is used to account for revenues and expenditures for

garbage

collection. The major source of revenue is property taxes.

Debt Service Fund

-

is used to account for and report financial resources that are

restricted,

committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest and for the financial resources that
are being accumulated for principal and interest payments in future years. lt consists of two debt
service funds, one which accounts for specific open space debt and one which accounts for all other
debt service.

-

Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital assets.
Additionally, the Town reports the following non-major governmental funds

-

is used to account for Federal Aid for the following programs: Community
Development Block Grant Program, Low lncome Housing Program, Home lnvestment Partnership,
Community Development Emergency Solutions, and Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids.

Special Grant Fund

-

Special Miscellaneous Housing Trust Fund is used to account for resources which are restricted,
committed or assigned to promote and create decent, affordable housing for low and middle-income
residents.

Brookhaven Calabro Airport Fund
Airport.

- is used to account for the operations related to the Calabro
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TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31,2020

A.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANICAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continued)
Governmental Funds (continued)
Special District Funds - are used to account for taxes or other revenues, which are raised or received
to provide special services to areas that encompass less than the whole Town. The Special District
Funds consist of a number of separate districts, which are administered by the Town Board as
follows:
Fire Protection Districts:

Moriches

Water lsland

Ambulance Districts:
Blue Point / E. Patchogue E. Moriches /

Eastport Mastic
Mount Sinai
Manorville

Medford

Mastic Beach
South Country

Shirley
Water Supply Districts:
Stony Brook
Erosion Control Districts:
Davis

Pines

Park
Seaview

Fire lsland
Water lsland

Sewer Districts:

Holbrook

Brookhaven

Park Districts:
Ocean Bay

S. Setauket

Park

Refuse and Garbaqe Districts:
Davis Park
Cherry

Grove

Other Districts:
Street Lighting

District

Special Reserve Funds

Park

Point O'Woods

Brookhaven #2

Fire lsland Pines

Cherry Grove Dock District

-

Ocean Bay

Seaview-Ocean Bay Park Joint

Fire lsland Pines Dock
District

collect fees which are held in escrow and reserved for specific purposes.

The Town's non-major funds included the following special reserve funds:

Drainage Reserve Escrow
Highway Reserve Escrow
Escrow
Fund - is used to account for and report resources that are restricted pursuant to State

Park Reserve

Permanent
legislation. The principal portion of this fund must remain intact, but the earnings may be used to
achieve the objectives of the fund.

-

West Meadow Beach Endowment is used to account for monies restricted for preserving and
protecting West Meadow Beach. The principal portion of this fund must remain intact, but the
earnings may be used for preserving and protecting West Meadow Beach.

Proprietary Funds - ln general, proprietary funds are used to account for ongoing activities, which are
similar to those often found in the private sector.
The Town reports the Town of Brookhaven Local Development Corporation, a blended component unit,
as a major proprietary fund. The Town of Brookhaven Local Development Corporation is used to
account for operations to facilitate financing for not-for-profit organizations such as colleges,
hospitals, libraries and those organizations serving people with disabilities.

Fiduciary Funds (Not lncluded in Government-Wide Financial Statements) - The Fiduciary Funds are
used to account for assets held by the Town on behalf of others. The Custodial Fund is used primarily
to account for amounts due to other governments for general and school taxes collected.
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TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31,2020

A.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION
Measurement focus refers to what is being measured whereas the basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the flnancial statements. Basis
of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus
applied.

The government-wide and proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue once the grant has been awarded and all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. An exception to this policy is that emergency
disaster assistance grants awarded by the Federal Emergency Management Agency are recognized in
the year the Town receives the notification of project worksheet award ("Blue Book") and allowable
costs are incurred. However, if the Town has received the Blue Book and has received the grant
proceeds within sixty days of year-end, the revenue will be recognized in the year the expenditures are
incurred.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after the
year. However, landfill revenues, which are recorded when services are provided and grants and similar
items, are recognized as described above. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to net pension liability and length of service award program ("LOSAP') pensions, compensated
absences, deferred compensation, claims and judgments, landfill closure and postclosure care costs,
pollution remediation obligations and other postemployment benefits healthcare costs are recorded
when payment is due. General capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. lssuance of longterm debt is reported as other financing sources.
Revenues susceptible to accrual include State and Suffolk County local assistance at year end on behalf
of the Town, franchise fees, and charges for services, intergovernmental revenues and operating
transfers. Permits, fees, and other similar revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they
are not measurable until they are received in cash. ln those instances where expenditures are the prime
factor in determining eligibility for state and federal grants, revenues are recognized when the expenditure
is incurred or in the case of emergency disaster grants when the Blue Book is awarded. ln the Capital
Projects Fund, proceeds from the issuance of longterm debt is recognized as revenue upon receipt of the
proceeds.

Expenditures are recorded on the accrual basis except that (a) expenditures for prepaid expenses are
recognized when services are received; (b) principal and interest on indebtedness are recognized as

expenditures when due; (c) compensated absence, which vest or accumulate, and deferred
compensation are charged as expenditures when paid and (d) judgment and claims and retainage
payable are recorded when due and payable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31,2020

A.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION (continued)

Unearned revenues are those where asset recognition criteria have been met, but which revenue
recognition criteria have not been met.

Because governmental fund statements are presented using a measurement focus and basis of
accounting different from that used in the government-wide statements' governmental column, a
reconciliation is presented that briefly explains the adjustments necessary to reconcile ending net
position and the change in net position.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues from non-operating items. Operating revenues
generally result from providing and delivering services and/or goods in connection with the proprietary
fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses includes cost of personnel costs, materials
and supplies. All revenues not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues.
The flduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting.

4.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION/FUND BALANCE
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash consists of funds deposited in demand accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit

with maturities of less than three months. The Town participates in the Cooperative Liquid Assets
Securities System
cash equivalents.
Cash

- New York (NYCLASS). The investments

are highly liquid and are considered to be

- Restricted

The Town has approximately $1.57 million of restricted cash, of which approximately $1.47 million is
restricted for environmental education and preservation activities for the West Meadow Beach under
the terms of an endowment fund pursuant to New York State legislature and approximately $108,000
is restricted for the federally funded Family Self Sufficiency Program.
lnvestments - Restricted
The Town reports approximately $10.33 million of length of service award program plan assets which
consists of investments restricted for providing retirement like benefits under various length of service
award programs.

RECEIVABLES
Real property taxes are recognized as a receivable on the date of an enforceable lien and when billed.

Real property taxes are levied annually no later than December 1$ and are recognized as revenue
January 1$ of the year for which they were levied. The lien date is December 1"tof the same calendar
year the taxes are levied. Real property tax payments are due in two equal installments: the first half
payable December 1st preceding the yearforwhich the tax ls levied and the second half payable May
10th. The first half tax is payable without penalty until January 1Oth and the second half tax is payable
without penalty to May 31st. The Town has its own Assessor's Office whose responsibilities are
independent and distinct from those of the Receiver of Taxes ("Receiver"). The property tax receivable in
the Town's flnancial statements consists of taxes billed and uncollected at December 31,2020.
Additionally, the Town has recorded a receivable for property taxes receivable pertaining to the former
Village of Mastic Beach.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2020

A.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION/FUN D BALANCE (continued)

RECEIVABLES (continued

)

The Town assessment rolls are used for the levy of real property taxes for the Town and the school
districts, as well as by the County of Suffolk, New York, ("County") and by special districts based upon a
single tax bill.

The Receiver collects all taxes based on this single bill and distributes the proceeds to the Town
Supervisor ("Supervisor") prior to distributing the remaining balance collected to the County.
Responsibility for the collection of unpaid taxes remains with the County and, accordingly, the Town is
assured of 100% collection of real property taxes. The responsibility of transmitting school taxes to the
school districts rests with the Supervisor. The amounts billed on behalf of other municipalities are
considered a fiduciary activity and therefore have been accounted for within the Custodial Fund.

Other receivables include amounts due from Federal, State, and other governments or entities for
services provided by the Town, as well as amounts due pursuant to various grant and franchise
agreements. Receivables are recorded, and revenues recognized as earned or as specific program
expenditures are incurred, and eligibility requirements are met.
The Town in its normal course of business is subject to the risk that it may be unable to collect all
outstanding accounts receivable arising from user fees. Therefore, the Town has established an
allowance account totaling $85,31 1 .
DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS
During the course of operations, the Town has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual
balances outstanding at the year-end are reported as due to/due from other funds and advances to/from
other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made
in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements.
INVENTORY AND PREPAIDS
lnventory consists of fuel in storage tanks for use in Town vehicles, sand and salt, and other supplies
on hand and is valued at cost, using the first-in firstout method.
Prepaid items in the governmentalfunds are accounted for under the consumption method.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are reported as
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

ln the governmental funds, amounts reported as inventories and prepaid items are equally offset by
nonspendable fund balance amounts, indicating that they do not constitute "available spendable
resources" even though they are a component of net current assets.
CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Capital assets excluding land,
purchased or acquired having a cost of more than $5,000 are capitalized.
Land acquired priorto January 1,2015, was capitalized if land acquired through purchase ordonation
was at least one acre. Effective January 1, 2015, land acquired with a cost of more than $10,000, and
land donated having a fair value of $10,000 or more are capitalized. Donated assets are reported at
acquisition value as of the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that
significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized.
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION/FU ND BALANGE (continued)

CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation and
amortization on all assets are provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives:

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure
Website and software

20-50 years
5-20 years
1 5-30 years
5 years

lnfrastructure assets, consisting of certain improvements other than buildings, including roads, curbs,
sidewalks, drainage systems, street lighting and park structures, are capitalized along with other capital
assets.

lntangible assets lack physical substance, are nonfinancial in nature, and have an estimated useful life
extending beyond a single reporting period. The term depreciation, as used in these footnotes,
includes amortization of intangible assets.

ln the governmental fund financial statements capital assets are

recorded

as capital

outlay

expenditures in the governmentalfund upon acquisition.
LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM PLAN ASSETS
The Town sponsors length of service award program ('LOSAP') to provide retirement like benefits for

those volunteering time and services pertaining to ambulance services, in accordance with the plan
documents. LOSAP plans have been established for each ambulance company providing services by
taxing district. The Town is the sole sponsor of eight LOSAP plans and is joint sponsor of one LOSAP
plans. The assets set-aside to fund the retirement like benefits have been invested in an external
investment pool for all New York State ambulance LOSAP plans and the investments are managed by
the New York State Comptroller and an administrative agency. The assets in the external investment
pool are reported at fair value. The underlying assets of the investment pool includes money market
funds, corporate and foreign bonds, common equity securities, equity mutual funds and fixed income
mutualfunds.
GUARANTY, BID AND ESCROW DEPOSITS

The guarantee, bid and deposits liability consists of deposits received from customers, potential
vendors, or vendors, in an amount determined by the Town, to guarantee satisfactory performance
with the terms of a contract. The deposits are held in escrow and will be returned to customer or
vendor upon the Town's approval of performance with the terms of the contract. The deposit may be
forfeited to the Town if the work is not completed satisfactorily.
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

ln addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenditure/expense) until
that time. Deferred outflows of resources consist of deferred charges on prior years debt. advanced
refundings, pension related amounts pertaining to the employees' retirement system and length of service
award program, and the other postemployment benefits plan-healthcare.
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4.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION/FUND BALANGE (continued)
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (continued)
ln addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and balance sheet will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.
The Town's deferred inflows of resources consist of the following: unearned revenue pertaining to service
concession arrangement, real property taxes levied for the subsequent year, other unavailable revenue,
amounts related to various postemployment benefits the Town provides (employees' retirement system,
length of service award program and the other postemployment benefits plan-healthcare), and deferred
charges (gains) on debt refundings. ln the governmental funds, unavailable revenue represents amounts
that do not meet the availability criteria applicable to revenue recognition under the modified accrual basis
of accounting, with the largest component consisting of real property taxes levied for the subsequent year.
PREMIUMS OF DEBT ISSUANCE
Premiums related to the issuance of longterm debt are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of
the issue and are presented as part of the general obligation bonds payable in the non-current liabilities.
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

ln the government-wide financial statements, liabilities for longterm obligations consisting of general
obligation bonds, pension liabilities for the employees' retirement and LOSAP plans, compensated
absences, deferred compensation, estimated claims and judgments, the estimated liability for landfill
closure and postclosure care costs, pollution remediation obligations, and total other postemployment
benefits (healthcare) are recognized in the statement of net position.

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as gains/losses on early extinguishment of debt, are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds on a straight-line basis. Bonds payable are reported net of
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are recognized as an expenditure/outflow
of resources when incurred.

ln the governmental fund statements, only that portion of long-term obligations expected to

be

financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability. The face amount
of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. lssuance costs, whether or not withheld from actual debt proceeds received, are reported as
debt service expenditures.
NET POSITION AND EQUITY CLASSIFICATIONS

ln the government-wide and proprietary funds statements equity is classified as net position

and

displayed in three components:

a)

Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets.

b)

c)

consists of net position with constraints placed on its use either by ('1) external
Restricted
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments;
or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

-

Unrestricted

-

all other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net

investment in capital assets".
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4.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET
POSITION/FUND BALANCE (continued)
NET POSITION AND EQUITY CLASSIFICATIONS (continued)
ln the fund financials statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five classifications

of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these resources; they are 1)
nonspendable, 2) restricted 3) committed, 4) assigned, or 5) unassigned. The Town does not have
committed fund balance and not all the funds will necessarily have all the fund classifications noted
above.

a)

Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
(a) not in spendable form (i.e., prepaid items or inventories), or (b) will not convert to cash
within the current period (i.e., long-term receivables and financial assets held for resale), or (c)
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (i.e., the principal of a permanent
fund).

The Town's spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining three
classifications: restricted, assigned, and unassigned.

b) Restricted

fund balance reflects the constraints imposed on resources either (a) externally by
grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed
creditors,
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c) Assigned fund balance

reflects the amounts constrained by the Town's "intent" to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The Town Board has the authority
to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned fund balances include all
remaining amounts (except negative balances)that are reported in governmental funds, other
than the general fund, that are not classified as nonspendable and are neither restricted nor
committed.

d)

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. lt is also used to
report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCE FLOW ASSUMPTIONS

When outlays for a particular purpose can be funded from both restricted and unrestricted net position
resources it is the Town's policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted net position is applied.

When both restricted and unrestricted fund balance resources are available for use, it is the Town's
default policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources - committed, assigned and
unassigned - in order as needed and applicable.
FUND BALANCE POLICIES

The Town has, by resolution, and as amended January 2019, adopted a fund balance policy that
states the Town must maintain a minimum fund balance, exclusive of nonspendable fund balance,
equal to no less than a defined percentage of the total budgeted expenditures as follows:
General Fund

25o/o

Part-Town Fund
Highway Funds
Special Districts

20o/o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET
POSITION/FUND BALANGE (continued)
FUND BALANCE POLICIES (continued)

ln the event of an emergency that necessitates appropriation of fund balance which results in fund
balance, exclusive of nonspendable amounts, to fall below the above stated minimum thresholds, a
Town Board resolution is required. ln addition, subsequent to such appropriation, the Town Board will
immediately take measures to restore fund balance over a three-year period.
ln accordance with Local Law 18b-4, in any year where the General Fund is in compliance with the
above stated policy and where revenues collected, excluding application of surplus, exceed
expenditures, the excess revenues shall be allocated as follows:
Eighty percent of the excess shall remain in the General Fund and allocated as follows:
Fifty percent allocated to unassigned fund balance
Ten percent allocated to the solid waste management reserve
Ten percent allocated to the motor vehicle reserve
Ten percent allocated to the capital projects reserve

Twenty percent shall be transferred to the Joseph Macchia Environmental Preservation Capital
Reserve Fund, a component of the Capital Projects Fund.

The 2020 distributable excess revenues totaled $2,836,723. Accordingly, the distribution of Ihe 2020
excess revenues is as follows: of $1,134,689 from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund (Joseph

Macchia Environmental Preservation Fund) and allocated $1,702,034 from the General Fund's
unassigned fund balance to the General Fund's fund balance restricted for 1) various capital costs
($1,134,689) and 2) landfill postclosure care costs ($567,345) to comply with Local Law 1BB-4. The

distribution of the 2020 distributable excess revenues has been included in the 2020 financial statements.

5.

REVENUESAND EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES
PROGRAM REVENUES

Amounts reported as program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, directly benefits from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2)
grants and contributions (including special assessments and the length of service award program
investment earnings) that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function or segment. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes and other internally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

REAL PROPERW TAX REVENUE

Real property taxes are levied annually no later than December 1st and are recognized as revenue
January '1st of the year for which they were levied. Property taxes billed in advance of the year for which
they were levied are recorded as deferred inflows of resources.

With respect to the dissolution of the Village of Mastic Beach, there were unpaid Village real property
taxes. Effective January 1,2018, the Town assumed the remaining assets of the Village, including the
property taxes receivable. Unlike Town property taxes, the County is not responsible for the collection of
Village unpaid taxes. Therefore, the Town is pursuing collection of such Village taxes. Amounts not
collected within 60 days of year-end are reported as deferred inflows of resources in the funds'
statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

5.

REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES (continued)
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS . HEALTHCARE

ln addition to providing pension benefits, the Town pursuant to union and employee contracts, provides
health insurance coverage and survivor benefits for retired employees and their survivors. Substantially all
of the Town's employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age and
meet a length of service requirement while working for the Town.

Other postemployment beneflts other than pensions ("OPEB') cost for retiree healthcare benefits is
measured and disclosed using the accrual basis of accounting in the government-wide statements. ln the
governmental funds' financial statements, the Town recognizes the cost of providing the healthcare
benefits by recording its share of premiums as an expenditure when due.
DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The liability for deferred compensation is recorded as current and non-current obligations in the
government-wide statements. The liability is comprised of a defined number of days of employees pay

withheld pursuant to the terms of the various labor contracts during the years ended December 31,
2011-2015; the deferral of the 2011-2015 longevity payments, and a retirement incentive offered and
accepted by employees electing early retirement during the year ended December 31,2012-2014. ln

the governmental fund statements, only the portion of deferred compensation payable from

expendable available resources is reported as an expenditure and liability in the respective fund that
will pay it.
COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The liability for vested or accumulated vacation or sick leave (compensated absences) is recorded as
current and non-current obligations in the government-wide statements. The current portion of this
debt is estimated based on historical trends. ln the governmental fund financial statements, only the
compensated absence liability payable from expendable available financial resources is reported. The
amount that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an
expenditure and a liability in the governmental funds statement in the respective fund that will pay it.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PENSION PLAN

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the New York State and Local Retirement System ('the System') have been determined on
the same basis as they are reported by the System. For this purpose, the System recognizes benefit
payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms and reports investments at fair
value.
LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM PENSION LIABILITIES

The Town sponsors a length of service award program ("LOSAP'), a defined benefit service award
program, for its volunteer ambulance workers of nine different ambulance district companies. Of the
nine individual plans, eight are single-employer plans and the Town reports the total LOSAP service
award liability. The one remaining plan has another governmental entity who is legally responsible for
annual contributions to the plan and as such is considered a special funding situation, and accordingly
the Town reports its proportionate share of the total LOSAP service award liability.
The LOSAP service award liability and proportionate share of the LOSAP service award liability have
been measured at the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments. The contributions to the
Plan are administered through a granter/rabbi trust and, as such, the assets are subject to the claims
of the Town's creditors, the LOSAP pension liability/proportionate share has not been reduced by the
LOSAP plan assets set-aside for benefit payments.
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5.

REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES (continued)
INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

lnterfund transactions, exclusive of interfund services provided and used, have been eliminated from
the government-wide financial statements. ln the fund statements, interfund transactions include:

a)

lnterfund Revenues
lnterfund revenues and quasi-external transactions represent amounts charged for services or
facilities provided to another fund. The amounts paid by the fund receiving the benefit of the
service or facilities, are reflected as an expenditure of that fund.

b)

Transfers
Operating transfers are nonexchange transactions whereby the government or fund gives or
receives value without directly receiving or giving equal value in return. Operating transfers
primarily represent payments to the debt service and capital projects funds from the other
funds for their appropriate share of the debt service or capital project costs.

6. ENCUMBRANCES
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments are recorded
for budgetary control purposes in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed
in the governmental funds. Appropriations for all governmental funds except the capital projects fund
lapse at year-end. However, encumbrances reserved against fund balances are re-appropriated in the
ensuing year. Encumbrances are reported as assignments of fund balances since they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities. Expenditures for such commitments are recorded in the period in which the
liability is incurred.

7.

USE OF ESTIMATES
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and
expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates, particularly given the significant social and
economic disruptions and uncertainties associated with the ongoing COVID-19 ("Coronavirus") pandemic
and the mitigation responses, and such differences may be material.

8.

NEWACCOUNTINGPRINCIPLES

The Town has adopted all the current Statements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) that are applicable. The following statement had a significant impact on the financial statements:

GASB Statement No. 84, "Fiduciary Activities", establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary
activities of all state and local governments. The criteria focus is generally on 1) whether a
government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity, and 2) the beneficiaries with whom
a fiduciary relationship exists. The Statement establishes the four fiduciary funds that should be
reported (as applicable): 1) pension and other employee benefit trust funds, 2) investment trust
funds, 3) private purpose trust funds, and 4) custodial funds. This Statement also provides
guidance for the recognition of a liability when an event has occurred that compels the

government to disburse fiduciary resources. The implementation of this Statement resulted in
the restatement of the unrestricted net position and certain governmental funds' fund balance as
of January 1,2020 (see Note E).

9.

RECLASSIFICATION

The Town of Brookhaven Local Development Corporation has been reclassified from a discretely
presented component unit in the 2019 financial statements to a blended component unit in these financial
statements.
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B.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

1.

BUDGETARYDATA
An operating budget is legally adopted each year for the General, Special Revenue (with the exception of
the special grant funds, special miscellaneous housing trust fund, sidewalk districts, one debt service
fund, and certain inactive/discontinued water supply and fire protection districts). The budgets are adopted

on a basis of accounting consistent with GMP. All unexpended annual appropriations, other

than

encumbrances, lapse at the close of year end. The Capital Projects Fund is budgeted on a project basis.
The Supervisor, with the assistance of the Commissioner of Finance, prepares a tentative budget each
year and the Town Board holds a public hearing. Subsequent to the public hearing, revisions, if any, are
made and the budget is adopted by the Town Board as its final budget for the coming year. The budget is
not subject to referendum. Appropriations are adopted at the object level.

The Supervisor maintains control over the budget. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at
which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is at the individual account level. The
Commissioner of Finance may authorize budgetary transfers between departments within any fund for
amounts less than $25,000. Amounts between $25,000 and $50,000 need the written approval of the
Supervisor's Office. Budgetary transfers affecting employee compensation need the written approval of
both the Commissioner of Finance and the Supervisor. When the total of budget transfer and
amendments into a specific line has reached $50,000, all subsequent transfers require Town Board
approval via resolution, unless in those instances which demonstrate an immediate need, the
amendments will be ratified by the Town Board on the next scheduled Town Board meeting. Any
supplemental appropriations that amend the total expenditures of any fund, and any amendment affecting
an inter-fund account require Town Board Resolution.

ln accordance with Local Law, the total amount of expenditures in the annual adopted General Fund
operating budget shall not increase from the most recent adopted operating budget including revisions
adopted by Town Board resolution, by more than the three year average of revenue groMh plus the three
year average population growth rate for the three previous completed fiscal years. When the calculated
groMh rate is less than zero percent, adopted expenditures shall not exceed expenditure in the most
recent adopted budget. However, the Town Board may provide for an increase in spending in excess of
the amount defined by a vote of three-fourths of the Town Board.
ln June 2011, New York State enacted Chapter 97, Laws of 2011 Real Property Tax Levy Cap and
Mandate Relief Provisions, which includes a 2o/o propefi tax cap for municipalities. Beginning in 2012, no
local government is authorized to increase its property tax levy by more than 2% or the rate of inflation
(whichever is less); however local governments can exceed the tax levy limit by a 60% vote of the
governing body and annually adopting a local law. The Town did not exceed the real property tax limit in
2O2O.The Law permits certain exceptions to the tax levy increase limit for such items as certain judgment
and claims arising out of tort claims and certain increases in the required pension contributions.
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B.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)

2.

FUND EQUITY
FUND BALANCE

The following table provides the detail regarding fund balance categories and classiflcations for the
governmental funds which show components of nonspendable fund balances, as well as the purposes for
restricted, and assigned fund balance. The unassigned fund balance is also shown.
Refuse and

Debt

Capital

0ther

General

Vllage

Highway

Garbage

Service

Projects

Governmenlal

Fund

Fund

Funds

Fund

Fund

Funds

Funds

Town Outside

Nonspendable:

$

Prepaids
lnventory

-$

$ 388,205 $ 719,584 $ 70,818 $
147,252
1,163,789 257,716

1,582,197

Permanent fund principal

328,534

1,729,449 388,205 1,883,373

Total Nonspendable

$

Total

64,458$2,825,262

37,200 220,410

1,826,367

1,466,172
37,200 1,751,040

6,117,801

1,466,172

Restricted for:

2,927,915

Capital prqects

49,675,545

46,297,565

450,065

2,020,593

2,020,593

Grantors and donors restrictions

Landfill post-closure costs

17,294,630

17,294,630

Employee severance pay

23,854

23,854

Length of service award program

benefits

20,942,634

1,057,514

Debt service

177,453

0ther
Pollution remediation

10,334,732

10,334,732

68,663

22,068,811
187,666

10,213

10,978

10,978

36,438

36,438

Snow removal

20,434,830 460,278

Tolal Restricted

1,093,952 -

20,942,634 46,297,565 12,423,988

101,653,247

Assigned to:
Subsequent yeais budget

270,536

270,536

7,941,541

7,941,541

Snow and ice removal

0ther

113,527

Capital projects

199,543

113,527

334,089

134,546

Purchases on order or
contractual obligations

Special revenue funds
Total Assigned
Unassigned, reporled in:
General fund
Total Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

186,000

258,190

Former Village of Mastic Beach

_

22,234,123

186,000

258,190

21,714,458

571,260 22,234,123 29,655,999

900,356
900,356

11,926,217
134,546 12,382,753

56,775,154
65,879,037

55,817,679

55,817,679

55,817,679

55,81 7,679

$ 78,553,218 $ 23,0S2,606 $ 32,633,324
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STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)

2.

FUND EQUITY (continued)
FUND BALANCE (continued)

The Debt Service Fund's restricted fund balance is being held to fund future debt service requirements of
the following funds:
Major Funds:
General
Town Outside Village
Highway
Non Major Funds:

Airport

9,900,631

693,057
5,859,159
45,225

Ambulance Districts
Dock Districts
Erosion Districts
Fire Protection Districts
Street Lighting District
Sewer Districts
Water Districts
Road lm provement District
Open Space

C.

$

1,462,402
340,633
17,856

120
1,016,456
71,082
103,388

249,093
183 532
$ 20,942,634

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

1.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Permitted De posits and I nvestme nts

State statutes and a Town Board approved investment policy governs the Town's investment practice.
Permissible investments include, but not limited to, special time deposit accounts, obligations of the
United States Treasury and United States agencies, obligations of New York State or its localities and
pooled cooperative investment with other municipal corporations pursuant to GML Article 5-G. The
investment policy limits the amount of deposits at any time in any one bank or trust company to $120
million. All bank deposits, certificates of deposits and repurchase agreements are required to be fully
collateralized if not fully covered by federal deposit insurance. Generally, collateral is required for demand
deposits and time deposits accounts at 105o/o of all deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

At December 31,2020, the Town carrying amount of the cash totaled $792,643,160 of which $17,853 is a
cash equivalenVinvestment pool. Also included is $1 ,574,062 of cash restricted for environmental
education and preservation activities of West Meadow Beach and for the federally funded Family Self
Sufficiency Program.
I

nve stme nt Pool/Cash Eq uivale nt

-

New York (NYCLASS), a
multi-municipal cooperative investment pool agreement pursuant to New York State Municipal Law Article
3-A and 5-G, whereby it holds a portion of the investments in cooperation with other participants. The
investments are highly liquid and are considered to be cash equivalents. All NYCLASS investment and
collateral policies are in accordance with General Municipal Law, Sections 10 and 11.

The Town participates in the Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System

At December 31,2020, the Town has $17,853 in NYCLASS investments which are included as cash and
cash equivalents.
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C.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

1.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
lnvestment Pool/ Cash Equivalent (continued)
NYCLASS measures its investments at fair value in accordance with Paragraph 41 of GASB Statement
No. 79, 'Certain External lnvestment Pools and Pool Participanfs", and Paragraph 11 of GASB Statement
No. 31 , "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain lnvestments and for External lnvestment Pools".
Total investments of the cooperative at December 31,2020 were $3,102,633,421, which consisted of
$196,086,432 in FDIC insured bank deposits, $201,981,436 in repurchase agreements, $803,582,056 in
collateralized bank deposits, and $1,900,983,497 in U.S. Treasury securities, with various interest rates
and due dates.
The lead participant of NYCLASS is the Village of Potsdam. Additional information concerning NYCLASS,
including the annual report, can be found on its website at www.newyorkclass.org.
lnvestments
Lenoth of Service Award Proqram Plan lnvestments - External lnvestment Pool
The Town invests monies which are set-aside for LOSAP retirement-like benefits in a multi-municipal

cooperative investment pool consisting of money market funds, corporate and foreign bonds,
common equity securities, equity mutual funds and flxed income mutual funds. lnvestments are
stated at market value. The pool is not registered with the SEC and is overseen by the New York
State Comptroller and an administrative agency hired by the New York State Comptroller.

Allocations of gains, losses and investment income are accounted for by the State Comptroller and
third-party administrative agency. The Town's fair value of its position in the pool is the same as the
value of pool shares.

ln accordance with FASB guidance, the LOSAP pooled assets utilizes ASC 820 "Fair

Value

Measurement and Disclosure" to define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value,
and expand disclosure requirements regarding fair value measurements. ASC 820 does not

require new fair value measurements, but is applied to the extent that other accounting
pronouncements require or permit fair value measurements. This standard emphasizes that fair
value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. Various inputs are used in
determining the value of LOSAP portfolio investments defined pursuant to this standard.

Securities are valued at the most recent market bid price as obtained from one or more market
makers for such securities. There have been no significant changes in valuation techniques used
in valuing any such positions held by LOSAP pool since the beginning of their fiscal year. The
inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk
associated with investing in those securities.
The Town's investment in the LOSAP pool of investments totals $'10,334,732 at December 31, 2020.

The assets are subject to custodial risk in the event of the failure of the custodian holding the
investments.
The following risk assessments apply to cash and investments of the Town.

-

-

Custodial credit risk for deposits exists when, in the
Custodial Credit Risk Deposits / lnvestments
event of the failure of a depository flnancial institution, a government may be unable to recover deposits,
or recover collateral securities that are in possession of an outside agency. Custodial credit risk for
investments exists when, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, a government will be unable to
recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The
Town's investments policy defines permissible investments, limits the amount of deposits at any time any
one bank or trust company, requires that bank balances in excess of the Federal Deposit lnsurance
Corporation insurance limits of $250,000 are protected with custodial agreements which requires that
balances are fully collateralized in accordance with New York State General Municipal Law (GML) and
limits the form of acceptable collateralization.
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1.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
Custodial Credit Risk

-

Deposits / lnvestments (continued)

Financial institutions can satisfy collateral requirements by furnishing an eligible letter of credit, an eligible
surety bond, by pledging eligible securities as specified in Section 10 of GML or participating in a deposit
placement program pursuant to section 9-r of the banking law. lrrevocable letters of credit issued as

collateral in certain situations may require a threshold of up to 140o/o o'f aggregate deposits. Eligible
securities that may be pledged as collateral includes but is not limited to obligations of the United States
or its agencies, obligations of New York State and obligation of municipalities of New York State.

The use of available daily balances to determine collateral requirements may result in the available
balance being under-collateralized at various times during the year.

At

December 31, 2020, lhe carrying amount of the Town's cash and cash equivalents excluding
NYCLASS of $17,853 and petty cash of $66,232 was $792,559,075. The bank balance was
$796,645,330. Of the bank balance, $59,462,902 was covered by Federal deposit insurance, and

$737,182,428 was covered by collateral held by the Town's agent, a third-party flnancial institution with a
fair value of $979,259,546.

At December 31,2020, the LDC's bank balance was $610,703, of which $250,000 was covered by the
Federal Depository lnsurance Corporation, and $360,703 was collateralized by securities held by the
LDC's agent, a third-party institution.
The Length of Service Award Program Plan assets are not required to be collateralized

Credit Risk - The Town's written investment guidelines and policies are designed to protect principal by
limiting risk. State law and Town law limit investments to those authorized by State statutes.
lnterest-Rate Risk

- lnterest-rate risk arises because potential purchasers of debt securities will not agree

to pay face value for those securities if interest rates substantially increase, thereby affording potential
purchasers more favorable rates on essentially equivalent securities. Accordingly, such investments
would have to be held to maturity to avoid a potential loss.

Concentration

of Credit Risk

*

Credit risk can arise as

a result of failure to adequately

diversifu

investments. Concentration risk disclosure is required for positions of 5 percent or more in securities of a
single issuer.

2.

RECEIVABLES
ln 2010, the Town was awarded a $1 million settlement. Under the terms of the settlement agreement,
the award will be repaid over ten years in annual installments of $BB,8BB through December 31,2020.
During 2020, the Town received final payment in accordance with the settlement agreement.

Additionally, in 2019 the Town was awarded a $2.6 million settlement. Under the terms of the
settlement, the award will be repaid over two years. At December 31,2019, the outstanding balance
was $1,000,000 and which was to be repaid in two installments of $500,000 through December 31,
2020. During2020, the Town received final payment in accordance with the settlement agreement.

3.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
lnterfund receivable and payable balances represent either loans, services provided, or reimbursements
which are expected to be paid currently. Loans are reported as receivables and payables as appropriate.
Services provided are treated as revenues and expenditures. Reimbursements occur when one fund
incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement.
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3.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

At December 31,2020, the balances outstanding are as follows:
Receivable

Governmental Activities:
Major Funds:
General Fund
Town Outside Village

2,615,262

$

Payable
1,936,405

$

37,087
21',|,973

327
6,975

Highway

Refuse and Garbage
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Total Major Funds
Nonmajor Funds:
Airport

1

171,233
2 093,750
4,887,547

15,190

1,673,537

3.974J92
1,659

102,602

SpecialGrants
Park Reserve Escrow
Street Lighting Districts
Sewer Districts
Total Nonmajor Funds

1

,015,305

10,935

8,569
1,359

1,026,892

113,537

Total $

5,001,084

$

5,001,084

lndividual fund transfers primarily consist of monies transferred to fund debt service requirements and the

cost of capital projects, including transfers made pursuant to Local Law 1Bb-4 (see Fund Balance
Policies). lt also consists residual equity transfers of completed closed capital projects. lnterfund transfer
made during the year are as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Out

ln

Major Funds:
General Fund
Town Outside Village

$

379,326

$

296,455

35,075,082
1,083,930

63,792,477

26,996,890
11,562

5,643,181

1,460,567

Total Major Funds
Nonmajor Funds:
Airport
Park Reserve Escrow
Ambulance Districts
Dock Districts
Erosion Control Districts
Fire Protection Districts
Street Lighting Districts
Sewer Districts

70,1 1 3,1 38

64,628,031

193,525
10,935
202,086

125,000

Total Nonmajor Funds

406,546

1,699

Highway
Debt Service

Capital Projects

48,045
3,574,851

514,452
460,461

8,219
872,339
288,286

Total $
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4.

ENDOWMENT

to the State of New York Legislature dated June 12, 1996, interest earnings up to a
maximum rate of five percent may be expended by the West Meadow Beach endowment fund
provided that the prior year's interest enables such expenditures without reducing the accounts
beginning principal of the prior year. The West Meadow Beach endowment fund expenditure plan is
adopted by Town Board. The endowment fund's fund balance is restricted and is segregated between
spendable and nonspendable. At December 31,2020, the West Meadow Beach Endowment Fund's
fund balance totaled $1,466,172, all of which considered nonspendable. For the year ended
December 31,2020, all assets are cash deposits and therefore there was no net appreciation on
investments for the West Meadow Beach endowment fund.
Pursuant

5.

CAPITAL ASSETS
The summary of changes within the capital assets of the Town for the year ended December 31,2020

is

as follows:

Primary Government:

Balance

Additions and

Deletions and

Balance

01t01t2020

Transfers

Transfers

12t31t2020

Capital assets not being depreciated:

$

Land and development rights

670,186,378

Construction in progress

$

7,656,606

29,698,030

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

13,857,716

699,884,408

21,51 4,322

346,600,558

31,733,390

684,044,094

$

$

14,788,808

22,565,828

22,565,828

698,832,902

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improvements

120,439,810

5,190,233

1,027,762,507

46,601,625

5,080,528

368,938

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure
Website and software
Total Depreciable Capital Assets
Less accumulated depreciation/amortization

1

378,333,948
124,395,955

1,234,088

1,074,364,132
5,449,466

,499,883,403 83,894,186

1

,234,088

1

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

173,487,002

15,274,435

90,504,309

5,562,225

lnfrastructure

TotalAccumulatedDepreciation/Amortization

$

903,764,308

94,852,046
679,358,607
4,408,551

402,810

4,005,741

Website and software

188,761,437
1,214,488

43,591,351

635,767,256

$

64,830,821

$

967,380,641

1,214,488

Total Net Depreciable Capital Assets

61

$

Total Net Capital Assets
Depreciation/amortization

General government

,582,543,501

:

expense was charged to the governmental functions as follows:

support

$

safety
Health
Transportation
Economic assistance and opportunity
Culture and recreation
Home and community services

5,084,174
3,362,268

Public

1,603,774
20,919,577
1,670
8,569,023

25,290,335

Total Governmental Activities Depreciation/Amortization Expense
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64,830,821

1

5,162,860

,313,995,762
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5.

CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

The Town of Brookhaven evaluates prominent events or changes in circumstances affecting capital
assets to determine whether impairment of a capital asset has occurred. The Town's policy is to record an
impairment loss in the period when the Town determines that the carrying amount of the asset will not be
recoverable. At December 31 ,2020, the Town has not recorded any such impairment losses.

6.

INDEBTEDNESS
LONG.TERM DEBT
A summary of the Town's changes in long-term debt transactions for the year ended December 31,2020
is as follows:
Noncunent
Balance

lncreases

01t01t20

Reductions

Balance

liabilities due

Noncunent

12t31t20

within one year

liabilities

$ 60,145,000 $

525,200,000

Primary Government:
General obligation bonds

$

541,253,700

Plus premiums on issuance
Total general obligation bonds

45,179,380

$

189,230,000
29,230,529

$ 145,138,700 $ 585,345,000
6,588,891

67,821,018

67,821,018

586,433,080 218,460,529 151,727,591 653,166,018 60,145,000

593,021,018

Employees retirement plan
net pension

liability

17,491,691

57,210,193 9,949,117

64,752,767

64,752,767

Length of service award
pension

liabilities
absences

Compensated
Deferred

9,322,468

1,726,640

382,054

10,667,054

18,466,029

7,999,437

8,286,024

18,179,442

222,450

1,473,215

3,909,437

compensation

Claims and

judgments

1,695,665
18,503,599

5,736,477

32,473,540

1,069,710

10,667,054
3,000,000

15,179,442

20,330,639

7 065,000

13,265,639

33,543,250

308,900

33,234,350

1,473,215

Estimated liability for landfill closure
and postclosure care

costs

Pollutionremediationobligatior

991,871

1

50,000

380,591

761,280

761,280

Total other postemployment
benefits

liability

464,99'1 ,138

84,529,347 13,950,676

535,569,809

535,569,809

Subtotal
Less: amount reported as claims and judgments payable

Noncurrentliabilities

71,280,180

1,267,163,294

(7,065,000)

$ 64,215,180 $1,267,163,294

-

The Town borrows money to acquire land or equipment or construct
This
enables the cost of these capital assets to be borne by the present and
improvements.
buildings and
future taxpayers receiving the benefit of the capital assets. These longterm direct obligation liabilities,
which are backed by the full faith and credit of the Town, including bonds of the Town Special Districts
which are payable from tax revenues of the areas benefited, bear interest at various rates from 1.0% to
6.4oh and have various maturity dates through 2038. The original amount borrowed for debt currently
outstanding, excluding amounts related to the defeased debt is $803,466,545.
General Obligation Bonds

December 31, 2020, the total of bonds authorized but not yet issued for various public
improvements projects totals approximately $49 million.

At
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6.

INDEBTEDNESS (continued)
LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

A summary of general obligation bonds and long-term bond anticipation notes payable, exclusive of
premiums by purpose is as follows:
Balance

Balance

lncreases

01t01t20

12t31t20

Reductions

Governmental Activities:
Major Funds:

$

General Fund

$

303,223,504

98,262,560

$

73,776,221

327,709,843

$

9,467,210
189,936,360

7,824,024

4,178,301

2,535,1 15

Highway Fund

177,910,142

73,740,330

61,714,112

Total Major Funds

488,957,670

176,181,191

384,245

131,341

114,019

401,567

35,1 07,048

2,857,959

4,996,838

32,968,169

337,768

5,856,576

Town Outside Village

138,025,448

527,113,413

Nonmajor Funds:
Airport Fund
Ambulance Districts

6,194,344

Dock Districts

388,590

820,837

Erosion Control Districts

58,68'l

Fire Protection Districts

512,602

696,825

5,992

52,689

Street Lighting District

6,090,886

6,950,919

909,1 06

12,132,699

Sewer Districts

3,625,000

220,000

235,000

3,610,000

Water Districts

14,989

1,927

13,062
2,500,000

2,500,000

Road lmprovement District

52,296,030

Total Nonmajor Funds
Total Governmental Activities

$

541,253,700

$

13,048,809
189,230,000

7

$

,113,252

145,138,700

$

58,231,587
585,345,000

Future principal and interest payments to maturity for the Town's governmental activities are as follows:

lnterest

Principal

Years ending December 31,2021
2022

$

60,145,000
63,490,000
64,450,000
63,495,000
63,000,000
229,520,000

2023
2024
2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2038

$

at ,841,687
83,871,533
82,046,808
78,312,425
75,116,107
254,991,246
36,532,626
8,336,325

$

20t,048,757

14,817,425
12,116,107

25,471,246
3,212,626
411,325

7,925,000
585,345,000

$

17,596,808

33,320,000

Totals $

21,696,687
20,381,533

Total Principaland
lnterest

$

115,703,757

lnterest on EFC debt (revolving fund revenue bonds) can be higher or lower than the amount included in
the above due to fluctuations in the subsidy portion of the interest payment.

At December 31,2020, the Town had $22,068,811 of fund balance specifically restricted for future debt
service requirements noted in the above chart.

-53-

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31,2020

C.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

6.

INDEBTEDNESS (continued)
LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Current Refunding
During 2020,hhe Town issued $77,780,000 of Public lmprovement Refunding Bonds for the Town with
interest rates ranging'from2.0o/o to 3.0% and annual maturities through September 2029.The proceeds
were used to currently refund $46,950,000 of outstanding2013 Series A public improvement bonds, and
$41,370,000 of 2013 Series B public improvement bonds, which had interest rates ranging from 2.0% to
3.Oo/o.

The total net proceeds of $88,978,220 (including $11,631,405 premium and after payment of $433,185 in
underwriting and other issuance costs) together with a contribution from the Town of $134,650 were used

to current refund $88,320,000 of debt. The current refunding was done in order to reduce debt payments
in the short-term. The refunding decreased total debt service payments by $8,318,S88. The overall
transaction resulted in an economic gain (the difference between the present value of the debt service
payments on the old and new debt) of $7,91 3,329.

Defeasance of Debt

ln the current year, the Town of Brookhaven defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in
the Town's financial statements. At December 31,2020, $41,370,000 of these bonds outstanding is
considered defeased.
Legal Debt Margin
The Town is subject to legal limitations on the amount of debt that it may issue. The Town's legal debt
margin is 7o/o of the flve year average full valuation of taxable real property. At December 31, 2020, that
amount was $3,833,602,765. As of December 31 , 2020, the total outstanding debt applicable to the limit
was $585,345,000, which is 15.27% of the total debt limit.

Gonduit Debt
The LDC and the IDA have at times, issued revenue bonds to provide assistance to private sector entities

for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public
interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received
on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities
transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the Town or the LDC or lDA,
nor any political subdivision thereof, is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly,
the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying statements. As of December 31 ,2020, lhe
total of the revenue bonds outstanding for the LDC and IDA was $227,745,000 and $10,677,031,
respectively.

Other Long-Term Debt
Liabilities for claims and judgments, landfill closure and post closure care costs, pollution remediation
obligations and litigation are liquidated through future budgetary appropriations in the General Fund. The
liabilities for compensated absences, deferred compensation, total other postemployment benefits liability
(healthcare benefits), net pension liability, and claims specific to workers' compensation are typically
liquidated through future budgetary appropriation in the General Fund, Town Outside Village, Highway
Fund, Refuse and Garbage funds and all other funds that gave rise to the liability. The LOSAP pension
liabilities will be liquidated from the Ambulance Districts Fund.
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7.

RETIREMENT SYSTEM
Plan Description

The Town of Brookhaven participates in the New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System
('ERS' or the "System"). This is a costsharing multiple-employer defined beneflt retirement system. The
net position of the System is held in the New York Common Retirement Fund ('Fund"), which was
established to hold all net assets and record changes in fiduciary net position allocated to the system. The
Comptroller of the State of New York serves as the trustee of the Fund and is the administrative head of
the System. The Comptroller is an elected official determined in a direct statewide election and serves a
four-year term. System benefits are established under the provisions of the New York State Retirement
and Social Security Law ("RSSL"). Once a public employer elects to participate in the System, the
election is irrevocable.

The New York State Constitution provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan
benefits cannot be diminished or impaired. Beneflts can be changes for future members only by
enactment of a State statute. The Town also participates in the Public Employees' Group Life lnsurance
Plan ("GLlP"), which provides death benefits in the form of life insurance. The System is included in the
State's financial report as a pension trust fund. That report may be found at http://www.osc.state.ny.us/
retire/publications/index.php or obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement
System, 1 10 State Street, Albany, NY 12244-0001
.

Benefits Provided
The System provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits.
Tiers 1 and 2
Eligibility: Tier 1 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans, must be at
least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement benefit, there is no minimum service requirement. Tier 2
members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans, must have five years of
service and be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement benefit. The age at which full benefits
may be collected for Tier 1 and Tier 2, is 55 and 62 respectively.
Benefit calculation: Generally, the benefit is 1.670/o of final average salary for each year of service if the
member retires with less than 20 years. lf the member retires with 20 or more years of service, the benefit
is 2o/o of final average salary for each year of service. Tier 2 members with five or more years of service
can retire as early as age 55 with reduced benefits. Tier 2 members aged 55 or older with 30 or more
years of service can retire with no reduction in benefits. As a result of Article 19 of the RSSL, Tier 1 and 2
members who worked continuously from April 1, 1999 through October 1,2000 received an additional
month of service credit for each year of credited service they have at retirement, up to a maximum of 24
additional months.
Final average salary is the average of the wages earned in the three highest consecutive years. For Tier 1
members who joined on or after June 17, 1971, each year of final average salary is limited to no more
than 20% of the previous year. For Tier 2 members, each year of final average salary is limited to no more
than 20% of the average of the previous two years.
Tiers 3,4, and 5
Eligibility: Tier 3 and 4 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans, must
have five years of service and be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement beneflt. Tier 5

members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans, must have ten years of
service and be at least 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement benefit. The full beneflt age for Tiers 3, 4
and 5 is 62.
Benefit calculation: Generally, the benefit is 1.67% of final average salary for each year of service if the
member retires with less than 20 years. lf a member retires with between 20 and 30 years of service, the
benefit is 2o/o of final average salary for each year of service. lf a member retires with more than 30 years
of service, an additional benefit of 15% of final average salary is applied for each year of service over 30
years.
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7.

RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)
Benefits Provided (continued)
Tiers 3, 4, and 5 (continued)

Tier 3 and 4 members with five or more years of service and Tier 5 members with ten or more years of
service can retire as early as age 55 with reduced benefits. Tier 3 and 4 members aged 55 or older with
30 or more years of service can retire with no reduction in benefits.

Final average salary is the average of the wages earned in the three highest consecutive years. For Tier
3,4, and 5 members, each year of final average salary is limited to no more than 10% of the average of
the previous two years.
Tier 6

Eligibility: Tier 6 members, with the exception of those retiring under special retirement plans, must have
ten years of service and be at least age 55 to be eligible to collect a retirement benefit. The full beneflt age
for Tier 6 members is age 63.

Beneflt calculation: Generally, the benefit is 1.670/o of final average salary for each year of service if the
member retires with less than 20 years. lf a member retires with 20 years of service, the benefit is 1.75%
of final average salary for each year of service. lf a member retires with more than 20 years of service, an
additional benefit of 2 o/o of final average salary is applied for each year of service over 20 years. Tier 6
members with ten or more years of service can retire as early as age 55 with reduced beneflts.
Final average salary is the average of the wages earned in the five highest consecutive years. For Tier 6
members, each year of final average salary is limited to no more than 10% of the average of the previous
four years.
Ord i n ary Di sabil ity Be nefits

Generally, ordinary disability benefits, usually onethird of salary, are provided to eligible members after
ten years of service; in some cases, they are provided after five years of service.
Accide ntal Disability Be nefits

For all eligible Tier 1 and Tier 2 members, the accidental disability benefit is a pension of 75o/o of final
average salary, with an offset for any workers' compensation benefits received. The benefit for eligible
Tier 3, 4 and 5 members is the ordinary disability benefit with the years-of-service eligibility requirement
dropped.
Post-Retire me nt Be nefit /ncreases

A coslof-living adjustment is provided annually to: 1) all pensioners who have attained age 62 and have
been retired for flve years; 2) all pensioners who have attained age 55 and have been retired for ten
years; 3) all disability pensioners, regardless of age, who have been retired for five years; 4) recipients of
an accidental death benefit, regardless of age, who have been receiving such benefit for five years; and 5)

the spouse of a deceased retiree receiving a lifetime benefit under an option elected by the retiree at
retirement. An eligible spouse is entitled to one-half the coslofliving adjustment amount that would have
been paid to the retiree when the retiree would have met the eligibility criteria. This cost-of-living
adjustment is a percentage of the annual retirement benefit of the eligible member as computed on a base
beneflt amount not to exceed $18,000 of the annual retirement benefit. The coslof-living percentage shall
be 50% of the annual consumer price index as published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor, but cannot be less
than 1% or exceed 3%.
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7.

RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)
Contributions

Plan members who joined the system before July 27,1976 are not required to make contributions.
Those joining after July 27 , 1976 and before January 1, 2010 with less than ten years of membership
are required-to contribute 3% of their annual salary. Those joining on or after January 1, 2010 and
before April 1 , 2012 are required to contribute 3o/o of their salary for NYSERS members throughout
active membership. Those joining on orafterApril 1,2012 are required tocontribute between 3% and
6%, depending upon their salary, throughout active membership. Under the authority of the NYSRSSL,
the Comptroller shall certify annually certifies the actuarially determined rates expressly used in
computing the employers' contributions based on salaries paid during the System's year ended March
31.

The actual contributions were equal to 100% of the actuarially required amounts. The credits and
miscellaneous adjustments represent modification made by the NYSERS to the prior year's
contributions due [o differences between estimated and actual salaries for the plan year. Amortization
payments relate to the pension related debt, as discussed below. The required contributions as billed by
the Plan, for the ToWn, for the current year and two preceding Plan years were:

March
31st:
2021

2020
2019

Credits &
Miscellaneous
Adjustments

Regular
Pension
Contribution

$ 10,063,002

893

$

10,032,808

807

9,934,464

11,982

$

(82,417)

Amortization
Pavments

Deferred
Amount

Prepayment
Discount

$

$

(84,498)
(83,764)

Total
Payments

$

9,981,478
9,949,117
9,862,682

Contributions recognized by the System for the period January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020 totaled
$9,736,300.

pension Liabilities, pension Expense. Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of
Resources Related to Pension

Below is the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability of the System and its related
employer allocation percentage.

Measurement Date
March

Net Pension
Liabilitv

Allocation of the
System's Total
Net Liability

31,2020 $64,752,767

0,24452930/o

The net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2019 with procedures
to roll it iorward to Maich 91, 2020, and was based on a projection of the Town's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating membersThere was no significant change in the Town's proportionate share from March 31,2019 ('2468728%)
to March 31,2020 (.24452930/0).

-57 -

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31,2020

C.

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

7.

RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. Deferred Outflows
Resources Related to Pension (continued)

of Resources and Deferred lnflows

of

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Town recognized pension expense of $21 ,901 ,863. As of
December 31,2020, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

DeferredOutflows Deferredlnflows
of
Differences between expected and actual experience

Resources
3,810,962

$

1,303,814

Changes in assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earning on pension plan investments

of Resources

$

t,125,822

33,195,416

Change in proportion and differences between the Town's
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

506,626

Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date

7,254,118

Total

$

46,070,936

670,212

$

t,796,034

The reported deferred outflows of resources resulting from the Town's contributions made subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
December 31 ,2020. Other amounts will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Years Ended December

31,2021 $

2022
2023
2024

6,125,995

9,269,672
11,927,323

9,697,794

$

37,020,784

Actuarial Assumotions
The total pension liability as of the measurement date was determined by using an actuarial valuation
as noted in the table below, with update procedures used to rollfonrvard the total pension liability to the
measurement date. The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions:

Date
lnvestment rate of return
Salary increases
Cost of living adjustment
lnflation rate

Actuarial Valuation

Decrement

April

1

, 20'19

6.80%

4.20%
1.30%
2.50o/o

April 1, 2010-March 20'15
System's Experience, Scale MP 201

tables

Annuitant mortality rates are based on the April 1,2010 - March 31,2015 System's experience with
adjustments for mortality improvements based on the Society of Actuaries' Scale MP-2018.
The actuarial assumptions used in the April 1,2019 valuation are based on the results of an actuarial
experience studyforthe period April 1,2010 - March 31,2015.
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RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)
Actuarial Assumptions (continued)

The long{erm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return,
net of investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the longterm expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
Best estimates of the arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the target
asset allocation as of March 31,2020 are summarized below:
Long{erm
Target
Asset Type:

Allocation

Expected Rate
of Return

36.00%

4.05%

14.00o/o

6.15o/o

10.00%
10.00%

6.75o/o

Equity:

Domestic equity
lnternational equity
Alternatives:
Private equity

Realestate

8.00%
17.00%
1.00%

Other
Bonds and mortgages
Cash
lnflation indexed bonds

4.00%

4.95%
- 5.95%
0.75%

3.25o/o

0.00%
0.50%

100.00%

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 6.8% for the System. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at
statutorily required rates, actuarially. Based upon the assumptions, the Systems' fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long{erm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
Sensitivitv of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption

The following presents the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.8%, as well as what the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (5.8%) or 1-percentage
point higher

(7 .8Yo)

than the current rate:

Town's proportionate share of the
collective net pension liability

$

1.00o/o

Current

1.00o/o

Decrease
(5.80)%

Assumption

lncrease

(6.80)%

118,839,612 $ 64, 752,767
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7.

RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)
Pension Plan Fiduciarv Net Position

The components of the current-year net pension liability of the employers as of the respective
valuation date were as follows:
Valuation

(Dollars in Thousands)
April 'l , 2019

Date

Employers' total pension liability
Plan fiduciary net position
Employers' net pension liability

(194,5e6,261)

$

168,1 15,682

$

(26,480,579)

Ratio of plan net position to the

Employers' total pension liability
8.

86.39%

LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM
Plan Description
The Town established and is the sponsor of multiple defined beneflt Service Award Programs (collectively
"LOSAP'/ "Program") under Section 457 (e) (11) of the lnternal Revenue Code effective January 1, 1991.
These Programs were established pursuant to Article 11-AAA of New York State General Municipal Law
('GML'). This Program provides municipally funded deferred compensation to volunteer ambulance
workers of East Moriches, Manorville, Mastic Beach, Shirley, Medford, South Country, Port Jefferson,
Patchogue and Mastic Ambulance Companies, to facilitate the recruitment and retention of active
volunteer firefighters. For all Programs except Patchogue, the plans are considered single employer
plans, with the Town considered the employer (as defined by GASB). The Patchogue plan has
multiple sponsors and, therefore, the Town is not considered the employer and is party to a special

funding situation. The Program is administered by Penflex, lnc., under a contract with the New York
State Comptroller, with all provisions and amendments subject to approval of the Town Board.
An eligible program participant is defined to be an active ambulance volunteer who is at least 18 years of
age and has completed one year of ambulance service. Participants acquire a non-forfeitable right to a
service award after being credited with five years of ambulance service or upon attaining the Program's
entitlement age of 65. A participant may also receive credit for five years of ambulance service rendered
prior to the establishment of the Program. The Plan's sponsor has the right to amend or terminate the
Program.

Benefits

The amount of the monthly retirement income payable to a volunteer ambulance worker eligible for
normal retirement benefits is equal to $20 multiplied by the total years of service, which is not to exceed
40 years annually. Unless a Participant elects to be paid in an optional life time annuity guaranteed for
either 5 or 10 years, the form, the benefit shall be paid a monthly payment shaight life annuity equal to
one-twelfth of the Participants service award. However, upon disability, the participant may apply for
benefits regardless of whether or not the entitlement age has been attained or a nonforfeitable right has
been acquired. Benefits may be payable to designated beneficiaries if so designated upon the death of a
participant. The beneflts to the participants are limited to the available assets of the Trust.
Participants

As of December 31 , 2019, the Plans' measurement date, the following participants were covered by
the benefit terms:
Sinqle

Emplover

Special Fundinq

lnactive participants receiving benefits
lnactive participants entitled to,
but not yet receiving benefits
Active participants

56

23

215
362

28
75

Total

633

____1fr
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LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARD PROGR.AM (continued)
Contributions

NewYork State General Municipal Law ("GML") Section $219-o (1) requires the Plan sponsor (which
is the Town) to contribute an actuarially determined contribution on an annual basis. The actuarially
determined contribution are appropriated annually by the Town Board. With respect to the multisponsored plans, and pursuant to the adoption agreements, the Town paid $24,777 for pensions
during the year ended December 31,2020.
Trust Assets
Assets have been accumulated in an irrevocable trust such that the assets are dedicated to providing
pensions to plan members in accordance with benefit terms and in accordance with Article I I -AM fep
GML. The assets have been placed in a granter /rabbi trust and therefore the trust assets are not
legally protected from creditors of the Town. As such, the trust assets do not meet the criteria as
defined by GASB and therefore may not be offset against the pension liabilities.
Measurement of Liability

The total pension liability and the collective total pension liability at the December 31,2019
measurement date was determined using an actuarial valuation as of that date.
Actuarial Assumotions

The total pension liability as of December 31 , 2019 (the measurement and actuarial date) was
determined by using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

method
rate
rate
Scale

Entry Age Normal

Actuarial cost
Discount
lnflation
Salary

3.26%
2.25%
None Assumed

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Table (60/40 male/female blend) projected for
mortality improvement to the year 2020 with scale MP2017.
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.26%. This was the yield to maturity
of the S&P Municipal Bond 2O-Year High Grade Rate lndex as of December 31 ,2019. ln describing
this index, S&P, Dow Jones lndices notes that the index consists of bonds in the S&P Municipal Bond
lndex with a maturity of 20 years and with a rating of at least Aa2 by Moody's lnvestors Service's, AA
by Fitch, or AA by Standard & Poor's Rating Services.
Total Pension Liability and Proportionate Share of Pension Liabilities

The Town's liabilities related to the LOSAP plans of $10,667,054 consists of total pension liabilities
and proportionate share of pension liabilities. The Town is the sole sponsor for eight LOSAP plans,
and its total LOSAP pension liability totaled $9,603,333. The Town also sponsors with another
municipality, one LOSAP plan and the Town's proportionate share of the total liability was $1 ,063,721.
The Town's proportionate share of the total LOSAP pension liability was based on a cost sharing
agreement between the Town and the other municipality. The Town's proportionate share was 50.0%
for the plan with co-sponsorship.
Chanqes in the Total LOSAP Pension Liability
Balance as of December 31 ,2018 measurement date
Changes in proportionate share
Service cost

lnterest
Changes in assumptions and inputs
Differences between expected and actual experience
Benefit payments
Balance as of December 31 ,2019 measurement date

-61

-

$

8,107,631
476,928
408,245
324,423
665,1 60
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LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARD PROGRAM (continued)

Sensitivity of the Total Share of the Pension Liability/Proportionate Share of Collective Total Pension
Liability to the Discount Rate Assumption
The following presents the Town's total pension liability/proportionate share of collective total liability

calculated using the discount rate of 3.260/o, as well as what the Town's total pension liability
/proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage point lower (2.26%) or 1-percentage point higher (4.26Yo) than the current rate:

1.OO%
Current
Decrease Assumption
(3.260/o)
(2.260/o)
Total pension liability

Town's proportionate share of the
collective total pension liability

1.OOo/o

lncrease
(4.260/o)

$ 11,699,816 $ 9,603,333 $

7,977,961

$ 1,063,721 $

905,597

$

1,264,042

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources Related to
Pensions
For the year ended December 31,2020, the Town recognized LOSAP pension expense ol $797 ,571.

At December 31, 2020, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to LOSAP pensions from the following sources:
Deferred lnflows
of Resources

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience

$

65,286

$

Change in proportion and differences between the Town's
contributions and proportionate share of contributions

648,684

1,435,672

1,420,884

Changes in assumptions

9,493

Benefit payments and administrative expenses paid
subsequent to the measurement date

240,984
Total

$

1,736,647

$

2,084,356

The benefit payments and administrative expenses paid subsequent to the measurement date included in
deferred outflows of resources will be recognized as a reduction of the total pension liabilfty in the year
ended December 31, 2021.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Years Ended December

31,2021

$

2022

(49,235)

2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

(49,235)
(4e,235)
(342,518)

$
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9.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

-

HEALTHCARE BENEFITS

Plan Description

Postemployment benefits other than pensions are provided to eligible retirees, beneficiaries and
dependents under a single-employer defined benefit plan. Postemployment benefits other than
pensions consist of providing healthcare coverage (or a portion thereof) and life insurance benefits to
the eligible retirees and survivors in accordance with the provisions of employment contracts/union
agreements with employees in effect at the date of retirement. Upon an employee's retirement, the
Town provides an individual agreement executed by the Town, guaranteeing that that their health
insurance benefits will be paid throughout their retirement to the same extent that such health
insurance benefits were paid for at the time of retirement.

As employee agreements/union contracts expire in future years, they will be re-negotiated, and the
benefits provided may be modified at that time. No assets are accumulated in a trust that needs meets
the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

To provide these benefits, the Town currently participates in the New York State Health lnsurance
Plan ("NYSHlP"), which offers health insurance coverage to New York State public employees through
the Empire Plan (an indemnity health insurance plan) or approved health Maintenance Organizations
("HMO"). Currently, healthcare insurance coverage is through the Empire Core Plan plus
Enhancement. The New York State Department of Civil Service administers NYSHIP.

The Town pays health insurance premiums to NYSHIP on a monthly basis. Health insurance
premiums paid by the Town are based on the benefits paid throughout the State during the year or
from a choice of HMOs. Under the provisions of the Empire Plan, premiums are adjusted on a
prospective basis for any losses experienced by the Empire Plan. The Town has the option to terminate
its participation in the Empire Plan at any time without liability for its respective share of any previously
incurred loss.

The Town, per its contracUunion agreements with employees, will pay the premium costs for medical
insurance coverage at retirement based on the following:
White - Collar Unit
Member of Bargining Unit :
prior
on or after

to

Januarv

1,2011

Management Emolovees:

BIue Collar Unit

January 1,2011

Employnent Date:
Member of Bargining Unit :
prior
on or after
on or afier
January 1, 2011
Sjplgmber 1 3, 201 2 September 1 3, 2012 January 1, 201

priorto

to

1

20o/ofor 12
years, thereafter
Active Employees Contribution Rate
Minimum age requirement
Years of service - vesting

10% for 3 years
55
5

20o/olor l2years
55
10

20o/olor 12years
55
10

'

Retiree coverage

100o/o

1000

100%

1000

Spouse coverage
Medicare Part B premium monthly
reimbursemenl for enrollment dates:

10Oo/o

1000/o

100%

100o/o

Prior to January 1 , 201 6
January 1, 2016
January 1, 2017 or thereafter

o

1,308.00

$

$

1,510.80

$

o

1,608.00

a

1,308.00
1,510.80
1,608.00

$
$
$

1,308.00
1,510.80
1,608.00

$
$
$

1,308.00
1,510.80
1,608.00

$
S

$

100h

1Oo/o

55
5

55
10

10% until
12t31t2019

10%

10% until
12t3112019

10o/o

1,308.00
1,510.80
1,608.00

$

1,308.00

$

1,510.80

$

1,608.00

*

For employees retiring on ot aftet 11111992, if at lhe time of relirement, the employee was contributing a portion of the
health insurance benefits, then the employee will continue to contribute the same portion upon retirement

The Town will also pay the full premium for $10,000 life insurance coverage for retirees who retire on

or after January 1,1977. Healthcare benefits for non-union employees are similar to those of union
employees and the contracts will be renegotiated at various times in the future. Upon death of a retiree
who retired after January 1,2001, the Town will only continue health insurance for the non-remarried
spouse and dependents of the employee provided that the employee was eligible to receive a pension
from the New York State Retirement System and the surviving spouse contributes 25% of the cost.
The Town, as administrator of the plan, does not issue a separate report.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

-

HEALTHCARE BENEFITS (continued)

Emolovees Covered by Benefit Terms
As of January 1,2019, the effective date of the most recent OPEB valuation, is based on the census data
as of January 1, 2020. The number of employees covered by the benefit terms as of January 1, 2020, is
as follows:
Active employees

814

lnactive employees receiving benefits

854

Total

1,668

There have been no significant changes in the number of employees or the type of coverage since that
date.

TotalOPEB Liability

The Town's total OPEB liability of $535,569,809 was measured as of December 31 , 2020 and was
determined byan actuarialvaluation as of January 1,2020, with updating procedures used to rollfonrvard
the OPEB liability to the measurement date. The total OPEB liability represents the sum of expected
future benefit payments which may be attributed to past service or 'earned', discounted to the end of the
year using the current discount rate. The OPEB liability is part of the noncurrent liabilities due in more than
one year in the statement of net position.
Fundinq Policy
The Town currently pays for other postemployment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.
Actuarial Assumptions and Other lnouts

The projection of future benefits for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of future events far into the future. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of a plan and the employer's annual required contributions are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future.
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan

members

to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that

are

designed to reduce the effects of shortterm liability in actuarial accrued liabilities, consistent with the longterm perspective of the calculations.

The total OPEB liability based on the January 1, 2019 and rolled fonruard valuation and measured as of
December 31,2020, was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs:
Payroll growth rate

2.500/o

Discount rate

2.12o/o

Healthcare cost trend rates

7

Cost method

Entry Age Normal Cost

Participation rate

100o/o

Mortality

Unisex pre-retirement mortality rates and postretirement mortality rates for health,
participants using Mortality Projection Scale MP-2018

.00oh for 2020, decreasing 0.5 percent per year to an ultimate 4.50oh in 2025

of active employees covered under the active plan will enroll in the retiree p

The discount rate used based on the Bond Buyer's 20 Bond lndex as of the measurement date. The
discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability at December 31, 2020 was 2.12% as compared to
2.74% at December 31,2019.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

-

HEALTHCARE BENEFITS (continued)

Changes in the TotalOPEB Liability
The following table shows the components of the Town's other postemployment benefits liability

$

Other postemployment liability at the beginning of year, as reported

464,991,138

Changes for the year:

17,617,061
13,033,632
53,878,654
(13,950,676)

Service cost
lnterest
Changes in assumptions and other inputs
Benefit payments

70,578,671

Net changes

$

Other postemployment liability at the end of year

535,569,809

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Chanqes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Town at December 31,2020, as well as what the
Town's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentagepoint lower (1.12To) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.12%) than the current discount rate:
Discount Rate
Current assumption
(2.12%)

1% Decrease
(1.12%)

TotalOPEB Liability

$

452,523,695

$

SeS,569,809

1% lncrease
(3.12%)

$

642,616,970

Sensitivitv of the Total OPEB Liabilitv to Chanqes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Town at December 31,2020, as well as what the
Town's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1percentage-point lower (6.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.00%) than the current healthcare cost
trend rates:

% Decrease
(6.00% to 3.50%)
1

TotalOPEB Liability

$

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate
Current assumption
(7.QOYo to 4.50%)

441,068,825

$

535,569,809

17o lncrease
(8.00% to 5.50%)

$

673,887,959

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflow of Resources and Deferred lnflow of Resources Related to
OPEB

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $39,708,032. At
December 31,2020, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB as follows:
Deferred Outflows
of Resources

$

Changes in assumptions

93,150,638

Deferred lnflows
of Resources
$

25,593,943

Differences between expected and actual experience

Total
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

-

HEALTHCARE BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflow of Resources and Deferred lnflow of Resources Related to
OPEB (continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

$

For Years Ending December 31, 2021

2022
2023
2024
2025

9,057,339
9,057,339
13,168,171

12,073,056
2,072,254

$

45,428,159

10. COMPENSATED ABSENCES
Town employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn compensatory absences in varying
amounts. ln the event of termination or upon retirement, an employee is entitled to payment for
accumulated vacation, sick leave, and unused compensatory absences at various rates subject to certain
maximum limitations. Separated employees with accruals less than or equal to $30,000 at the time of
separation are paid in one lump sum. Separated employees with an accrual greater than $30,000 receive
payment in three annual installments as follows: forty percent at the time of separation and thirty percent
in each of the two following years.
Estimated vacation, sick leave and compensatory absences accumulated by governmental fund type
employees have been recorded in the statement of net position. Payment of vacation time and sick leave
is dependent upon many factors; therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable.

However, management believes that sufficient resources will be made available for the payments of
vacation, sick leave and compensatory absences when such payments become due. As of December 31,
2020, the value of the accumulated vacation time, sick leave and compensatory absences was
$18,179,442

for governmental activities of which $16,874,947 is owed to active employees

and

$1,304,495 is owed to separated employees.
As of December 31, 2020, the contractual future payments due to separated employees for compensated
absences accruals are as follows:
Years ending December 31,2021

$

835,677

2022
2023

368,611
49,672

2024

26,654

2025

11,941

Thereafter

11,940

$

1,304,495

ln accordance with the terms of the labor contract, during 2011-2014, the equivalent of ten days of pay
was withheld from each employee (as defined in each labor contract) except for certain management
employees with which the equivalent of 15 days of pay was withheld, each year. This liability is
payable upon the employee's separation from employment at the rate of pay at time of such
separation and totaled $1,473,215 at December 31, 2020.
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1. TAX ABATEMENT PROGRAMS
The Town is subject to tax abatements (real property taxes) granted by its discretely presented
component unit, the Town of Brookhaven lndustrial Development Agency ("lDA'). The IDA offers this
abatement program to promote, retain, attract and encourage and develop economically sound
commerce and industry base to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration primarily within
the Town of Brookhaven.
Pursuant to Title 1, Article 18A of NYS General Municipal Law and Chapter 358 of the Laws of 1970
of New York State (as amended), the IDA was created and empowered to undertake the providing,
financing and leasing of certain qualified projects. Generally, a qualified project is an applicant
submitted project which meet certain economic development criteria (such as job creation/retention)
and which either 1) has been or will be financed by the issuance of IDA issued bonds, notes or other
evidence of indebtedness with respect thereto or 2) is a straight lease transaction with the IDA has
determined to undertake pursuant to a Lease Policy. Under the terms of these agreements, title of
the property is usually transferred to the lDA. The real property tax abatement program provides
property tax abatements (excluding special assessments and special ad valorem tax) up to 100% of
real property taxes up to ten years on qualified new capital improvements for which the IDA retains
title to the real property. During the term of the agreements, the benefiting entity must operate and
maintain the property consistent with the terms of the agreement, failure to do so may result in
financial penalties being imposed such as the recapture of the benefits received, depending upon the
severity of the noncompliance. The lDA, as a general condition of providing assistance, may require
that benefiting company enter into a 'payment in lieu of taxes' ("PlLOT") agreement either separately
or as part of the project documents to offset the taxes abated.

During 2020,hhe agreements the IDA ratified resulted in an abatement of $2,901 ,947 of the Town's
real property taxes and the PILOTs received totaled $1,466,117.The amount of the abated taxes
reported is based on the assessed value of property per the official assessment tax rolls and tax
rates in effect on December 1,2019, the tax lien date.
The Town is also subject to tax abatements granted by the Suffolk County lndustrial Development
Agency ('SCIDA'), an entity created by Suffolk County, New York. Similar to the lDA, the SCIDA
offers several abatement programs on certain qualified projects to promote, retain, attract and

encourage sound commerce and industry base to prevent unemployment and economic
development. At December 31 , 2020, only the real property tax abatement program offered by

SCIDA impacts the Town's revenues. Generally, a qualified project is an applicant submitted project
which meet certain economic development criteria (such as job creation/retention) and which either
1) has been or will be financed by the issuance of SCIDA issued bonds, notes or other evidence of
indebtedness with respect thereto or 2) is a straight lease transaction with the SCIDA has determined
to undertake pursuant to a Lease Policy.
The SCIDA, as a condition of providing assistance, may require that the benefiting company remit a
PILOT payment to offset the amount of taxes abated. During the year ended December 31, 2020, the
agreements the SCIDA ratified resulted in an abatement of $166,472 of the Town's real property
taxes the Town will receive $56,644 in PILOT payments.
Both the IDA and the SCIDA offer other programs such as the abatement of sales and mortgage
taxes. These programs provide abatements of other municipalities' taxes and have no impact on
Town assessed taxes.
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D.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

1.

RISK MANAGEMENT

ln common with other municipalities, the Town receives numerous notices of claims. The Town selfinsures for general and auto liability up to a maximum of $1,000,000 per claim. Claims in excess of
$1,000,000 are covered under a commercial casualty policy for $10,000,000 in aggregate for general
liability, automobile liability each occurrence and public officials/employment practices liability
aggregate. The Town also has an excess liability policy of $25,000,000 over and above the first
$1

0,000,000 of excess coverage.

The Town of Brookhaven also self-insures for workers compensation. With the changes that have
taken place in the excess market for workers compensation resulting in significant premium increases,
rising self-insured retention limits and a reduction in the availability of excess insurance the Town has
elected to purchase an excess insurance program that is based on projected payroll for the policy
period. The premium cost for a traditional workers compensation excess insurance policy is the more
financially viable option. The traditional policy purchased carries a total payment cap of $25,000,000
and a $2,000,000 self-insured retention limit. The premium for this policy is lower than a cash flow
policy because the self-insured retention limit has been raised to $2,000,000.
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage as compared to the prior year, and there
were no settlements in excess of insurance coverage over the last three years.
Although the eventual outcome of these claims cannot presently be determined, the Town has estimated
unsettled claims and litigation as of December 31, 2020 to be $20,330,639. As of December 31,2020 lhe
Town is of the opinion that the ultimate settlement of the outstanding claims will not result in a material
adverse effect on the Town's financial position.

The Town estimates its liability for workers' compensation and general liability and automobile claims by
consulting with legal counsel and past experience with similar claims. Claim liabilities also include
specific, incremental claim adjustment expenses. As of December 31,2020, the Town has not
purchased any annuity contracts with regards to its workers compensation or general liability claims.

The schedule below presents the changes in claims liabilities for the past two years for workers'
compensation and general and auto liability.
General and Auto Liability
2019

Workers' Compensation

2020

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment
expenditures at the beginning of the year

2020

2019

$ 12,289,155 $ 15,783,221

$

6,214,444

$

7,975,502

Provision for insured events of the
current year and changes in provision
for insured events of prior years

5,565,563

1,290,380

170,915

Less claims and claim adjustment
expenditures attributable to insured
events of the current and prior years

3,506,330

4,784,446

403,108

2,655,654

5,982,251

$

6,214,444

4,050,000
1,932,251

$3 ,950,000
$2 ,264,444

894,596

Total unpaid claims and claim
adjustment expenditures at year end
Current portion
Long{erm portion

$

14,348,388

$

3,015,000
$ 11,333,388
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

2.

LITIGATION

Tax Gertiorari Proceedings

At December 31, 2020, there were numerous claims by taxpayers requesting a revision of assessed
valuations (certiorari proceedings) for assessments through 2020. These claims are the result of
petitioners' complaints that their assessed property valuations are improper in that they represent
overvaluation and unequal treatment. Under the Suffolk County Tax Act and the New York State Real
Property Tax Law, any court ordered reductions to petitioners' assessments which result in a refund of
prior years' taxes are paid by Suffolk County (the "County"), and charged back to the taxpayers of the
Town in ensuing years. Reductions in petitioners' assessments will reduce the available property base
upon which future tax levies are made. The ultimate outcome of these cannot be determined at this
time.

Other Litigation
The Town is subject to a number of other lawsuits in the ordinary conduct of its affairs. The Town
does not believe however, that such other suits, individually or in the aggregate, are likely to have a
materially adverse effect on the financial condition of the Town. The Town has determined that in
recent years all litigation against the Town has been settled within budgetary appropriates for such
purposes, and within available insurance coverage. The Town is a self-insured entity, with retention of
the first $1.0 million for any loss and maintains an excess policy of $10.0 million and a further excess
policy of $25.0 million over and above the first $10.0 million of excess coverage. Additionally, there are
a number of pending lawsuits seeking monetary damages against the Town that have been referred to
and are being handled by the Town's insurance carriers.

3.

LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS
State and federal laws and regulations require the Town to place a final cover on its landflll sites when
closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after
closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that each
landfill stops accepting waste the Town is required to report a portion of these closure and postclosure
care costs as an operating expense in each period based on the landfill capacity used as of each balance

sheet date. The estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs has a balance of
$33,543,250 as of December 31 ,2020, which is based on 100% of capacity of the landfill for Cells one
through flve and approximately 81% for Cell six. Cells one through five were closed and capped in
previous years.
It is estimated that an additional$7,155,000 will be recognized as closure and postclosure care expenses
between the date of the balance sheet and the date the landfill is expected to be filled to capacity. The
estimated remaining life of the landfill is approximately four years. The estimated total current costs of the
closure and postclosure care costs is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities,
and services required to close, monitor and maintain the landfill were acquired as of December 31,2020.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

3.

LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS (continued)

Actual costs may change due to inflation, general economic conditions, changes in technology, or
changes in landfill laws and regulations. The majority of the closure and post-closure care costs will be
funded through the issuance of bonds and surplus earnings in the General Fund.

The Town complies with State and Federal laws requirements for owners to demonstrate financial
assurance for closure and postclosure, and/or correction action (if applicable). The Town has established
a fund balance reserve restricted for the purpose of funding a portion of the landfill's postclosure care
costs. At December 31,2020, the balance in this reserve is $17,294,630.

Annually, the Town is required to present a Financial Assurance Requirements for future closure and
postclosure expenditures related to the Town's landfill operations by reporting the estimated liability for
closure and post-closure care liability and demonstrate that it has meet financial covenants and
accounting standards regarding the operation of its landfill in accordance with the provision of 40 CFR
258.74 The landfill closure and postclosure care costs liability has been calculated using certain
assumptions and methodologies which have been deemed acceptable by the New York State
Department of Environmental Control.

4.

CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER CAPITAL ACQUISITION COMMITMENTS

in

progress, commitments for equipment purchases and other capital acquisition
commitments amounting to $12,543,773 have been recorded as encumbrances in the capital projects
Construction

fund and are included in the restricted component of fund balance.

5.

POLLUTIONREMEDIATIONOBLIGATIONS

The Town's policy is to estimate the components of expected pollution remediation outlays and
determine whether outlays for those components should be accrued as a liability or, if appropriate,
capitalized when goods and services are acquired.
Obligating events include the following:
The Town

o ls compelled to take remediation action because of imminent endangerment
. Violates a pollution related permit or license
. ls named or will be named as a responsible party or potentially responsible party for a
remediation

o
.

ls named, or will be named in a lawsuit to compel pollution remediation
Commences or obligates itself to remediate pollution

Pollution remediation activity includes costs relating to removing contaminates in ground water resulting
from landfill leachate runoff into the ground water. The estimated liability includes costs for draining the
contaminated pond water, lining the pond and refilling it. At December 31, 2020,hhe Town has recorded
pollution remediation obligation of approximately $761,280 which is estimated to be due within one year.
The liability was based on current environmental regulations and engineering reports developed from
outside consultants. During the course of any of the Town's pollution remediation projects, additional
information found through soil/water sampling could adversely affect duration and costs if additional
contaminates are found. Actual costs may vary due to inflation or deflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations or applicable laws.
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6.

TRASHFORASH
On September 16,2014, the Town of Brookhaven amended and restated its Municipal Solid Waste and
Ash Disposal Agreement with the Covanta Hempstead Company.

Under the terms of the amended and restated agreement, the Town will dispose of approximately
170,000 tons of municipal solid waste (MSW) which will be incinerated at the Covanta Hempstead
Wasteto-Energy Facility. As part of this agreement the Town of Brookhaven will also receive
approximately 230,000 tons of ash at the Brookhaven Landfill. Under this Agreement, the fees for both
the disposal of ash and MSW are on a per ton basis.

7.

LEASE COMMITMENTS AND LEASED ASSETS

The Town leases real property and equipment under various operating leases and on an as basis
needed. Total rental expenditures for all funds, with the exception of those of the Highway Funds, were
approximately $255,000 for the year ended December 31,2020. Total rental expenditures for the
Highway Funds were approximately $1,597,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020. Minimum future
rental commitments under non-cancelable leases are not materialas most leases operate on a month-tomonth basis or for a period of one year or less and the Highway Fund rents equipment for snow removal
on an as needed basis.

8.

CONTINGENCIESAND UNCERTAINTIES
Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal and state government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may

be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
Coronavirus
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared a global pandemic as a result of the spread
Coronavirus. This was followed by the President of the United States declaring the outbreak of
Coronavirus a national emergency on March 13,2020.

of

Preceding these announcements, the Governor of the State of New York declared a state of emergency
on March 7,2020 and has since issued multiple Executive Orders regarding the pandemic. Furthermore,
the Enacted 2020-21 New York State budget granted the Budget Director the authority to reduce state aid
payments to local governments and towns by amount needed to achieve a balanced budget. The Budget
Director is authorized, under Section 1(f) of Chapter 53 of the Laws of 2020,to withhold all or some of
speciflc local aid payments during state fiscal year 2020-21, that began on April 1,2020, if the budget is
deemed unbalanced and if the Budget Director further determines that such withholding is necessary to
respond to the direct and indirect economic financial and social effects of the Coronavirus pandemic
(" Reduction Authority").

The ultimate size of any permanent reductions would depend in part on the availability of unrestricted
Federal aid. The Federal government has not reached a consensus on additional recovery legislation at
this time. Therefore, in the interim, without assurance of Federal aid, New York State has begun
withholding a minimum of 20o/o of most municipal and town aid payments to achieve the cash flow
savings anticipated in the Executive Budget Financial Plan as updated for the Governor's amendments
and forecast revisions pursuant to the Reduction Authority. Such measures have already impacted the
state aid revenues reported by the Town for the year ended December 31,2020.
ln addition to these New York State actions, the Town's economically sensitive revenues (i.e., mortgage

tax, interest earnings, charges for services) are being negatively impacted. Meanwhile, the Town's
expenditures on health and safety measures (personal protective equipment, sanitizing supplies,
custodial overtime, technology acquisitions to support a safe working environment) will increase
significantly.

-71 -

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31,2020

D.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

8.

CONTINGENT AND UNGERTAINTIES (continued)
Coron avirus (continued)

The outbreak of the Coronavirus and the dramatic steps taken by the Federal government and New York
State to address it will continue to negatively affect New York State and its local economies. The full
impact of the Coronavirus on New York State's operations and financial condition is not expected to be
known for some time. Similar!, the degree of the impact on the Town's future operations and finances as
a result of the Coronavirus is extremely difficult to predict due to uncertainties relating to its duration and
severity, as well as with regard to what actions may be taken by governmental and other health care
authorities, including New York State, to contain or mitigate its effects. The spread of the outbreak or
reemergence later in the year could have a material adverse flnancial effect on New York State and local
municipalities, including the Town. The Town is continuously monitoring the situation and will take such
proactive measures as may be required to maintain operations and meet its obligations. Given this level
of uncertainty, management cannot reasonably estimate the actual impact on the Town's future financial
position at this time.

Employment Agreements

The Town's employee union agreements expired on December 31,2019. The Town and respective
bargaining units are in the process of negotiating new agreements.

9.

SERVICECONCESSIONARRANGEMENTS
During 2015, the Town entered into a flfteen-year agreement with a third party to operate and collect user
fees from the Davis Park Marina. The third party will pay the Town an annual licensing fee of $115,000
and fifty percent of the gross revenues in excess of $500,000. During the term of the agreement, the
Town reports the Davis Park Marina as a capital asset. At December 31, 2020, the Town reported a

receivable and deferred inflow

of

resources in the government-wide statements

in the amount of

$1,035,000.

E. CUMULATIVE

EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

During 2020, the Town implemented GASB Statement No. 84 "Fiduciary Activities". As a result, the Town's

governmental activities net position and governmental fund balance were restated as of January 1,2020
as follows:
Government
Net position/fund balance, as originally

reported

$ 305,68'1,911

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,
GASB Statement No. 84
Net position/fund balance, as restated

General
Fund

$ 71,003,119 $ 20,198,672 $ 27,191,301
662.437

2.862.073

_$_999j33.€9t_

Non-major
Town Outside Refuse and
Capital Projects Governmental
Funds *
Villaoe Fund Garbage Fund
Fund

_$._7

1,665,9.99_

45,139

5'16,370

$(16,521,917)

$

1,590,627
$

$ 20.243.811 $ 27,707.671 _$l1l,el].3gE

393,720
47,500
441,220

* This peftains to the Park Reserve Escrow fund.

F. SUBSEQUENTEVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the financial statements
through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, which date is June 25,2021.
The Town is expected to receive approximately $55.0 million in direct aid through the ARPA which was signed
into law on March 11, 2021. The Town received 50% of this allocation in June 2021. The Town is expected to
receive the remaining 50o/o in 2022. According to the ARPA, the Town must obligate the funds by December
31, 2024 and expend them by December 31, 2026. lt is the intent of the Town, to the extent allowable under
the ARPA, to use these funds for future expenditures incurred as a well as lost revenue related to COVID-19.
The intended use of the remaining funds is still under discussion, but investment in the Town's sewers, water
quality, and road infrastructure has already been approved by the Town Board.
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The Town is expected to receive approximately $SS.O million in direct aid through the ARPA which was signed
into law on March 11,2021. The Town received 50% o'f this allocation in June 2021. The Town is expected to
receive the remaining 50% in 2022. According to the ARPA, the Town must obligate the funds by December
31, 2024 and expend them by December 31, 2026. lt is the intent of the Town, to the extent allowable under
the ARPA, to use these funds for future expenditures incurred as a well as lost revenue related to COVID-19.
The intended use of the remaining funds is still under discussion, but investment in the Town's sewers, water
quality, and road infrastructure has already been approved by the Town Board.

The Town also received a direct allocation from the U.S. Treasury Department for the Emergency Rental
Assistance Program, authorized by the Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021 enacted December 27,2020
in the amount of $14.3 million (ERAI ). The Town redirected the ERAI monies to New York State to administer
the program on behalf of Brookhaven Residents, with 10% returned to the Town in the form of a New York
State Grant for local outreach and application support.

A second direct Emergency Rental Assistance Program allocation from the U.S. Treasury Department to the
Town was authorized by the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, in the amount of $14.9 million (ERA2). The
Town intends to redirect ERA2 monies as well.

G. NEWPRONOUNCEMENTS
The following statements have been issued by the GASB and are to have the most impact in future years:

GASB Statement No. 87, 'Leases", as amended by GASB Statement No. 95, "Postponement of the
Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance", establishes a single model for lease accounting based
on the concept that leases are a flnancing of a "right-to-use" underlying asset. As such, this Statement
requires a lessee to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset. A lessor will be
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,2021.
This is not an all-inclusive list of recently issued GASB pronouncements but rather a listing of Statements that
the Town believes will most impact its financial statements. The Town will evaluate the impact this and other
pronouncements may have on its financial statements and will implement them as applicable and when
material.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION OTHER
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-

Budget and Actual Major

The budgets are adopted on a basis of accounting consistent with GMP. ln the event that actual revenues
received exceed budgeted amounts, additional budgetary appropriations are made. The Capital Projects and
Special Grant Funds are budgeted on a project or grant basis. Additionally, the following funds do not have
annually adopted budgets: one Debt Service Fund, Housing Trust Fund, Reserve Escrow Funds, the Sidewalk
Districts and certain individual districts within the Ambulance, Fire Protection, and Water Districts.

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Final
Budget

Original

Budset

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual

REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TAXES

Ad valorem taxes
Collection of former Village Real Property taxes
Total Real Property Taxes

$

24,784,948

24,784,948

24,784,948

24,784,948

400,000
675,000

400,000

OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
Payment in lieu of taxes
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes
Total Other Real Property Tax ltems

$

$

24,784,948
24,566
24,809,514

$

24 566
24 566

1,075,000

675,000
1,075,000

463,710
658,313
1,122,023

9,200,000

9,000,000

8,663,945

9,200,000

9,000,000

8,663,945

425,000

350,000
26,000

398,040
38,305
185,268

48,040

72,710

12,710

63,710
(16,687)

47 023

NON-PROPERTY TAX ITEMS

Franchise taxes
Total Non-Property Tax ltems
DEPARTMENTAL INCOME
Assessor fees
Town clerk fees
Attorney fees
Public pound charges
Other public safety
Charges - Programs for the Aging
Park and recreational charges
Recreation concessions
Special recreational facility charges
Other culture and recreation
Landfill and recycling charges
Zoning fees
Environmental conservation
Small Business Advisory Council fees
Other home and community
Other transportation
Total Departmental lncome
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES
Landfill and recycling
Total lntergovernmental

charges

38,000
180,500

182,375

60,000

60,000
125,000
8,500
1,194,850
150,000
1,885,030

135,000

28,000
2,919,950
170,000
1

,921,130
223,450

Charges

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments
Rental of real property
Rental - other
Renewable energy

(32,748)

19,035

(1

49,233,866
23,736

52,725
10,665)

1,779,243
(6,264)
19,222

94,222
2,18,l ,965
3,629

61 ,600,930

53,961,978

55,846,1 54

1,884,176

5,075,929
5,075,929

75 929
75 929

9,000,000
9,000,000

5,000,000
5,000,000

850,000
4,466,667

450,000
3,449,000

18,125
1

72,000
325
35,000
34,000
85,000

Bingo license
Dog licenses

Other licenses and permits

226,325
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23,976
204,487
55
(10,516)

218,002

(5,053)
(100)

12,203

26,000
85,000

174,403

473,976

45,947
100

200
12,203

08,935)
3,629

3,653,487
18,180
4,235,127

51,000

$

(1

89,484

00,000

4,017j25

5,434,697

$

215,172

2,290,900

Games of chance

Permits

990

(4,141)

2,287,900

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Business and occupational licenses

Total Licenses and

2,893

4,359
1,410,022
117,252
1,937,755

30,000
75,000

18,030
100,000

Total Use of Money and Property

12,305

125,990

129,700
47,454,623

53,013,000
1 10,000
75,000
14,000

(336,055)
(336,055)

$

26,133

133

220,310

135,310

304,693

$

130,290
(continued)
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FUND BALANCE. BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Original
Budget
FINE AND FORFEITURES
Abandoned car storage and redemption
Abandoned car auctions

80,000

$

Final
Budget

60,000

Total Fines and Forfeitures
SALE OF PROPERTY AND
COMPENSATION FOR LOSS
Sales, recycling
Sales, other
Sales of real property
Sales of equipment
lnsurance recoveries
Other compensation for loss

MISCELLANEOUS LOCAL SOURCES
Refunds of prior year expenditures
Grants from local governments
Gifts and donations
Other miscellaneous revenue
Total Miscellaneous Local Sources

93,086

(544)
13,086

140,000

152,542

12 542

35,000
12,000

52,466

17,466

'112,788

$

$

35,000
10,000
500,000
75,000
30,000
1,000,000

500,000

295,578

(204,422)

75,000
5,000
1,200,000

98,965

25,214
1,263,028

23,965
20,214
63,028

1,750,000

1,927,000

1,848,039

(78,961)

85,000
63,583
100,500
75,000

15,000
55,583
7,500

55,615

48,1 1 5

324,083

157,208

1,283,327

1,126,119

1

Total Sale of Property
and Compensation for Loss

59,456

80,000

$

80,000
160,000

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual

1

788

43,936
95,874
1,087,902

79,125

28,936
40,291
1,008,777

INTERFUND REVENUES

lnterfund revenue
Total lnterfund Revenue

(200,244)
(200,244)

3,744,251

3,666,901

3,466,657

3,744,251

3,666,901

3,466,657

14,000,000
1,034,059

16,000,000
876,347

4,443,017

STATE AID

Mortgage tax
Other general government
Youth programs
Home and community grants
Total State Aid

200,025

368,945

844,667

,921,039

22,450,808

4,529,769

399,749
35,000

251,722
35,000

273,640

2',t,918

24,639
459,388

24,339
31 1,061

19,524
328,164

15,634,838

FEDERALAID
Nutrition program for the aging
Other federal aid
Other home and community service
Total Federal Aid
Total Revenues

231,834

20,443,017
1,039,088
182,247
786,456

$

133,394,460
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17

$

122,136,663

162,741

(17,778)
(58,21 1)

35,000

$

129,5B6,922

(4,815)
17 103

$

7,450,259
(continued)
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Year Ended December 31,2020
Final
Budget

Original
Budget
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT SUPPORT
Town council office

$

1,952,972

$

Purchasing

1,359,742

737,291
753,905
2,446,629
806,779

Public information
Buildings and grounds
Vehicle control
Central reproduction and mailing
lnformation technology
General services administration
Unallocated insurance and
judgments and claims
Declared disaster and emergency costs
Other general government support
Total General Government Support
PUBLIC SAFETY
Public safety administration
Code enforcement

Animal shelter
Harbors and wateMays
Total Public Safety
TRANSPORTATION
Highway administration
Total Transportation

770,614
606,038

561 ,706

2,553,500

2,979,270

43,691
93,1 58
4,B30
94,277

129,652
33,967
3,894

867,44'l

10,0B7

44,332
204,862

1,995,696

4,980,569
758,997

845,380

1

31 ,166

34,478
760,527

106,340

57,074
37,233
229,080
157,402

't,022,421
4,297,993

2,200,558
799,982

5,386,139

$

563,986
3,235,600
1,682,361
855,633
3,530,463

901,408
38,372

37,621

1,859,121
1,239,679

4,427,645

4,382,648
992,738

Personnel
Board of ethics

$

3,464,680
1,839,763
899,324
3,723,621
35,996
1 ,1 1 6,698

2,029,052
929,314
4,134,344
35,996

Assessor
Board of assessment review
Town clerk
Town attorney

1,965,461
1,296,753
601,219

1,332,805
630,1 02
3,746,839

Supervisor's office
451 call center
Comptroller
Tax receiver

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual

759,209
4,879,376
751,072

40,773
101,193

2,894,077
1,127,715

7,925

6,706,362

1,13'1,123
5,201,027

5,098,515

85,193
3,408
102,5't2

41 ,800,158

39,739,1 18

38,048,235

1,690,883

663,531
241,457
2,903,104

509,915
306,346
2,736,669

813,006
4,621,098

707,452
4.260.382

476,653
288,888
2,480,346
655,550

2,400,827

2,303,975

2,400,827

2,303,975

267,767
50,250

270,047
50,200

33,262
17,458
256,323
51 ,902
358 945

3,901,437

2.226,252
2,226,252

77 723

252,158
45,000
1.524.295
1.821.453

17,889
5,200

77,723

ECONOMIC ASSISTANCE AND

OPPORTUNITY
Economic development
Veterans services
Programs for the aging
Total Economic Assistance And Opportunity

1,817,155

1,722,068

$

2,040,085

-76 -

$

2,137,402

$

292,860

$

315,949
(continued)

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Final
Budget

Original
Budget
CULTURE AND RECREATION
Parks and recreation administration
Parks division

1,126,929
14,299,423

$

$

950,311

Recreation centers
Beaches and pools facilities
Marina and dock facilities
Youth programs
Youth bureau

2,416,819
1,089,730

925,684
802,502
82,333

Historian

178,403
919,184

Adult recreation programs
Ecology center
Programs for the disabled

1

93,382

22,984,700

Total Culture and Recreation
HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
Environmental protection

677,113

Refuse and garbage
Community development administration
Women services

15,809,501
596,034
1 18,388

Total Home and Community Services

UNALLOCATED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Retirement system
Social security
Workers' compensation
Life insurance
Unemployment beneflts
Hospital, medical and dental- retirees
Other employee benefits

1

oTHER FTNANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Premium and accrued interest on obligations
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

$

105,415

$

340,115

170,138

35,340
95,927
89,681

1,834,532

1,930,459

996,098
592,216
697,638
53,246
1

,692,168

906,417
540,737
664,303
52,641
77,597

04,082

888,022
65,055
20,040,668

19,194,569

651,027
13,695,576

12,703,176

475,688

242,075

51,479
33,335
605
26,485
29,797

858,225
27,135

37,920
846,099

511,670

109,785

139,357
992,400
233,6't 3
3,1 56

106,629

13,563,550

103,471
07,1 00
2,655,000
83,000
160,000
8,002,753

11,406
71,300

11,406
71,279

2,439,400

2,392,778
79,373

79,900
300,000
7,338,862

1

,368,526

21

46,622
527
102,531
8,936

197,469

7,329,926

2,189

20,672
10,261,540

10,100,714

02,1 82,988

93,675,161

88,856,210

4,818,951

31 ,211,472

28,461.502

40,730,712

12,269,210

379,326
852,706
(35,169,777)

379,326
852,706
(35,075,082)

94,695

(33,937,745)

(33,843,050)

1 1 ,1

Total Expenditures

205,478

1

12,370,676

14.932,076

23,760

Excess of Revenues
Ov6r Expendltures

$

12,710,791

17,201,036

1

Total Employee Benefits

1,797,583

Variance with
Final Budset

Actual

35,084

(31,211,472)
(31 ,211,472\
-0- $

18,483

(5,476,243)

6,887,662

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as orlglnally reported

71,003,119

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, GASB No. 84

662,437

Fund Balance, at Beginning ofYear, restated

71 ,665,556

$

Fund Balance at End ofYear

-77 -

78,553,218

1

60,826

94,695

$

12,363,905

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REQUI RED SUPPLEMENTARY I NFORMATION

TOWN OUTSIDE VILLAGE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020

REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY

TMES

$

Ad valorem taxes
Total Real Property Taxes
OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
Payment in lieu of taxes
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes
Total Other Real Property Tax ltems

DEPARTMENTAL INCOME
Town clerk fees
Safety inspection fees
Charges for demolition on unsafe buildings
Public health fees
Zoning fees
Planning division fees
Other home and community

Budset

8,03B,927

$

lncome

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments

Total Use of Money and Property
LICENSES AND PERMITS
Taxi cab and towing licenses

Total Licenses and Permits
FINES AND FORFEITURES
Parking violation fines and handicap surcharge
Other fines

Total Fines and Forfeitures

Actual

8,038,927

$

8,038,927

$

8,038,927

8,038,927

3,000
100

3,000
401

2,971
401

(2e)

3,100

3,401

3,372

(2s)

430,000

300,000
7,754,200

232,518

(67,482\

7,783,385

1,200,000

1,194,794

300,500

8,543,500
'1,200,000

Total Departmental

Variance wilh
Final Budget

Final

Original
Budqet

8,038,927

29,1 85

(5,206)
44,548
(1 16,61 7)

300,500
1,325,000
1,B25,500
148,000

1,300,000
1,413,500
78,000

345,048
1,183,383
1,598,906
109,544

13,772,500

12,346,200

12,447,578

101 ,378

300,000

175,000

'177 767

2 767

300,000

175,000

't77 767

2,767

85 000

70,000

82,048

12,048

85 000

70,000

82,048

12 048

535,000
000

535,000
657,500

555,266

20,266

656,657

,192,500

1,211,923

19,423

1,894

894

2,035,000

1

'185,406

31.544

(843)

SALE OF PROPERTY AND
COMPENSATION FOR LOSS

lnsurance recoveries

1,894

Total Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss

1,894

MISCELLANEOUS LOCAL SOURCES
Refunds of prior year expenditures
Revenue sharing - per capita
Other miscellaneous revenue

Total Miscellaneous Local Sources
STATE AID
Other general government and public safety

Total State Aid

1,808,932
46,000

1,447,146
36,000

46,879

31,066
361,786
10,879

1,854,932

1,483,',t46

1,886,877

403,73',1

12,000

32,659

49,44'l

16.782

12,000

32,659

49,441

16,782

1,000

800

817

17

1,000

800

817

17

31 ,066
1,808,932

FEDEML AID
Other federal aid

Total Federal Aid
Total Revenues

$

26.102.459

-78 -

$

23,342,633

$

23,900,644

$

558,011
(continued)

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TOWN OUTSIDE VILLAGE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Final
Budget

Original
Budget
EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT SUPPORT
Declared disaster and emergency costs
Other general government support

$

Total General Government Support

17,723

$

Variance with
Final Budqet

Actual

'17,723

$

$

4,265,672

3,855,205

3,203,412

651 793

4,265,672

3,872,928

3,221,',135

651 793

5,697,996
3,029,917
992,927
90,963

4,837,665
2,735,538
925,486

4,274,366

563,299

2,254,351
1,748,644

2,217,275

2,638,805
809,279
39,898
2,046,680

96,733
116,207
32,747
170,595

PUBLIC SAFETY

Buildings division
Fire marshals
Code enforcement
Parking violations bureau
lnvestigators
Demolition of unsafe buildings
Total Public Safety

13,814,798

72,645
1,305,822

194,780

1,111,042

10,920,070

12.094.431

1

,174,36',1

HEALTH

Registrar of vital statistics
Total Health
HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
Environmental protection

Zoning Board
Planning

Accessory apartment review board
Total Home and Community Services
UNALLOCATED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Retirement system
Social security
Workers' compensation
Life insurance
Unemployment benefits
Hospital, medical and dental- retirees

697,313

626.324

593 705

32,619

697,313

626,324

593 705

32,619

724,741
1,098,390

482,224

1,090,557

1

46,479
55,424
154,015

528,703

2,675,320
118,074

2,522,704
117 163

,035,133
2,368,689
102 BB4

4,616,525

4,259,127

3,988,930

270,197

06,053
50,438
1 13,000

97,960
31,373
3,691

105,020
285,381

14,279

126,527
53,438
160,000
14,500
5,000
1,506,030

80,000
1,486,293

8,093
19,065
I 09,309
14,685
32,953
1,381 ,273

Total Employee Benefits

1,865,495

1,850,759

1,565,378

Total Current

25,259,803

22,703,569

20,289,218

2,414,35',1

Total Expenditures

25,259,803

22,703,569

20,289,218

2,414,351

3,611,426

2,972,362

Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures

1

14,975

639,064

842,656

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Premium and accrued interest on obligations
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources

(842,656)

(Uses)

(842,656)

-0- $

Net Change in Fund Balance

(1

14,844

14,844

296,455
.083.930)

296,455
(1,083,930)

(772,631)

072,6311

(133,567)

2,838,795

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as originally reported

20,198,672

Gumulative effect of change in accounting principle, GASB No. 84

45,1 39

20,243,811

Fund Balance, at Beginning ofYear, regtated

$

Fund Balance at End ofYear
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23,082,606

290
47,047

$

2.972.362

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY I NFORMATION
HIGHWAY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE . BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020

Budget

REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TAXES

Ad valorem taxes

$

$

Total Real Property Taxes
OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
Payment in lieu of taxes
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes
Total Other Real Property Tax ltems

DEPARTMENTAL INCOME
Other transportation departmental income
Total Departmental lncome
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES
Highway services
Total ntergovernmental Charges
I

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments

Total Use of Money and Property
LICENSES AND PERMITS
Other licenses and permits

Total Licenses and Permits
SALE OF PROPERTY AND
COMPENSATION FOR LOSS
Sales of equipment

lnsurance recoveries
Total Sale of Property
and Compensation for Loss

Variance with
Final Budset

Final

Original
Budoet

Actual

69,439,553

$

69,439,553

$

69,439,553

69,439,553

900,000

923,809

954,786

700

700

3.464

1,764

901,700

925,509

958,250

32,741

232,500

152,500

112,923

(39,577)

232 500

152,500

112,923

(39,577)

207 000

149,420

46,610

(102,810)

207,000

'149,420

46,610

(102,810)

725,000
725,000

405,000
405,000

397,020
397,020

800,000

500,000

613,473

113,473

800,000

500,000

613,473

113,473

175,000
5,000

175,000

163,1 1 5

(11,885)

28,000

44,351

16,351

180,000

203,000

207,466

4,466

13,127
201

104,154

13,127
103,953

201

117.281

1

28,516

8,129

(20,387)

27,460

28,516

8,129

(20,387)

B1

713

81,039

85,030

3,991

81

713

81 ,039

85,030

3,991

MISCELLANEOUS LOCAL SOURCES
Gifts and donations
Refunds of prior year expenditures
Total Miscellaneous Local Sources

30,977

(7,980)
(7,980)

17,080

STATE AID

Other general government

27,460
Total State Aid

FEDERAL AID
Other federal aid
Total Federal Aid

Total Revenues

$

72,594,926

-B0-

$

71

,738

$

71,985,735

$

100,997
(continued)

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
HIGHWAY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE . BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Original

Final

Budset

Budset

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual

EXPENDITURES

GENEML GOVERNMENT SUPPORT

2,464.785

Declared digaster and emergency

TRANSPORTATION

$

Maintenance of streets
Machinery - highway
Traffic safety
Snow removal
Shared services
Other transportation

$

2,464,785

$

.785

2,464,785

0

26,43',t,448

23,237,240

6,363,123

4,603,501

2,881,852
2,534,005
1,760,521

3,194,208
288,076

2,703,268

3,169,928
2,688,094

Total General Government Support

25,954,067

$

3,066,088

17,420

154,089

2,842,980

17,420

2,762,161

.791

2,239,267

40,848,707

39,593,1 82

32,670,305

6,922,877

Life insurance

15,563
55,463
1,435,350
38,500

15,299
55,463
1,435,350
38,774

6,364
39,526
1,329,595
37,189

Unemployment benefits
Hospital, medical and dental- retirees
Other employee benefits

20,000
4,272,540
250

20,000
4,160,632
250

3,790,335

108,935
15,937
105,755
1,585
16,730
370,297

Total Employee Benefits

5,937,666

5,825,768

5,206,279

619,489

Total Expenditures

46,786,373

.735

40,341,369

7,542,366

,003

31,644,366

7,643,363

Total Transportation
UNALLOCATED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Retirement system
Social security

1

Workers' compensation

Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures

25,808,553

oTHER FTNANC|NG SOURCES (USES)
Premium and accrued interest on obligations
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Ghange in Fund Balance

1

47

443,524

3,270

250

276,478

276,478

(25,808,553)

1,699
(26,996,892)

1,699
(26,996,890)

2

(25,808,553)

(26,718,715)

(26,718,713)

2

-0- $

$

4,925,653

(2,717,712)

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year, as originally reported

27 ,191,301

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, GASB No, 84

516,370

Fund Balance, at Beginning ofYear, restated

27,707,671

$

Fund Balance at End ofYear

-81 -

32,633,324

$

7,643,365

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REQUI RED SU PPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

REFUSE AND GARBAGE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Variance with
Final Budget

Final

Original
Budget

Budget

Actual

$
42,539,875

42,436,100

REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TAXES

$

Ad valorem taxes
Total Real Property Taxes

42,539,875

$

42,539,875

OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes

Total Other Real Property Tax ltems

42,539,875

$

(103,775)

42,436,100

(103,775)

700

700

2,117

1,417

700

700

2,117

1,417

700,000
365,000

700,000
370 000

920,903
264,587

(105,413)

1,065,000

1,070,000

DEPARTMENTAL INCOME
MRF recycling
Cleanup of premises

Total Departmental lncome
USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments

290,000
290,000

Total Use of Money and Property
FINE AND FORFEITURES
Fines and forfeited bail

Total Fines and Forfeitures
SALE OF PROPERTY AND
COMPENSATION FOR LOSS
Sales, scrap and excess materials

Total Sale of Property
and Compensation for Loss
MISCELLANEOUS LOCAL SOURCES
Gifts and donations
Total Miscellaneous Local Sources

1

200,000
200,000

,185,490

1

138,982
138,982

15,490

(61 ,018)
(61 ,018)

30,000

7,500

3,200

(4,300)

30,000

7,500

3,200

(4,300)

25,000

5,000

6,774

774

25,000

5,000

6,774

774

3,000

2,000

2

002

2

3,000

2,000

2

002

2

81,927

81,927

81 927

81,927

STATE AID
Recycling grant

Total State Aid

43,953,575 43,825,075

Total Revenues

220,903

43,856,592

31,5',t7

'157 773

139 958

17,815

157 773

139 958

17,815

45,698,736

180,426

45,698,736

180,426

45,838,694

198,241

EXPENDITURES

GENEML GOVERNMENT SUPPORT
Declared disaster and emergency
Total General Government Support
HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
Refuse and garbage

43,953,575 45,879,162
43,953,575 45,879,',162

Total Home and Community Services
Total Expenditures
Net Change ln Fund Balance

43,953,575
$

-0- $

46,036,935
(2,211,860)

(1,982,102)

Fund Balance at Beginnlng of Year

3,210,992

$

Fund Balance at End of Year

-82 -

1,228,890

$

229,758

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS LIABILITY AND RELATED
RATIOS
December 31,2020
December 31st:

2020

TotalOPEB liability:
Balance, beginning of year

$

464,991

Service costs
Difference between expected and actual
experience
Changes of assumptions and other inputs
Benefit payments
Balance, end ofyear

Covered-employee payroll

,1

38

$

17,617,061
13,033,632

lnterest

2018

2019

410,893,942

$

436,257,683

12,338,111
15,298,239

18,215,147

15,452,012

(41,441,585)

$
$

535,569,809
69,313,447

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered
employee payroll

(48,367,904)
(10,662,996)

80,365,936
(12,463,505)

53,878,654
(13,950,676)

$
$

464,991,138
69,945,482

$
$

410,893,942
68,929,227

664.79%

772.680/o

596.11%

Notes to the Schedule:
Measurement date
Summary of changes in assumptions:
Discount rate

December

31,2020

2.120

December

31,2019

2.74o/o

4.10%

Unisex pre-

Sex-distinct, with
60% weight to white
collar and 4O% to
blue collar, using
projection scale MP-

Demographic assumptions:
Mortality
Unisex preretirement, using
projection scale MP
High Cost Plan Excise Tax
Health care trend rates:
Rate used
Ultimate rate/year

2018

retirement, using
projection scale MP
2018

Repealed

Repealed

7.00o/o

7.50%
4.5% in 2O25

4.5%in2025

December 31, 2018

2015
lncluded
8.50%
in 2O25

5.Oo/o

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 1O-year trend
is compiled, the Town presents information for those years for which information is available.
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TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM
December 31,2020
March

31

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Town's proportion of the net pension liability

0.24452930/o

0.2468728%

o.2601044%

o.2622855%

0.2605125o/o

0.2599848o/o

0.2599848%

Town's proportionate share ofthe net pension
liability

$64,752,767

$ 17,491,691

$

8,394,728

$24,644,931

$ 41,812,983

$

Town's Covered payroll

$69,347,432

$ 68,916,746

$ 67,016,730

$ 69,167,716

$ 66,471,512

$ 62,039,687

$ 67,129,070

Town's proportionate share of the net pension
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll

93.37%

25.38%

12.53%

35.63%

62.90%

14.160/o

17.50o/o

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability

86.39%

96.27o/o

98.24o/o

94.70o/o

90.70o/o

97.95o/o

97.20o/o

Notes:

Amounts presented were determined as of the System's measurement date of March 31st.
There were no significant legislative changes in benefits for the April 1, 2015 actuarial valuation.
There were no changes in assumptions ftom the March 31 , 2019 to March 31 , 2020 Plan year.

lncrease in proportionate share of the net pension liability mainly aftributable to decrease in plan fiduciary net position due to investment losses.
The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was decreased trom

7 .0o/o

to 6.8% effective with the March

information is available.
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31 , 2020

measurement date.

8,782,92'l

$ 11,748,347

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REQUI RED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

December 31,2020

Contributions

required

recognized by the plan
in relation to the
contractually required

contributions

contributions

Contractually
Years Ended
December 31
2020
2019
2018
2017

2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011

$

9,736,300
10,165,303
9,998,092
10,647,337

10,227,415
11,287,405
11

,507,519

13,211,365
11,116,920
8,739,756

$

9,736,300

Contribution
deficiency

$ 69,313,447

$

10,165,303

9,998,092
10,647,337

10,227,415
11,287,405
9,381,789

2,125,730
2,125,730
4,086,452

11,085,635

7,030,468
6,764,299

Covered
payroll

1,975,457

14.05o/o

69,945,482
68,929,228

14.53%

66,208,737
66,897,904
62,850,953
62,039,687

16.08%
15.29%

67,129,070

16.51%
10.67%
10.42%

65,867,689
64,905,345

Notes:

Amounts presented for each year were determined as of December 31st and
the contractually required contributions are based on the amounts invoiced by
the New York State Local Retirement System.
The Plan used the April 1, 2019 actuarial valuation to determine the employer rates for contributions
payable to the Plan for the Plan's year end March 31,2020.
There was a change in assumption for the pensioner mortality improvement in the April 1,2019
actuarialvaluation form Scale MP-2014 to Scale MP-2018.
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Contribution
as a percentage
of covered
payroll

1450%

17.960/o

15j2%

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PENSION LIABILITIES - LOSAP PLANS
December 31,2020

Year End

December 31,2020

December 31, 2019

December 31,2018

Measurement Date

December 31, 2019

December 31,2018

December 31,2017

No Special Funding Situations:
Total Pension Liability:
Service Cost
Changes in proportionate share

$

408,245

$

476,928
324,423

lnterest

(218,e16)
(1 60,1 38)
8,107,631

$

Total Pension Liability - end of year

9,603,333

$

$

8,107,631

389,560

279,753

276,896
(777,654)
(70,474)
(167,312)
8,400,056

665,1 60

Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Differences between expected and actual experit
Benefit payments
Total pension liability - beginning of year

446,119

798,561

(141,612)
(154,330)
7,228,124
$

8,400,056

Covered payroll

N/A

N/A

N/A

Total pension liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

N/A

N/A

N/A

50.00%

50.0% and 51.0%

Special Funding Situations:
Town's proportion of the total pension liabilities
Town's proportionate share of the total pension
liabilities

$

1,063,721

8

50.0o/o and 51

1,214,837 $

.0o/o

1,244,980

Notes:
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was based on the yield to maturity of the
S&P Municipal Bond 20Year High Grade Rate lndex as of the measurement date and was as follows:
December
December
December
December

31,2416
31,2017
31,2018
31,2019

3.71%

316%
3.64%
3.260/0

Trust Assets
There are no assets accounted in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB
Statement No. 73 to pay related benefits.
This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the Town presents information for those years for which information is available.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION

-

Combining and lndividual Fund Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual Non-Major Special Revenue Funds and Schedules. The budgets are adopted on a basis of
accounting consistent with GMP.

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Final
Budget

Original

Budset
REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TAXES
Ad valorem taxes

Total Real Property

$
Taxes

10,128,388

OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
Payment in lieu of taxes
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes
Total Other Real Property Tax ltems
USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments

Total Use of Money and Property
Total

Revenues

oTHER FtNANCING SOURCES (USES)
Premium and accrued interest on obligations
Transfers in (transfer to non budgeted fund)

$

10,128,388

1

Net Change in Fund Balance from budgeted amounts

$

1

144,599
505

5

107,000

1

00,500

145.104

44,604

5,500

5,500

't3,322

7 822

5,500

5.500

13.322

7,822

10,286,814

52,426

0,240,888)

$

-0-

$

9,278
(10,147,665)

(1 0,1

9,278
47,665)

0,1 38,387)

(1 0,1

38,387)

(1

148,427

96.001

DEBT SERVICE FUND - NO ANNUAL BUDGET
REVENUES
USE OF MONEY AND PROPERW
lnterest earnings

Total Use of Money and Property

155,380
155,380

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE

21,787,474
425 't17
79,031,291

Total Expenditures

79,031,291

EXPENDITURES
DEBT SERVICE
Principal

56,818,700

lnterest
Bond issuance costs

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES
Premium and accrued interest on obligations

22,234,',t39
73,940,142

Transfers in
Transfers out
Refunding bonds issued
Debt -service - principal currently refunded

(1

1,562)

77,780,000
(88,320,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

85,622,719

Net Ghange in Fund Balance from unbudgeted fund

6,746,808

Fund Balance at Beginnlng ofYear

14,047,399

$

Fund Balance at End of Year

87-

$

100,000
500

10,240,888

(

10,128,388
10,128,388

0,128,388

100,000
7,000

(10,240,888)

TOTALOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

10,128,388

Variance with
Final Budqet

Actual

20,942,634

44,599

$

52,426

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
COMBI NING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS- SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
December 31,2020

Permanent
Fund
West
Meadow
Beach
Endowment

Soecial Revenue Funds

Housing
Trust

Special
Grants
ASSETS

$ 2,702/15

Cash and cash equivalents

Park
Reserve
Escrow

$

4,261 $

Drainage
Reserve
Escrow

Highway
Reserve
Escrow

438,537

$

2,220,962

$

Special
Airoort

230,134

$

Districts

139,39'l

$

19,674,845

'107,890

Cash restricled
Accounts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Due from otherfunds
State and federal aid receivables
Due from other governments
Prepaids
lnveniory of material and supplies
Length of service award program plan investments

1,466,172

$

1.466.172

$

25,410,545
1,574,062
65,103
15,762,530
1 1 3,537
1,229,406
2,477
64,458
220,4'lO
10.334.732

$

54.777.660

7,352

20,466

37,285

$

Total
Non-major
Governmental
Funds

15,762,530
10,935

102,602
1,229,406

2,719
13,466
220,410

158

40,896

1

0,096

10.334.732

TotalAssets

$

4,220,494

$

4,261

s

Me472 S 2220.9A2 $

230.134

$

170.111

$

46.016.054

$

692,543
468,234
9,928

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Guaranty, bid and escrow deposits

$

428,714

10,u4

1,015,305
107,890
117,585

1,659

Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue
Real property taxes
Total Deferred lnflows of Resources

2.159.005

$

1363

-0-

3.400

'1.363

-0-

$

-0-

-0-

-0-

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned

$

-0-

-0-

Total Liabilities, Deferred lnflows
of Resources and Fund Balances

4.220.494

0,096

444 1ll9

2

2tO96)

?30 134

140 951

233,876
10,402,773
9.338.336

448,109

2220 962

230.134

151.669

19.974.985

449.472

s 2220962 $

622

4,261

$

4,261

$

-88-

230.1s4

$

170.111

$

24.867.599
24,867,599

-0-

-0-

1

2.061.489

$

1.173.470

18.442

40,896
2,020,593

Total Fund Balances

$

2,765
$

Total

2,539

$

89,511

$

46.016.054

-0-

1,523,796
568,589
1,026,892
107,890
120,350
4.763
3.352.280

24,867,599
24.467.599

-01,466,172

1

,751,O40

12,423,988
12.382.753

1.466.172
$

1.466.172

$

26.557 .781

54,777,660

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Year Ended December 31,2020
Permanent
Fund
West
Meadow
Beach
Endowment

Special Revenue Funds
Park
Reserve
Escrow

Housing
Trusl

Special

Gents

Drainage
Reserve
Escrow

Highway
Reserve
Escrow

Special
Districis

Aircort

REVENUES

$

Real property taxes
Other real property tax items
Departmental income
Use of money and property
lnvestment loss from lenglh of service award program
Sale of property and compensation for loss
Miscellaneous local sources
Siate aid

Total
Non-major
Govemmenial
Funds

$

24,770,4e0

$

Federal aid

TotalRevenues

117,934

5,473

1,354,752
250

1,319

190,,l 19

755,376
601,544
1,354,752
5,723
191,438

20.342.727

5.180

20.347.907

441,176

68s

$

$

20.791.380

87,311

$

15,615

3,020

32

'120.954

32

$
$

102.926

1,634

16,730

92,225
349,715

230,834

441.940

1.634

EXPENDITURES
Cunent:
General governmeni support
Public safety
588,548
20 883 570
Total

Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Underl Expenditures

20,883,570

(92.1 90)

-0-

-0-

-0-

-0-

32

120,954

102.926

1.634

FTNANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Premiums on obligations

$

I

I

?6.72a.476

44147.351

28,775
574,557
11,883,520
4,322,707
29,999

24,775
574,557
1 1,883,520
3,734,159
29,999
2 875.941

Health

Transportation
Culture and recreation
Home and community services

24,TtO,480
'160,131

160,131

588.548
(146.608)

23.759.551

19.126.991

7.601.485

-o-

40.599.109

9

7 544242

orHER

10,935
(12s,ooo)

Toial Other Financing Sources (Uses)

-0-

2,153,679

Fund Balances at Beginning ofYear, as originally reported

(5.474.586)

-0-

-0-

146.608

32

6.889

102.926

1 634

-0-

4,229

393,720

2,118,036

228,500

151,669

8.036

224 500

151.669

Gumulative effect of change in accounting principle, GASB No. 84

406,546
(5,891,6s3)
43.064

4'1.936

-0-

(5.442.O43\

I

2.146.199

17,848,086

1,466,163

24,3il,O82

17.848.086

1.466.163

24.411.582

2.126.899

47,500

47,500

Fund Balance, at Beginning of Year, restated
Fund Balances at End of Year

202,086
(5,718,608)

14.065)

(1

-0-

/q2 1qo\

Net Change in Fund Balances

193,525
(48,04s)
1 124

$

2.153.679

4,229

441.220

2 061 489

_g_l;ql- $

448.109

-89-

2.

$

1 1

2,220,962

$

230.134

$

151.669

$

19.974.985

$

1,466,172

$

26,557,781

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
BROOKHAVEN CALABRO AIRPORT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Variance with
Final Budget

Final

Original
Budqet

Actual

Budset

REVENUES

DEPARTMENTAL INCOME
Airport fees and rental

$
Total Departmental lncome

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments
Rental - other
Renewable energy

Total Use of Money and Property
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
TRANSPORTATION
Airport operations
Total Airport Operations

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

109,000

$

Premiums

Net Ghange in Fund Balances

(16,775)

2,000
330,000
38,852

523

(1,477)

271,488
77 704

(58,512)
38 852

334 300

370,852

349,715

(21,137\

443 300

479,852

441,940

(37,912)

777,402

721 155

588,548

132 607

777 402

721,155

588,548

132 607

777 402

721 155

588,548

132 607

(s34,102)

(241,303)

(146,608)

94,695

$

1,128
288,220
(48,045)
241,303
-0-

1,128
193,525
(48,045)

94,695

146,608

94,695

-0151,669

$

90

(16,775)

4,300
330,000

Fund Balances at Beginning ofYear
Fund Balances at End of Year

$

92,225

-0-

$

92,225

109,000

381,999
(47,8e7)
334,102

Total Other Financing Sources

$

109 000

orHER FtNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

109,000

151 ,669

$

-0-

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
COMBI NING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL SPECIAL DISTRICT FU N DS
December 31,2020

Revenue Funds
Erosion

Control Protection Lighting
Districts Districts District

Ambulance Dock
Districts Districis
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Due from other funds
Due from oiher govemments
Prepaids
lnventory of material and supplies
Length of service award program plan investments

Fire

$8.125,664 $1,014,787 $2,203,994 $ 4e7,562 $5,137,548 $
7,352

391,899

9]20j53

Refuse and

Garbage Sewer Sidewalk Water Supply
Park
Districts Districts Districts Districts Disiricis

119,750 376,005 3,187,206

171,174

1,138

983,328

7,352

434.865

517,',191

15,762,530
0

2,153
12,175

566

$ 538,607 $ 19,674,84s

$ 805,261 $1,190,248

32,133

Totals

2,719
13,466
220,410

153

220,410

10,334,732

10,334,732

rorarAssets $28,ft8,467

$

1,407.824

$

2,544,1s4

$

863,s67

$

8,33e,0q?_

_!_:93,!92- -9--1-188J42--9--1-Jo7-,4n--9--------:9:--9--9Z9lZ?--Sl9p19'09L-

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Uneamed revenues

$
$ 280,500
Total

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue
Real

propertytaxes

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned

Liabilities 28O,5OO

10
3,474
3,484 $

15,337,036 618,361
Total Defened lnflows ofResources 15,337,036 618,36f

$

-0-

5,684 $

5,684

$

516,767
12,484
8,569
2,765

il0,589 $

188,949 593,283 5,028,964
188,949 59q?q3 5,028,9@

95,957

$

692,543
464,234
9,928
2,765

-0-

164,315

1,173,470

-G.

682,697
682,697

$

164,315

1,359

-0-

95,957

50,700 1,551,554
50,700 1,551,554

82,94'l $

816,055
81

055

153
12j75
1,138 220,410
3,473
10,399,300
2,171,631 784,841 2,134,795 261,127 2,757,354 152,607 141,078 808,443 _
141,231 808,443
Total Fund Balances 12,570,931 785,979 2,355,205 264,600 2,769,529 152,607

-91 -

$

74,125
7,457

24'867'599
24,867,599

233'876

126,460
-

126,460

10,402,773

9,338,336
19'974,985

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL
SPECIAL DISTRICT FUNDS

Year Ended December 31, 2020

Total

$
88,725
10,489
109,423

g15,114,178

$

48,336

300,609

15

$

19,440

30

$
7'1,188

2,750

32,358

595,607 $5,304,704

s1,734 $1,461,709

$ 688,696
U

3

73

1,203

4,694

52,940

1,466,476

8,635 $

$

Revenues 16,865,586

681,611

598,387 5,415,780

320,0&

574,557

68

31
6,241
3,927

697,365

68

630,199

11,883,520 84,725

115,919

202,086

703,910
68

703,910

19,126,991

Year
Fund Balances at End of

1,832

-G

(73,711)

7,601,'t85

202,086
(5,718,608)
41 935

(8,219)

_
(838,939)

-G

-0-

(288,286)

-0-

-G

(5,474,586)

(266,378)

15,611

898,700

22,94'1

1,A32

(72,367)

-0-

(73,711)

2,'126,899

703,545 2,621,583

248,989

1,870,829

129,666

139,399

980,810

-G

2OO,17'l

17,848'086

(460,461)

_

10,953,094

Year

22,941

(3,364,229) (5'14,452) (460,461)
1,617,837

Balances

23,830 1,737$39
(872,339t

8,536

(Uses)

26,728,476

(8,21e)

(3,574,851) (514,452)
rotal Other Financing

16'730
230,834
1,354,752
250
190,119
5,180

68

29,999

1,464,U4 581,446 _
_
125,981 574,557 3,678,141 29,999 1,4U,644 581,446

4,982,066 596,886 194,083

OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Premiums on obligations

160,131

28,775
574,557
11 ,883,520
3,734,159
29,999
2,875,981

125,981

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

620,000 $24,770,480

28,775
3,649,366

84,725
Expenditures

Totals

250
7,066
214

183,053
4,966

.11,883,520

Total

Fund Balances at Beginning of

32

1,354,752

EXPENDITURES
Cunent:
General govemment support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Home and community services

Net Change in Fund

633,243

Districts Districts Districts Districts Districts

District

Districts Districts Districts Districts
REVENUES
Real property taxes
Other real property tax items
Departmental income
Use of money and properly
lnvestment loss from length of service award program
Sale of property and compensalion for loss
Miscellaneous local sources
Federal aid

$ 12,570,e31

$

8|4U
785,e7e

$

2,355,205

$

264,600

-92-

(288,286)

q?rm

$ :?,76e,52e _q

__l q,692- -9---111191- -9---!99119-

-$--+-

-9----l?9199-

-!-l-9!Zl€!9-

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
AMBULANCE DISTRICTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020

REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TMES
Ad valorem taxes

$

Actual

Budset

15,114,178

$

15,114,178

$

15,',t14,178 15,114,178

Total Real Property Taxes
OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
Payment in lieu of taxes
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes

Iotal Other Real Property Tax ltems
DEPARTMENTAL INCOMT
Ambulance service fees
Total Departmental lncome
USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments
Rental of real property

Total Use of Money and Property

Variance with
Final Budget

Final

Original
Budqet

15,114,178

$

15,114,178

50,200

50,200
169

87,971
754

37,771

169

s0,369

50,369

88,725

38 356

31,950

15,000

10,489

(4,511)

31,950

'15,000

10,489

(4,51 1)

49,400

25,450

60,000

60,000

21,934
87,489

27,489

109,400

85,450

109,423

23 973

1,354,752

1,354,752

1,354,752

'l,354,752

585

(3,516)

INVESTMENT INCOME FROM LENGTH OF SERVICE

AWARD
Total lnvestment lncome from Length of Service Award
MISCELLANEOUS LOCAL SOURCES
Other miscellaneous revenue
Total Miscellaneous Local Sources

183 053

183,053

FEDERAL AID
Other federal aid

Total Federal Aid
Total Revenues

1

3,038

4,968

4,966

(2\

3,038

4,968

4,966

(2\

5,308,935 15,269,965

EXPENDITURES
HEALTH

Ambulance

Total Expenditures

595 62'l

1 1

,883,520

181 985

1 1

,883,520

18't 985

',t1

,

883,520

181 985

4,982,066

777 606

202,086
(3,612,860)
8,536

202,086
(3,574,851)
8,536

38,009

(3,402,238)

(3,364,22e)

(197,778)

1,617,837

12,065,505
12,065,505

,999,1 01

12,065,505

11

Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures

16,865,586

11,999,101

11,999,101

Total Cunent Expenditures

orHER

183,053

183,053

3,309,834

FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out
Premiums on obligations

(3,352,625)

(3,352,625)

Total Other Financing (Uses)

$

Net Change in Fund Balances

(42,791\

$

't0, 953,094

Fund Balances at Beginning ofYear

$

Fund Balances at End of Year

93-

12,570,931

38,009

$

1.815 ,615

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
DOCK DISTRICTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Original
Budget
REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TAXES
Ad valorem taxes

$
Total Real Property Taxes

Final
Budget

633,243

$

633,243

633,243

$

Total Other Real Property Tax ltems

Total Use of Money and Property
Total
EXPENDITURES
TRANSPORTATION
Docks, piers and wharves

$

7,100

32

32

32

32

(264)

12,000
39 500

39,500

6,836
41,500

2 000

500

46,600

48,336

736

684,743

679,843

681,611

768

170 288

170,288

84 725

85,563
85,563

51

Revenues

633,243

633,243

633,243

OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments
Rental of real property

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual

Total Transportation

170 288

170,288

84 725

Total Expenditures

170 288

170,288

84 725

85,563

514,455

509,555

596,886

87,331

(514,455)

(514,455)

(514,452)

3

(514,455)

(514,455)

(514,452)

3

Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out
Total Other Financing (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

$

-0- $

82,434

(4,e00)

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year

703,545

$

Fund Balances at End of Year

-94

785,979

$

87,334

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
EROSION CONTROL DISTRICTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Final
Budqet

Original

Budget
REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TAXES
Ad valorem taxes

$
Total Real Property Taxes

300,609

$

300,609

$

OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes
Total Other Real Property Tax ltems
USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments

42,600
42,600

Total Use of Money and Property
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
Flood and erosion control
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures

20,000
20,000

15

15

15

19,440

(560)

19,440

(560)
(545)

343,209

320,609

320 064

430,744

430,744

125,981

304 763

430,744

430,744

125,981

304 763

35)

194,083

304,218

(98,465)

(460,465)

(460,461)

4

(Uses)

(98,465)

(460,465)

(460,461)

4

$

(186,000)

(5?o'99Q-

(266,378)

Net Change in Fund Balances

-$

Fund Balances at Beginning ofYear

2,621,583

$

Fund Balances at End ofYear

Assigned

15

(1 1 0,1

out

* Budgeted net change in fund balance:

$

(87,535)

OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers
Total Other Financing

300,609
300 609

300,609

300,609

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual

$
$

-95-

(186,000)
(186,000)

2,355,205

$

304,222

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE. BUDGE AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Final
Budget

Original
Budqet
REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TMES
Ad valorem taxes

Total Real Property

$
Taxes

595,607

$

595,607

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual

595,607

$

595,607

$

595,607

595,607

OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes
Total Other Real Property Tax ltems

30

30

30

30

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments
Total Use of Money and Property

5,800
5,800

2 800
2 800

2 750
2 750

(50)
(50)

Total Revenues

601,407

598,407

598 387

(20)

593,1 86

593,1 86

574,393

EXPENDITURES
PUBLIC SAFETY
Fire protection services

Total Public Safety

593,1 86

593,350

574,557

18,793

Total Expenditures

593,1 86

593,350

574 557

18,793

5,057

23.830

18,773

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

8,221

OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out
Total Other Financing (Uses)
Net Ghange in Fund Balances

18,793

164

164

Other

$

(8,221)
(e,221)

(8,221)
(8,221)

(8,219)
(8,219)

-0- $

(3,164)

15,611

248,989

Fund Balances at Beginning ofYear

$

Fund Balances at End ofYear

-96-

264,600

2
2

$

18,775

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
STREET LIGHTING DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020

REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY
Ad valorem taxes

TMES

$
Total Real Property Taxes

Actual

5,304,704

$

5,304,704

OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
Payment in lieu of taxes
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes

Variance with
Final Budget

Final

Original
Budget

s,304,704

$

5,304,704

$

5,304,704

5,304,704

67,800

69,000

265

70,923
265

1,923

100

67,900

69,265

71 188

923

57,500

32,000

32 358

358

57,500

32,000

32,358

358

250

250

250

250

7,000

7,066

66

7,000

7,066

66

203

203

214

11

203

203

214

11

5,413,172

5,4'15,780

2,608

28,775
28,775

28,775
28,775

4,491,318

4,046 ,1 16

3,649,366

396,750

4,491 ,318

4,046,1

6

3,649 ,366

396,750

4,491,318

4,074,891

3,678 ,141

396,750

938,989

1, 338,281

737 639

399,358

Total Other Real Property Tax ltems
USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments

Total Use of Money and Property
SALE OF PROPERTY AND
COMPENSATION FOR LOSS
lnsurance recoveries
Total Sale of Property and Compensation for Loss

MISCELLANEOUS LOCAL SOURCES
Other miscellaneous revenue
Total Miscellaneous Local Sources
FEDERAL AID

Other
Total Federal Aid
Total Revenues

5,430,307

EXPENDITURES
Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT SUPPORT
Declared disaster and emergency

TRANSPORTATION
Street lighting
Total Transportation
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures

1

orHER FtNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out
Premiums on obligations
Total Other Financing (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

(e38,989)

(872,339)
33,400

(872,339)
33,400

(e38,989)

(838,939)

(838,939)

499,342

898,700

-0- $

$

1,870,829

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

$

Fund Balance at End ofYear

-97 -

2,769,529

$

399,358

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
PARK DISTRICTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES. BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Final
Budget

Original
Budget
REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TAXES
Ad valorem taxes

Total Real Property

$

51

Taxes

51

734 $

51,734
51

,734

$

734

Total Other Real Property Tax ltems

Total Use of Money and Property
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
CULTURE AND RECREATION
Parks

Total Expenditures

$

3

3

3

3

't,200

1,203

3

2,400

1,200

1,203

3

54,134

52,934

52,940

6

54,134

54,134

29,999

24,135

54,134

54,134

29 999

24,135

(1,200)

22,941

24,141

(1,200)

22,941

-0-

$

'129,666

Fund Balances at Beginning ofYear

$

Fund Balances at End ofYear

-98-

$

2,400

Excess Revenues
Over Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balance

51,734
51 734

OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual

'152,607

$

24,141

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
REFUSE AND GARBAGE DISTRICTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020
Final
Budget

Original
Budget
REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TAXES
Ad valorem taxes

$
Total Real Property Taxes

1,461,709

$

1,461,709

$

OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes
Total Other Real Property Tax ltems
USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments
Total Use of Money and Property

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current:
HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
Refuse and garbage

Total Expenditures
Net Change

in Fund Balances

1,46 1,709 $
1,461,709

1,461,709

1,461,709

Variance with
Final Budget

Actual

73

73

73

73

10 826

9,'126

4 694

(4,432)

10,826

9,126

4,694

(4,432)

1,472,535

1,470,835

1,466,476

(4,359)

1,472,535

1,4 72,535

1,464,644

7 891

1,472,535

1,4 72,535

1,464,644

7,891

-0-

$

$

(1,700)

1,832
139,399

Fund Balances at Beginning ofYear
Fund Balances at End of Year

$

-99-

141.231

$

3,532

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
SEWER DISTRICTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020

REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TMES
Ad valorem taxes

$

Variance with

Final
Budget

Original
Budget

68e,696

$

Final Budqet

Actual

688,696

$

688,696

$

Total Real Property Taxes

688,696

688,696

688,696

OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes
Total Other Real Property Tax ltems

10

10

34

24

10

10

34

24

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments
Total Use of Money and Property

18,500

10,000

8,635

(1,365)

18 500

10,000

8,635

(1,365)

707 206

698,706

697,365

34',!

587,400

617,400

581,446

35 954

587,400

617,400

581 .446

35,954

19,806

81,306

15,919

34,613

(288,286)

53,288

(341,574)

(288,286)

53,288

(260,268)

(172,367)

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current;
HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
Sewage treatment disposal

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues

Over Expenditures

1

OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfers out

(341,574)
Total Other Financing

Net Change in Fund

1

(Uses)

Balance

$

(341,574)
(221,768)

$

980,810

Fund Balance at Beginning ofYear

$

Fund Balance at End ofYear

* Budgeted net change in fund balance
Assigned

$
$

(221,768)
(221 .768)

- 100 -

808,443

$

87,901

TOWN OF BROOKHAVEN
WATER SUPPLY DISTRICTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31,2020

REVENUES
REAL PROPERTY TMES
Ad valorem taxes

$
Total Real Property Taxes

Variance with
Final Budget

Final

Original
Budoet

Actual

620,000

$

620,000

620,000

$

620,000

$

620,000

620,000

OTHER REAL PROPERTY TAX ITEMS
Payment in lieu of taxes
lnterest and penalties on real property taxes
Total Other Real Property Tax ltems

DEPARTMENTAL INCOME
Metered water sales
Total Departmental lncome
USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments

Total Use of Money and Property
Total Revenues

31

31

31

31

5,500

5,500

6,241

741

5,500

5,500

6,241

74'l

8,050

4 800

3,918

(882)

8,050

4 800

3,918

(882)

633,550

630 300

630,1 90

(110)

633,550

704,033

703 901

132

704,033

703 901

132

(73,733)

(73,711)

(73,733)

(73,711)

EXPENDITURES
Current:
HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

Water

633

Total Expenditures

550

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures
Net Ghange in Fund Balances- budgeted

funds

$

-0- $

WATER SUPPLY DISTRICTS - NO ANNUAL BUDGET
REAL PROPERTY TAXES
USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY
lnterest and earnings on investments

9

Total Revenues

9

HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

I

Other

Net Change in Fund Balances- funds

Total Expenditures

9

with no annual budget

-0-

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year - all Water Supply Districts funds

200,171

$

Fund Balances at End of Year

-101-

126,460

22
$

22

